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PART I

We refer to (1) Highwoods Properties, Inc. as th@orhpany,” (2) Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerstdag the Operating
Partnership,” (3) the Company’s common stock asi@mn Stock,” (4) the Company’s preferred stock Rieferred Stock,”Y) the Operatin
Partnership’s common partnership interests as “Comiwnits,” (6) the Operating Partnership’s prefdrpartnership interests areferre
Units” and (7) inservice properties (excluding rental residentiats)rto which the Company and/or the Operating ieaghip have title ai
100.0% ownership rights as the “Wholly Owned Pr&psr”

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

The Company is a fully-integrated, self-administeasd self-managed equity real estate investmast (fREIT”) that began operatio
through a predecessor in 1978. The Company contplttenitial public offering in 1994 and its Commdtock is traded on the New Yi
Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “HIWWe are one of the largest owners and operatorsimirban office, industrial and ret
properties in the southeastern and midwestern Widitates. At December 31, 2007, we:

o wholly owned 311 i-service office, industrial and retail propertiescempassing approximately 26.6 million rentablessq
feet, and 109 rental residential un

e owned an interest (50.0% or less) in 6-service office and industrial properties, encomipasspproximately 7.3 millic
rentable square feet, and 418 rental residentiats.urFive of these iservice office properties are consolidatec
December 31, 2007 as more fully described in Nbtaesd 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statem:

e wholly owned 634 acres of undeveloped land, appnexély 493 acres of which are considered core hgiliand which a
suitable to develop approximately 7.6 million rééasquare feet of office and industrial space;

e were developing or rdeveloping 15 wholly owned properties comprisingragimately 2.2 million square feet that were ul
construction or were completed but had not achie9s% stabilized occupancy and 139 $ale condominiums (througk
consolidated 93% owned joint ventur

The Company conducts virtually all of its activitithrough the Operating Partnership. The Compankessole general partner of
Operating Partnership. At December 31, 2007, the@my owned all of the Preferred Units and 93.3%hefCommon Units in the Operat
Partnership. Limited partners (including certaificagfrs and directors of the Company) own the reingifCommon Units. Each Common L
is redeemable by the holder for the cash valuengf share of Common Stock or, at the Compamgtion, one share of Common St
Preferred Units in the Operating Partnership weseiéd to the Company in connection with the CompaRyeferred Stock offerings tl
occurred in 1997 and 1998.

The Company was incorporated in Maryland in 199%e Operating Partnership was formed in North Caaoln 1994. Our executi
offices are located at 3100 Smoketree Court, S&0@ Raleigh, North Carolina 27604 and our teleghaomber is (919) 872924. W
maintain offices in each of our primary markets.

Our business is the acquisition, development anefatjpn of rental real estate properties. We opeddfice, industrial, retail ar
residential properties. There are no material iesggment transactions. See Note 18 to the Consetiddhancial Statements for a summat
the rental income, net operating income and a$setach reportable segment.

In addition to this Annual Report, we file or fushi quarterly and current reports, proxy statementd other information with tl
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SE@&I).documents that we file or furnish with the SE@ made available as soon as reaso
practicable free of charge on our corporate wepsitéch ishttp://www.highwoods.com The information on this website is not and shau
be considered part of this Annual Report and isimabrporated by reference in this document. Thébsite is only intended to be an inac
textual reference. You may also read and copy acyment that we file or furnish at the public refege facilities of the
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SEC at 100 F. Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washindo@, 20549. Please call the SEC at (800) @336 for further information about the pul
reference facilities. These documents also may dmessed through the SECElectronic data gathering, analysis and retriesyaiten
("EDGAR”) via electronic means, including the SEGisme page on the Interneth{tp://www.sec.gov). In addition, since some of ¢
securities are listed on the NYSE, you can readlainimformation about us at the offices of the NiY&t 20 Broad Street, New York, New Y
10005.

During 2007, we filed unqualified Section 303A darations with the NYSE. We have also filed the @End CFO certifications requit
by Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 as exhibits to our 2007 Annual Report.

Customers

The following table sets forth information concemmithe 20 largest customers of our Wholly OwnedhPriies as of December 31, 2007:

Percent Weighted

of Total Average

Annualized Annualized Remaining

Rental Cash Rental Cash Rental Lease Term
Customer Square Feet Revenue (1) Revenue (1) in Years
(in thousands)

Federal Governmel 1,746,74¢ $ 31,62¢ 7.62% 8.3
AT&T 656,90! 12,93¢ 3.1z 2.8
PricewaterhouseCoope 358,61 9,781 2.3¢ 2.3
State of Georgi 367,98t 7,66¢ 1.8t 2.t
T-Mobile USA 207,51 5,68( 1.37 5.¢
Metropolitan Life Insuranc 262,58t 5,022 1.21 10.C
Lockton Companie 156,25! 4,09( 0.9¢ 7.2
Volvo 278,94( 3,94 0.9t 4.C
Syniverse Technologies, In 198,75( 3,931 0.9t 8.8
BB&T 238,59 3,76¢ 0.91 5.C
Northern Telecon 246,00( 3,651 0.8¢ 0.2
Fluor Enterprises, Inc 205,03¢ 3,62¢ 0.87 4.1
SCI Servicey2) 162,78 3,60¢ 0.87 9.€
US Airways 182,77¢ 3,13¢ 0.7¢ 3.7
Jacol's Engineering Group, In 181,79 2,91¢ 0.7 7.7
Vanderbilt University 144,16: 2,82¢ 0.6¢ 7.8
Lifepoint Corporate Service 129,21° 2,54¢ 0.61 3.t
Talecris Biotherapeutic 132,62 2,531 0.61 4.2
Icon Clinical Researc 110,90¢ 2,42: 0.5¢ 5.€
Wachovia 107,48’ 2,40¢ 0.5¢ 2.5
Total (3) 6,075,68 $ 118,11! 28.470 5.€

(1) Annualized Cash Rental Revenue is cash rental tevéimase rent plus additional rent based on thel l&voperating expenses, excluc
straigh-line rent) for the month of December 2007 multigllzy 12.

(2) Morgan Stanley acquired SCI Services (previouskyvkmas Saxon Capital, Inc.) on December 4, 2

(3) Excludes customers that may lease space in jomte properties that are consolidated but arétfuilly Owned Propertie:
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Operating Strategy

Efficient, Customer Service-Oriented Organization. We provide a complete line of real estate sesvimeour customers and th
parties. We believe that our meuse development, acquisition, construction mamage, leasing and property management services akotc
respond to the many demands of our existing anenpial customer base. We provide our customers edg#t-effective services such as build-
to-suit construction and space modification, includtegant improvements and expansions. In additioa,bireadth of our capabilities ¢
resources provides us with market information nenegally available. We believe that the operatiffggiencies achieved through our fu
integrated organization also provide a competitisieantage in setting our lease rates and pricingraervices.

Capital Recycling Program. Our strategy has been to focus our real estatgitgdiin markets where we believe our extensival
knowledge gives us a competitive advantage oveerotbal estate developers and operators. Throughcapital recycling program, \
generally seek to:

e selectively dispose of notere properties in order to use the net proceedspoove our balance sheet by reducing outstar
debt and Preferred Stock balances, to make nevgtimeats or for other purpose

e engage in the development of office, industrial attter real estate projects in existing or new gaplgic markets, primarily
suburban i-fill business parks; an

e acquire selective suburban office and industrialpprties in existing or new geographic marketsratep below replaceme
cost that offer attractive returr

Our capital recycling activities benefit from owchl market presence and knowledge. Because oisiafivofficers and staff ha
significant real estate experience in their redpecharkets, we believe that we are in a betteitiposto evaluate capital recycling opportuni
than many of our competitors. In addition, our tielaships with our customers and those tenantsagepties for which we conduct thighrty
fee-based services may lead to development projdws these tenants seek new space.

The following table summarizes the changes in sgfwotage in our in-service Wholly Owned Properdesing the past three years:

2007 2006 2005
(rentable square feet in thousands)

Office, Industrial and Retail Properties:

Dispositions (1,172) (2,982) (4,647
Developments Placed-Service(1) 93C 33 712
Redevelopment/Othe 3 (74) (133
Acquisitions — 70 —
Net Change of In-Service Wholly Owned Properties (239 (2,95% (4,067

(1) We consider a development project to be stabiliggoh the earlier of the original projected stahifian date or the date such project
least 95% occupiet

Conservative and Flexible Balance SheetWe are committed to maintaining a conservative #fexible balance sheet that allows u
capitalize on favorable development and acquisitbgportunities as they arise. We expect to meet shart- and londgerm liquidity
requirements through a combination of any one arenof:

e cash flow from operating activitie
e Dborrowings under our credit facilitie

e the issuance of unsecured debt;



o theissuance of secured debt;
o the issuance of equity securities or partnershigrésts by the Company and the Operating Partqensspectively;
o the selective disposition of n-core land and other assets; i

e private equity capital raised from unrelated joiehture partners involving the sale or contributadrour Wholly Owned Propertie
development projects or development Iz

Geographic Diversification . We do not believe that our operations are sigaiftly dependent upon any particular geographidet.
Today, including our various joint ventures, ourtfmio consists primarily of office and industriptoperties throughout the Southeast, r
and office properties in Kansas City, Missouri,lirding one significant mixed retail and office pesty, and office properties in Des Moir
lowa.

Competition

Our properties compete for tenants with similamemties located in our markets primarily on theida$ location, rent, services provic
and the design and condition of the facilities. ¥¥& compete with other REITSs, financial institao pension funds, partnerships, indivic
investors and others when attempting to acquireglde and operate properties.

Employees
As of December 31, 2007, we had 461 employees.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our securities involves variowsksi. All investors should carefully consider thédiwing risk factors in conjunction wi
the other information contained in this Annual Retfoefore trading in our securities. If any of thesks actually occur, our business, oper:
results, prospects and financial condition couldhéaemed.

Our performance is subject to risks associated witlreal estate investment We are a real estate company that derives mosti
income from the ownership and operation of our prtps. There are a number of factors that may radlye affect the income that ¢
properties generate, including the following:

e Economic Downturns. Downturns in the national economy, particularlythie Southeast, generally will negatively impet teman
and rental rates for our properti

e Oversupply of Space. An oversupply of space in our markets would tgfliccause rental rates and occupancies to dectia&ing i
more difficult for us to lease space at attractimetal rates

o Competitive Properties. If our properties are not as attractive to tesdim terms of rent, services, condition or loca}ias propertie
owned by our competitors, we could lose tenanthdee properties or receive lower rental re

e Renovation Costs. In order to maintain the quality of our propestend successfully compete against other propewieperiodicall
must spend money to maintain, repair and renovat@mperties

e Customer Risk. Our performance depends on our ability to colteat from our customers. Our financial conditi@uld be adverse
affected by financial difficulties experienced bymaajor customer, or by a number of smaller custsmercluding bankruptcie
insolvencies or general downturns in busin

e Reletting Costs. As leases expire, we try to either relet the spacthe existing customer or attract a new custadmeccupy th
space. In either case, we may incur significantscaos the process, including potentially substdrtgaant improvement expense
lease incentives. In addition, if market rents heeelined since the time the expiring lease waswee, the terms of any new le
likely will not be as



favorable to us as the terms of the expiring lettsgeby reducing the rental revenue earned frangpace.

e Regulatory Costs. There are a number of government regulationdudieg zoning, tax and accessibility laws, that lgpi the
ownership and operation of our properties. Compkawith existing and newly adopted regulations meuire us to incur significa
costs on our propertie

¢ Rising Operating Costs. Costs of operating our properties, such as retakte taxes, utilities, insurance, maintenancecdhner cost:
can rise faster than our ability to increase reimebme. While we do receive some additional reomf our tenants that is based
recovering a portion of operating expenses, gelyeiradreased operating expenses will negativelyantpur net operating incon
Our revenues and expense recoveries are subjectger term leases and may not be quickly increaséfitient to recover an incre:
in operating costs and expens

e Fixed Nature of Costs. Most of the costs associated with owning and ajiey a property are not necessarily reduced '
circumstances such as market factors and compettose a reduction in rental revenues from thegstg. Increases in such fix
operating expenses, such as increased real estatedr insurance costs, would reduce our net iac

e« Environmental Problems. Federal, state and local laws and regulatioregingl to the protection of the environment may rexjg
current or previous owner or operator of real prop® investigate and clean up hazardous or temlestances or petroleum proc
releases at the property. The clean up can beycdsie presence of or failure to clean up contationamay adversely affect ¢
ability to sell or lease a property or to borrowmdig using a property as collate!

o Competition . A number of other major real estate investorshvgiignificant capital compete with us. These coiibqet include
publicly-traded REITSs, private REITS, private real estatedtors and private institutional investment fur

Future acquisitions and development properties mayfail to perform in accordance with our expectationsand may require
renovation and development costs exceeding our esfites.In the normal course of business, we typically eatd potential acquisitior
enter into norbinding letters of intent, and may, at any timeteeinto contracts to acquire additional properti@sr acquisition investmetr
may fail to perform in accordance with our expeota due to lease up risk, renovation cost riskb @ther factors. In addition, the renova
and improvement costs we incur in bringing an asgliproperty up to market standards may exceedestimates. We may not have
financial resources to make suitable acquisitian®oovations on favorable terms or at all.

In addition to acquisitions, we periodically coraiddeveloping and constructing properties. Risksoeated with development &
construction activities include:

o the unavailability of favorable financin
e construction costs exceeding original estime
e construction and lea-up delays resulting in increased debt service esgpand construction costs; &

o lower than anticipated occupancy rates and rendgsrewly completed property causing a propertyeaibprofitable or less profitat
than originally estimatec

If new developments are financed through constoadthans, there is a risk that, upon completionafstruction, permanent financing
newly developed properties will not be availablendlt be available only on disadvantageous termavélopment activities are also subjec
risks relating to our ability to obtain, or delapsobtaining, all necessary zoning, laanse, building, occupancy and other required goverta
and utility company authorizations.

llliquidity of real estate investments and the taxeffect of dispositions could significantly impede wr ability to sell assets or t
respond to favorable or adverse changes in the perfimance of our properties.Because real estate investments are relativetyuidi ou
ability to promptly sell one or more propertiesour



portfolio in response to changing economic, finah@nd investment conditions is limited. In additiove have a significant amount
mortgage debt under which we could incur signiftcarepayment penalties if such loans were paidiroftonnection with the sale of 1
underlying real estate assets. Such loans, ewassifmed by a buyer rather than being paid off,dcreduce the sale proceeds we receive
sold such assets.

We intend to continue to sell some of our propsriiethe future. However, we cannot predict whethemill be able to sell any prope
for the price or on the terms set by us, or whethemprice or other terms offered by a prospegtwehaser would be acceptable to us. We
cannot predict the length of time needed to fidling purchaser and to close the sale of a prigper

Certain of our properties have low tax bases rndatd their estimated current fair values, and ediogly, the sale of such assets wc
generate significant taxable gains unless we sadth properties in a tafkee exchange under Section 1031 of the InternaeRge Code «
another tax-free or tax-deferred transaction. Foexchange to qualify for tadeferred treatment under Section 1031, the netepasfrom th
sale of a property must be held by an escrow agstilt applied toward the purchase of real estatalifying for gain deferral. Given tl
competition for properties meeting our investmeriteda, there could be a delay in reinvesting syechceeds. Any delay in using
reinvestment proceeds to acquire additional incprmducing assets would reduce our income from dio@is

In addition, the sale of certain properties acgline the J.C. Nichols Company merger in July 19@8Juding assets acquired
connection with Section 1031 exchanges with prigerbriginally acquired in the J.C. Nichols Compangrger, would require us to
corporate-level tax under Section 1374 of the hdkRevenue Code on the built-gain relating to such properties unless we saldt
properties in a tax-free exchange under Sectiori Dd3he Internal Revenue Code or another tax-dreiax-deferred transaction. This tax v
no longer apply after July 2008 because we willhawned the assets for 10 years or more. As atresalmay choose not to sell th
properties even if management determines that awsette would otherwise be in the best interestaipktockholders. We have no current p
to dispose of any properties in a manner that woedgiire us to pay corporatevel tax under Section 1374. However, we wouldsoder doini
so if our management determines that a sale obgepty would be in our best interests based onideretion of a number of factors, includ
the price being offered for the property, the opircaperformance of the property, the tax conseqeerof the sale and other factors
circumstances surrounding the proposed sale.

Because holders of our Common Units, including som&f our officers and directors, may suffer adverséax consequences upon tl
sale of some of our properties, it is possible thate may sometimes make decisions that are not inyobest interest. Holders of Commc
Units may suffer adverse tax consequences uporsalarof certain properties. Therefore, holders ofm@on Units, including certain of ¢
officers and directors, may have different objeesithan our stockholders regarding the approppdténg and timing of a property’sale
Although we are the sole general partner of ther&jpg Partnership and have the exclusive authaatgell all of our individual Wholl
Owned Properties, officers and directors who habn@on Units may seek to influence us not to setia@® properties even if such sale m
be financially advantageous to stockholders owuarice us to enter into tax deferred exchanges th@tproceeds of such sales when st
reinvestment might not otherwise be financially athageous to stockholders.

The success of our joint venture activity dependspon our ability to work effectively with financially sound partners.Instead ¢
owning properties directly, we have in some casgested, and may continue to invest, as a partnaranventurer with one or more th
parties. Under certain circumstances, this typmwéstment may involve risks not otherwise presgrduding the possibility that a partner
co-venturer might become bankrupt or that a parmeroventurer might have business interests or goatsnsistent with ours. Also, sucl
partner or co-venturer may take action contrarguorequests or contrary to provisions in our jei@tture agreements that could harm us.

In addition, some of our joint ventures are managed day to day basis by our partners, and we babelimited influence on the
operating decisions. The success of our investrniertteose joint ventures is heavily dependent andperating and financial expertise of
partners.

If we want to sell our interests in any of our fouentures or believe that the properties in thietjeenture should be sold, we may no
able to do so in a timely manner or at all, andgantner(s) may not cooperate with our desiresciwhould harm us.
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Our insurance coverage on our properties may be irdequate.We carry comprehensive insurance on all of our @rigs, includin
insurance for liability, fire, windstorms, floodaghquakes and business interruption. Insurancepaanies, however, limit coverage aga
certain types of losses, such as losses due tristracts, named windstorms, earthquakes and togid. Thus, we may not have insurs
coverage, or sufficient insurance coverage, agaiedain types of losses and/or there may be dseseim the insurance coverage availi
Should an uninsured loss or a loss in excess ofimawred limits occur, we could lose all or a pamtiof the capital we have invested i
property or properties, as well as the anticipdtedre revenue from the property or propertiesarlf/ of our properties were to experien:
catastrophic loss, it could disrupt our operatiateday revenue and result in large expenses tarrepeaebuild the property. Such events c«
adversely affect our financial condition. Our exigtproperty, casualty and liability insurance pi@s are scheduled to expire on June 30, 2008

Our use of debt to finance our operations could hay a material adverse effect on our cash flow and dity to make distributions.
We are subject to risks normally associated witht dmancing, such as the sufficiency of cash flmvmeet required payment obligatic
ability to comply with financial ratios and otheowenants and the availability of capital to refioarexisting indebtedness or fund impor
business initiatives. Increases in interest rateowr variable rate debt would increase our inteegpense. If we fail to comply with t
financial ratios and other covenants under ouritfedilities, we would likely not be able to bowaany further amounts under such facilit
which could adversely affect our ability to fundrayperations, and our lenders could acceleratéandsg debt.

We generally do not intend to reserve funds taeetiisting secured or unsecured debt upon matuifiy may not be able to rep
refinance or extend any or all of our debt at migtwor upon any acceleration. If any refinancingl@ne at higher interest rates, the incre
interest expense could adversely affect our cash #ind ability to pay dividends to stockholders.yAsuch refinancing could also impi
tighter financial ratios and other covenants tleatrict our ability to take actions that could athise be in our stockholderbest interest, su
as funding new development activity, making oppaigtic acquisitions, repurchasing our securitiepaying dividends. If we do not meet
mortgage financing obligations, any properties sagusuch indebtedness could be foreclosed on,iwticild have a material adverse effec
our cash flow and ability to pay dividends.

We may be subject to taxation as a regular corporan if we fail to maintain our REIT status . Our failure to qualify as a REIT 1
income tax purposes would have serious adverseeqaesaces to our stockholders. Many of the requingsrfer taxation as a REIT are hig
technical and complex and depend upon various dhobatters and circumstances that may not be gntiriéhin our control. For example,
qualify as a REIT, at least 95.0% of our gross imeamust come from certain sources that are itemizeatle REIT tax laws. We are a
required to pay dividends to stockholders equalttleast 90.0% of our annual REIT taxable inconxe|ugling capital gains. The fact that
hold virtually all of our assets through the OpiegtPartnership and its subsidiaries further coospéis the application of the RE
requirements. Even a technical or inadvertent rkésteould jeopardize our REIT status. Furthermorendgtess and the Internal Reve
Service (“IRS")might change the tax laws and regulations and ¢hete might issue new rulings that make it mordidift, or impossible, fc
us to remain qualified as a REIT. If we fail to tifyaas a REIT, we would be subject to federal atate income taxes at regular corporate 1
Also, unless the IRS granted us relief under cers&tutory provisions, we would remain disquatifeess a REIT for four years following 1
year we first failed to qualify. If we failed to glify as a REIT, we would have to pay significamtdme taxes and would, therefore, have
cash available for investments or to pay dividetwlstockholders. This would likely have a signifitadverse effect on the value of
securities. In addition, if we lost our REIT stgtu® would no longer be required to pay divideraistockholders.

Because provisions contained in Maryland law, ourttarter and our bylaws may have an antitakeover effect, investors may t
prevented from receiving a “control premium” for th eir shares.Provisions contained in our charter and bylaws el as Maryland genet
corporation law may have antikeover effects that delay, defer or prevent adakr attempt, and thereby prevent stockholders fiexeiving
“control premium”for their shares. For example, these provisions defgr or prevent tender offers for our Common Stoc purchases
large blocks of our Common Stock, thus limiting gmportunities for our stockholders to receive empium for their Common Stock over then-
prevailing market prices. These provisions incltiaefollowing:

e Ownership limit . Our charter prohibits direct, indirect or constive ownership by any person or entity of morentl8a8% of ou
outstanding capital stock. Any attempt to own ansfer shares of our capital stock in excess obteership limit without the conse
of our Board of Directors will be voir



Preferred Stock . Our charter authorizes our Board of Directorssgue Preferred Stock in one or more classes aedtéblish th
preferences and rights of any class of PreferredkSssued. These actions can be taken withoukistdder approval. The issuance
Preferred Stock could have the effect of delayingreventing someone from taking control of us,reifea change in control were
our stockholder' best interest

Staggered board. Our Board of Directors is divided into three sles. As a result, each director generally servea thre-year ternr
This staggering of our Board may discourage offersis or make an acquisition of us more difficelien when an acquisition is in
best interest of our stockholde

Maryland control share acquisition statute. Maryland's control share acquisition statute applies towksch means that perso
entities or related groups that acquire more tHa@ »f our Common Stock may not be able to vote saess shares under cer
circumstances if such shares were acquired in omaooe transactions not approved by at leastttvirals of our outstanding Comm
Stock held by disinterested stockholdt

Maryland unsolicited takeover statute.Under Maryland law, our Board of Directors couldoptlvarious an-takeover provisior
without the consent of stockholders. The adoptibeuzh measures could discourage offers for usakenan acquisition of us me
difficult, even when an acquisition is in the bierest of our stockholder

Anti -takeover protections of Operating Partnership agrement . Upon a change in control of the Company, thetéohipartnersh
agreement of the Operating Partnership requiresineacquirers to maintain an umbrella partnergieipl estate investment tr
(“UPREIT”) structure with terms at least as favorable to itmitéd partners as are currently in place. Forainsg, the acquirer wot
be required to preserve the limited partner’s rightontinue to hold tageferred partnership interests that are redeenfableapita
stock of the acquirer. Exceptions would require approval of twathirds of the limited partners of the OperatingtRarship (othe
than the Company). These provisions may make agehaficontrol transaction involving the Company enoomplicated and thereft
might decrease the likelihood of such a transaaticourring, even if such a transaction would béhbest interest of the Compasay’
stockholders

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Wholly Owned Properties
As of December 31, 2007, we owned all of the owmiprinterests in 311 iservice office, industrial and retail propertiescempassin

approximately 26.6 million rentable square feetd 409 rental residential units. The following taklkets forth information about our Whc
Owned Properties (including properties classifisdheld for sale) and our development propertiesf &cember 31, 2007 and 2006:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Percent Percent
Rentable Leased/ Rentable Leased/
Square Feet Pre-Leased Square Feet Pre-Leased
In-Service:
Office (1) 19,260,00 91.1%  19,244,00 89.(%
Industrial 6,036,00! 94.2 6,281,001 91.7
Retail(2) 1,317,001 94.¢ 1,327,00i 95.7
Total or Weighted Average 26,613,00(3) 92.09% __ 26,852,003 90.0(%
Development:
Completec—Not Stabilized (4)
Office (1) 607,00( 75.% 504,00( 62.8%
Industrial 681,00( 78.2 418,00( 44.C
Total or Weighted Average 1,288,001 77.1% 922,00( 54.%04
In Process(7)
Office (1) 887,00( 59.€% 1,357,001 55.2%
Industrial — — 383,00( —
Retail 30,00( 100.(C — —
For Sale Residentia) 139 unit: — _ _
Total or Weighted Average 917,00( 61.2% 1,740,001 43.10
Total:
Office (1) 20,754,000 21,105,00
Industrial 6,717,00! 7,082,001
Retail(2) 1,347,001 1,327,000
Total or Weighted Average(3), (5), (6) 28,818,00 29,514,00

(1) Substantially all of our office properties are Itazhin suburban market
(2) Excludes 428,000 square feet of basement spabe i@duntry Club Plaza and other Kansas City rptaiperties
(3) Rentable square feet excludes the 109 residemtits.

(4) We consider a development project to be stabiliggoh the earlier of the original projected stahifian date or the date such project
least 95% occupiet

(5) In January 2007, we executed a joint venture ageeéffor this development. We now have a 93% intemad we consolidate this jo
venture. Because of the 93% ownership level, wiidecthis consolidated residential developmenthim above table of Wholly Own
Properties. As of December 31, 2007, binding saletracts had been executed for all 139 residentaidominiums. $3.9 million
deposits related to these contracts, which arerafumdable unless we default in our obligation &biver the units, had been recei
These residential units are not part of th-Process total or weighted average for square fekpe-leasing percentag

(6) Excludes 618,000 square feet of office propertiesnfthe following joint venture properties that aensolidated but are not Whc
Owned Properties: (1) one office property that wakl to SFHIW Harborview Plaza, LP, a 20% owned joint venfupet which i
accounted for as a financing under SFAS No. 66 ctanting for Sales of Real Estate (“SFAS No. 6@f)d thus remains consolidatec
described in Note 3 to the Consolidated Finandiateésnents, and (2) four office properties ownedighwoodsMarkel Associates, LL(
a 50% owned joint venture, which is consolidateditneing January 1, 2006, as described in Notesdl2ato the Consolidated Financ
Statements
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(7) We consider development properties held by the 88fted consolidated joint venture with Real Estateange Services (“REES 3¢
described in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financiate®nents, to be Wholly Owned Properties becauisepitobable that we will exerci
our purchase option in the future and own 100%efgdroperties

The following table sets forth geographic and oth&srmation about our in service Wholly Owned Redfes at December 31, 2007:

Rentable Percentage of Annualized Cash Rental Revenue (1)
Market Square Feet Occupancy Office Industrial Retail Total
Raleigh, NC2) 3,554,00! 91.5% 15.4% — — 15.48%
Atlanta, GA 5,289,00! 93.C 9.7 3.8% — 13.t
Kansas City, MC@3) 2,215,001 89.4 4.4 — 9.5% 13.€
Tampa, FL 2,418,001 95.C 13.t — — 13.t
Nashville, TN 3,184,00! 95.1 13.c — — 13.c
Piedmont Triad, N(() 5,328,00! 89.2 6.8 3.9 — 10.7
Richmond, VA 2,134,001 92.t 8.9 — — 8.¢
Memphis, TN 1,276,001 94.¢ 5.8 — — 5.8
Greenville, SC 897,00( 85.¢ 3.3 — — 3.3
Orlando, FL 218,00( 100.( 1.3 — — 1.3
Other 100,00( 69.€ 0.4 — — 0.4
Total () 26,613,00 92.(o 82.u 7.7 9.5 100.(0s

(1) Annualized Cash Rental Revenue is cash rental tev@lmase rent plus additional rent based on thel t#voperating expenses, excluc
straigh-line rent) for the month of December 2007 multigley 12.

(2) The Raleigh market encompasses the Raleigh, DurBany,and Research Triangle metropolitan &
(3) Excludes 428,000 square feet of basement spabe i@duntry Club Plaza and other Kansas City rptaiperties
(4) The Piedmont Triad market encompasses the GreemahdrWinsto-Salem metropolitan are

(5) Excludes 618,000 square feet of office propertiesnfthe following joint venture properties that arensolidated but are not Whc
Owned Properties: (1) one office property that wakl to SFHIW Harborview Plaza, LP, a 20% owned joint venfupet which i
accounted for as a financing under SFAS No. 66 thnd remains consolidated as described in Note th@oConsolidated Financ
Statements, and (2) four office properties ownedHighwoodsMarkel Associates, LLC, a 50% owned joint ventwvljch is consolidate
beginning January 1, 2006, as described in Notesd12 to the Consolidated Financial Stateme

Development Land

We wholly owned 634 acres of development land aBexfember 31, 2007. We estimate that we can dewappoximately 7.6 millio
square feet of office and industrial space on thgraximately 493 acres that we consider core |l@mmtholdings for our future developm
needs. Our development land is zoned and avaifableffice and industrial development, and neatlyofthe land has utility infrastructure
place. We believe that our commercially zoned amehaumbered land in existing business parks gises development advantage over ¢
commercial real estate development companies inyroérour markets. Any future development, howeverdependent on the demand
office and industrial space in the area, the apditp of favorable financing and other factors,dano assurance can be given that
construction will take place on the developmentldn addition, if construction is undertaken oe ttevelopment land, we will be subjec
the risks associated with construction activitiesjuding the risks that occupancy rates and raht@ newly completed property may no
sufficient to make the property profitable, constion costs may exceed original estimates and onget&in and leasep may not be complet
on schedule, resulting in increased debt servigeeese and construction expense. We may also deyetgerties other than office
industrial on certain parcels with unrelated joirgnture partners. We consider approximately 14ksa@f our development land
December 31, 2007 to be noore assets because this land is not necessaufoforeseeable future development needs. We diecky
working to dispose of such non-core developmend through sales to other parties or contributiongiat ventures. Approximately 40 ac
with a net book value of $10.5 million are undentract to be sold and are included in “Real estai# other assets, net, held for safebul
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007.
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Other Properties

As of December 31, 2007, we owned an interest 600 less) in 67 irservice properties. These properties include pilynaffice anc
industrial buildings encompassing approximately miBion rentable square feet and 418 rental regidéunits. The following table sets fo
information about the stabilized in-service joieiture properties by segment and by geographititecat December 31, 2007:

Rentable Percentage of Annualized Cash Rental Revenue (1)
Square Multi-
Market Feet QOccupancy Office Industrial Retail Family Total

Des Moines, |A 2,505,00i2) 92.%% (3) 28.71% 4.3% 1.C% 3.2% 37.2%
Orlando, FL 1,853,001 91.2 29.1 — — — 29.1
Atlanta, GA 835,00( 97.2 12.1 — — — 12.1
Kansas City, MC 714,00( 83.C 8.2 — — — 8.2
Richmond, VA(@) 413,00( 100.C 5.C — — — 5.C
Piedmont Triad, N(5) 364,00( 96.¢ 34 — — — 34
Tampa, FL) 205,00( 98.¢ 2.C — — — 2.C
Raleigh, NC(7) 178,00( 100.¢ 1.€ — — — 1.€
Charlotte, NC 148,00( 100.¢ 0.8 — — — 0.8
Other 110,00( 100.( 0.5 — — — 0.5
Total 7,325,001 93.00s 91.404 4.3, 1.Coy 3.3 100.(0

(1) Annualized Cash Rental Revenue is cash rental tev@émase rent plus additional rent based on thel t#voperating expenses, excluc
straigh-line rent) for the month of December 2007 multigley 12.

(2) Excludes 418 residential uni
(3) Excludes residential occupancy percentage of 95

(4) We own a 50.0% interest in this joint venture (HiglodsMarkel Associates, LLC) which is consolidated ($¢stes 1 and 2 to tl
Consolidated Financial Statemen

(5) The Piedmont Triad market encompasses the GreemahdrWinsto-Salem metropolitan are

(6) We own a 20.0% interest in this joint venture (3l Harborview Plaza, LP) which is consolidatedg($éotes 1 and 3 to the Consolid:
Financial Statements

(7) The Raleigh market encompasses the Raleigh, Dur@any,and Research Triangle metropolitan &
Lease Expirations

The following tables set forth scheduled lease matjpins for existing leases at our in-service anthpleted —not stabilized Wholl
Owned Properties (excluding residential units) &ecember 31, 2007. The tables include (1) expinat of leases in properties that
completed but not yet stabilized and (2) the effeftany early renewals exercised by tenants &soémber 31, 2007.
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Office Properties(1):

Percentage Percent of
of Leased Annualized Average Annualized
Rentable Square Cash Rental Annual Cash Rental
Square Feet Footage Revenue Rental Rate Revenue
Subject to Represented Under Per Square Represented
Expiring by Expiring Expiring Foot for by Expiring
Lease Expiring Leases Leases Leases (2) Expirations Leases (2)
($ in thousands)
2008(3) 1,880,41! 10.6% $ 36,17: % 19.2¢ 10.6%
2009 2,286,37! 12.€ 45,36¢ 19.8¢ 13.:
2010 2,459,05! 13.€ 51,75: 21.0¢ 15.2
2011 2,623,73l 14.7 50,52« 19.2¢ 14.¢
2012 2,284,52. 12.€ 46,37: 20.3( 13.€
2013 1,316,69: 7.4 24,70 18.7¢ 7.3
2014 1,320,511 7.4 22,12¢ 16.7¢ 6.5
2015 962,43: 54 19,30: 20.0¢ 5.7
2016 740,35 4.2 13,73¢ 18.5¢ 4.C
2017 934,67 5.3 17,957 19.21 5.3
Thereafter 979,69t 5.5 12,38( 12.6¢ 3.6
17,788,46. 100.(op, $ 340,39( $ 19.1¢ 100.(04
Industrial Properties:
Percentage Percent of
of Leased Annualized Average Annualized
Rentable Square Cash Rental Annual Cash Rental
Square Feet Footage Revenue Rental Rate Revenue
Subject to Represented Under Per Square Represented
Expiring by Expiring Expiring Foot for by Expiring
Lease Expiring Leases Leases Leases (2) Expirations Leases (2)
($ in thousands)
2008(4) 632,19t 10.2% $ 3,46 $ 5.4¢ 11.(%
2009 1,114,53! 17.¢ 5,88: 5.2¢ 18.7
2010 834,51: 13.4 4,37¢ 5.2¢ 13.€
2011 1,061,88: 17.1 5,28¢ 4.9¢ 16.7
2012 427,63¢ 6.9 2,462 5.7¢ 7.8
2013 442,63¢ 7.1 2,48( 5.6( 7.9
2014 414,46 6.7 1,78¢ 4.31 5.7
2015 271,38 4.4 98: 3.62 3.1
2016 264,597 4.3 991 3.7¢ 3.1
2017 149,60( 24 722 4.8 2.3
Thereafter 604,64( 9.7 3,10z 5.1t 9.8
6,218,08. 100.(op, $ 31,53:¢ $ 5.07 100. (o4

(1) Excludes the following joint venture propertiestthee consolidated but are not Wholly Owned Praggr(1) one office property that v
sold to SFHIW Harborview Plaza, LP, a 20% owned joint venturet which is accounted for as a financing undeAS No. 66 and tht
remains consolidated as described in Note 3 tcCmsolidated Financial Statements and (2) foucceffiroperties owned by Highwoods-
Markel Associates, LLC, a 50% owned joint ventuvlijch is consolidated beginning January 1, 200@jessribed in Notes 1 and 2 to
Consolidated Financial Statemer

(2) Annualized Cash Rental Revenue is cash rental tevéimase rent plus additional rent based on thal l&voperating expenses, excluc
straigh-line rent) for the month of December 2007 multigley 12.

(3) Includes 53,000 square feet of leases that arenoondt-to-month basis, which represent 0.3% of total annedlizash rental revent

(4) Includes 61,000 square feet of leases that are morgh-tomonth basis, which represent less than 0.1% of #&taualized cash ren
revenue
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Retail Properties:

Percentage Percent of
of Leased Annualized Average Annualized
Rentable Square Cash Rental Annual Cash Rental
Square Feet Footage Revenue Rental Rate Revenue
Subject to Represented Under Per Square Represented
Expiring by Expiring Expiring Foot for by Expiring
Lease Expiring Leases Leases Leases (1) Expirations Leases (1)
($ in thousands)
2008(2) 108,59¢ 8.7% $ 2,69:¢ 24.8( 6.9%
2009 130,48’ 10.4 4,11: 31.52 10.5
2010 96,25¢ 7.7 3,76¢ 39.11 9.6
2011 58,70z 4.7 1,89¢ 32.2¢ 4.9
2012 165,97¢ 13.Z 5,04: 30.3¢ 12.¢
2013 69,29¢ 5.5 2,601 37.5:% 6.7
2014 97,97¢ 7.8 2,21¢ 22.6¢ 5.7
2015 147,33¢ 11.€ 4,55¢ 30.92 11.7
2016 65,52¢ 5.2 2,63¢ 40.27 6.8
2017 110,42( 8.8 2,78 25.1¢ 7.1
Thereafter 200,33t 16.1 6,73( 33.5¢ 17.2
1,250,91. 100.(op, $ 39,03¢ 31.2( 100.(o4
Total (3):
Percentage Percent of
of Leased Annualized Average Annualized
Rentable Square Cash Rental Annual Cash Rental
Square Feet Footage Revenue Rental Rate Revenue
Subject to Represented Under Per Square Represented
Expiring by Expiring Expiring Foot for by Expiring
Lease Expiring Leases Leases Leases (1) Expirations Leases (1)
($ in thousands)
2008(4) 2,621,21. 10.6 $ 42,32¢ 16.1¢ 10.2%
2009 3,531,39 14.C 55,36( 15.6¢ 13.5
2010 3,389,82: 13.4 59,89: 17.6i 14.7
2011 3,744,31! 14.¢ 57,70« 15.41 14.C
2012 2,878,13l 11.4 53,87 18.7: 13.1
2013 1,828,62! 7.2 29,78« 16.2¢ 7.2
2014 1,832,95: 7.3 26,13 14.2¢ 6.4
2015 1,381,15! 55 24,84: 17.9¢ 6.C
2016 1,070,47 4.2 17,36¢ 16.2: 4.2
2017 1,194,69: 4.7 21,46: 17.9¢ 5.2
Thereafter 1,784,67- 7.1 22,21 12.4¢ 5.4
25,257,45 100.(op, $ 410,95¢ 16.27 100.(04

(1) Annualized Cash Rental Revenue is cash rental tev@mase rent plus additional rent based on thel t#voperating expenses, excluc

straigh-line rent) for the month of December 2007 multigley 12.

(2) Includes 13,000 square feet of leases that arenoondt-to-month basis, which represent 0.1% of total annedlizash rental revent

(3) Excludes the following joint venture propertiestthee consolidated but are not Wholly Owned Praggr(1) one office property that v
sold to SFHIW Harborview Plaza, LP, a 20% owned joint venfuret which is accounted for as a financing undeAS No. 66 and tht
remains consolidated as described in Note 3 tcCmsolidated Financial Statements and (2) fourcceffiroperties owned by Highwoods-
Markel Associates, LLC, a 50% owned joint ventuvlijch is consolidated beginning January 1, 200@jessribed in Notes 1 and 2 to
Consolidated Financial Statemer

(4) Includes 127,000 square feet of leases that asernantli-to-month basis, which represent 0.4% of total annedlizash rental revent



ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are from time to time a party to a variety afdeproceedings, claims and assessments arisitigeinrdinary course of our busine
We regularly assess the liabilities and contingesian connection with these matters based on thstlaformation available. For those mai
where it is probable that we have incurred or witlur a loss and the loss or range of loss carehsonably estimated, the estimated lo
accrued and charged to income in the ConsolidateanEial Statements. In other instances, becaugbeotincertainties related to both
probable outcome and amount or range of loss,sonable estimate of liability, if any, cannot bedmaBased on the current expected outc
of such matters, none of these proceedings, clamassessments is expected to have a material sede#iect on our business, finan
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In 2006 and March 2007, we received assessmentstdte excise taxes and related interest amoutirgpproximately $5.5 millio
related to periods 2002 through 2005. In the fogriarter of 2006, approximately $0.5 million wasraed and charged to operating expe
in anticipation of a probable settlement of thelsénts. We received an executed settlement agreeralkating to these claims in October 2(
which resulted in no change to the amount previoascrued and paid. Legal fees related to thisenatere nominal and were charge:
operating expenses as incurred in 2006 and 2007.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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ITEM X. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth information with pest to our executive officers:

Name

Edward J. Fritsch

Michael E. Harris

Terry L. Stevens

Gene H. Anderson

Age
49

58

59

62

Position and Background

Director, President and Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Fritsch became our chief executive officer @hdir of the investment committee of
our board of directors on July 1, 2004 and ouridesd in December 2003. Prior to that,
Mr. Fritsch was our chief operating officer froondary 1998 to July 2004 and was a
vice president and secretary from June 1994 toatgriip98. Mr. Fritsch joined our
predecessor in 1982 and was a partner of thayexitihe time of our initial public
offering in June 1994. Mr. Fritsch is chairmantod niversity of North Carolina’s
Board of Visitors and also serves on the Board @féenors of the National Association
of Real Estate Investment Trusts, the Board of fEessof St. Timothy’s Episcopal
School and the Board of Directors of the Trianglafter of the YMCA

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Office

Mr. Harris became chief operating officer in JuB0OZ. Prior to that, Mr. Harris was a
senior vice president and was responsible for perations in Memphis, Nashville,
Kansas City and Charlotte. Mr. Harris was execuwiice president of Crocker Realty
Trust prior to its merger with us in 1996. Befooijng Crocker Realty Trust,

Mr. Harris served as senior vice president, gerezrahsel and chief financial officer of
Towermarc Corporation, a privately owned real estitvelopment firm. Mr. Harris is a
member of the Advisory Board of Directors of South§t Bank of Memphis and Allen
& Hoshall, Inc.

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

Prior to joining us in December 2003, Mr. Steveraswxecutive vice president, chief
financial officer and trustee for Crown AmericanaRg Trust, a public REIT. Before
joining Crown American Realty Trust, Mr. Stevenssveirector of financial systems
development at AlliedSignal, Inc., a large multiioaal manufacturer. Mr. Stevens was
also an audit partner with Price Waterhouse for@agmately seven years. Mr. Stevens
currently serves as trustee, chairman of the ADdimhmittee and member of the
Investment and Finance Committee of First Potomealti Trust, a public REIT.

Mr. Stevens is a member of the American and thex®dwania Institutes of Certified
Public Accountants

Director, Senior Vice President and Regional Manage

Mr. Anderson has been a senior vice president sinceombination with Anderson
Properties, Inc. in February 1997, and in July 2686ame Executive Vice President of
Highwoods Development, LLC, a taxable subsidiaryhef Company formed to pursue
the development of office and industrial properf@sexisting customers in core and
non-core markets. Additionally, Mr. Anderson oveseur Atlanta and Triad
operations. Mr. Anderson served as president ofefgwh Properties, Inc. from 1978 to
February 1997. Mr. Anderson was past presiderfte@f3eorgia chapter of the National
Association of Industrial and Office Properties @nd national board member of the
National Association of Industrial and Office Projpes.
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Name

Michael F. Beale

Jeffrey D. Miller

W. Brian Reames

Age
54

37

44

Position and Background

Senior Vice President and Regional Manager.

Mr. Beale manages our Orlando and oversees our dapgrations. Prior to joining us
in 2000, Mr. Beale served as vice president of Ka&tppiity, Inc., where he was
responsible for Koger’s acquisitions and developimémoughout the Southeast.

Mr. Beale is currently the president of the Cenfilakida Chapter of the National
Association of Industrial and Office Properties afgb serves on various committees
for the Mic-Florida Economic Development Commissii

Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary.

Prior to joining us in March 2007, Mr. Miller waspartner with DLA Piper US, LLP,
where he practiced since 2005. Previously, he wastaer with Alston & Bird LLP,
where he practiced from 1997. He is admitted tetira in North Carolina. Mr. Miller
currently serves as director, chairman of the coreggon and governance committee
and member of the audit committee of Hatteras FiigduCorp., a mortgage REI

Senior Vice President and Regional Manager.

Mr. Reames became senior vice president and relgicar@ager in August 2004.

Mr. Reames manages our Nashville and oversees emmp¥is, Greenville and
Columbia operations. Prior to that, Mr. Reames wes president responsible for the
Nashville division, a position he held since 1999. Reames was a partner and owner
at Eakin & Smith, Inc., a Nashville-based officalrestate firm, from 1989 until its
merger with us in 1996. Mr. Reames is a past N#lstohapter President of the
National Association of Industrial and Office Prajpes. He is currently serving on the
Board of Directors of H.G. Hill Realty and the Na#le Zoo and as President of the
Board of Trustees at Harding Academy in Nashvillennessee
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK, RELAT ED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Common Stock is traded on the NYSE under thebsy “HIW.” The following table sets forth the quarterly higiddow stock price
per share reported on the NYSE for the quarteiisateld and the dividends paid per share during guehter.

2007 2006
Quarter Ended High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
March 31 $ 46.9t % 37.9¢ $ 042t $ 3477 $ 29.2C % 0.42¢
June 3( 43.8¢ 37.5C 0.42¢ 36.1¢ 29.5¢ 0.42¢
September 3 39.01 32.0¢ 0.42¢ 38.1¢ 35.3¢ 0.42¢
December 3: 38.2¢ 28.8¢ 0.42¢ 41.31] 36.4(C 0.42¢

On December 31, 2007, the last reported stock pficeir Common Stock on the NYSE was $29.38 pereshad we had 1,179 comn
stockholders of record.

The following stock price performance graph compahe performance of our Common Stock to the S&P, Bte Russell 2000 and
FTSE NAREIT Equity REIT Index. The stock price merhance graph assumes an investment of $100 iCoormon Stock and the thi
indices on December 31, 2002 and further assuneesethvestment of all dividends. Equity REITs aedimed as those that derive more 1
75.0% of their income from equity investments ialrestate assets. The FTSE NAREIT Equity REIT Intheudes all REITSs listed on t
NYSE, the American Stock Exchange or the NASDAQIidi&tl Market System. Stock price performance ismestessarily indicative of fut.
results.

Total Return Performance

300

—a— Hghwoods Properties he.
—m— 52P 500

250 +—  —d— Russell 2000 /\
—%— FTS ENARET Equity REM Index .//\ ﬁ

200

3
£
ﬁ 1560
100
50 t t t t
1263102 1243102 123104 1231/05 123106 123107
Period Ending
Index 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07
Highwoods Properties, In 100.C 124.8¢ 145.9] 159.3( 239.8: 180.67
S&P 500 100.C 128.6¢ 142.6¢ 149.7( 173.3¢ 182.8¢
Russell 200( 100.C 147.2¢ 174.2¢ 182.1¢ 215.6¢ 212.2¢
FTSE NAREIT Equity REIT Inde: 100.C 137.1: 180.4¢ 202.3¢ 273.3¢ 230.4¢

The performance graph is being furnished as pattiiefAnnual Report solely in accordance with teguirement under Rule 1&{b)(9
to furnish our stockholders with such informatiamdatherefore, is not deemed to be filed, or inooaged by reference in any filing, by
Company or the Operating Partnership under theriesuAct of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Aict @34.
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We intend to continue to pay quarterly dividendsédders of shares of Common Stock and make digiobs to holders of Comm
Units. Future dividends and distributions will bettae discretion of the Board of Directors and wiipend on our actual funds from operati
our financial condition, capital requirements, #reual dividend requirements under the REIT prowsiof the Internal Revenue Code
such other factors as the Board of Directors deefesant. See “ManagemesitDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &esults ¢
Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources —Stotdier Dividends.”

During 2007, cash dividends on Common Stock totséi#d’O per share, $0.115 of which represented rretéircapital and $0.8:
represented capital gains for income tax purpoBes.minimum dividend per share of Common Stock iregufor us to maintain our RE
status (excluding any net capital gains) was $@didshare in 2007.

We issued 938 shares of Common Stock on Decemh@0B7 upon the exercise of a like number of stukons at a purchase price
$27.00 per share and 256 shares of Common Stodkegember 28, 2007 upon the exchange of 2,750 siptikns at a purchase price
$27.00 per share. All of such stock options wereedaled to expire on January 25, 2008. Such shaees issued to directors in priv
transactions pursuant to Sections 3(a)(9) andef(#)e Securities Act of 1933.

We have a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock PurcRéae under which holders of Common Stock may dle@utomatically reinve
their dividends in additional shares of Common Btand may make optional cash payments for additishares of Common Stock. 1
administrator of the Dividend Reinvestment and ktBarchase Plan has been instructed by us to medbammon Stock in the open ma
for purposes of satisfying our obligations thereemdHowever, we may in the future elect to sat&fgh obligations by issuing additional sh.
of Common Stock.

We have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan for alveaetmployees, under which participants may couatdbup to 25.0% of the
compensation for the purchase of Common Stock. Gépneat the end of each three-month offering p&rieach participarg’account balan
is applied to acquire newly issued shares of ComBtoek at a cost that is calculated at 85.0% ofdher of the average closing price on
NYSE on the five consecutive days preceding tret flay of the quarter or the five days precedirglaist day of the quarte

Information about our equity compensation plans athetr related stockholder matters is incorpordtectin by reference to our Prc
Statement to be filed in connection with our anmaakting of stockholders to be held on May 15, 2008

20



ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data as of Decendide 2007 and 2006 and for each of the three y#&arthe period ende
December 31, 2007 is derived from our audited Clistested Financial Statements included elsewhereihehe selected financial data a
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 and for eacheofwb years in the period ended December 31, 28Qtkiived from previously issu
financial statements and, as required by SFAS M4, 1Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal afig-Lived Assets,” (“SFAS No. 144"
results and balance sheet data for the years ddeeeimber 31, 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were régdasBom previously reported amou
to reflect in discontinued operations the operatifor those properties sold or held for sale in2@@ich qualified for discontinued operatir
presentation. The information in the following tatdhould be read in conjunction with our auditech€bdidated Financial Statements
related notes included herein ($ in thousands,pbper share data):

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Rental and other revenues $ 437,05¢ $ 409,27 $ 387,92¢ $ 381,59: $ 406,52
Income from continuing operations $ 55,39t $ 36,67¢ $ 29,75¢ % 18,44¢ $ 5,09:
Income/(loss) from continuing operations

available for common stockholders $ 39,631 $ 17,81C $ (1,750 $ (12,40) $ (25,759
Net income $ 90,74 $ 53,74¢ $ 62,45¢ $ 41577 $ 42,64¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 74,98: $ 34,87¢ $ 30,94¢ % 10,728 $ 11,797
Net income per common share — basic:
Income/(loss) from continuing operatic $ 0.7¢ $ 03: $ (0.09 $ (029 $ (0.49)
Net income $ 13 $ 064 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.2 $ 0.2Z
Net income per common share — diluted:
Income/(loss) from continuing operatic $ 0.6 $ 03z $ (0.09) $ 029 $ (0.49)
Net income $ 131 $ 06z $ 0.5¢ $ 02C $ 0.2z
Dividends declared per common share $ 1.7C $ 1.7C $ 1.7C $ 1.7C $ 1.8¢€

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Balance Sheet Data:

Total asset $ 2,926,95! $ 2,84485 $ 2,908,97: $ 3,239,65! $ 3,513,22.
Total mortgage and notes paya $ 1,641,98 $ 1,465,12' $ 1,471,610 $ 157257 $ 1,718,27.
Financing obligation $ 35,07 $ 3553( $ 34,15 % 65,30¢ $ 125,77
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and arialys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidiaténancial Statements ¢
related notes contained elsewhere in this AnnupbRe

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the information in this Annual Report maytain forwardlooking statements. Such statements include, iticodar, statemen
about our plans, strategies and prospects undeséution and under the heading "Business." Youidemtify forwardiooking statements |
our use of forward-looking terminology such as "pidwill,” "expect,” "anticipate,” "estimate,” tontinue" or other similar words. Althou
we believe that our plans, intentions and expemtatreflected in or suggested by such forwlaaking statements are reasonable, we c:
assure you that our plans, intentions or expectatiwill be achieved. When considering such forwlaaking statements, you should kee

mind the following important factors that could sauour actual results to differ materially from ghocontained in any forwatdeking
statement:

e Speculative development activity by our competitorsour existing markets could result in an exossssupply of office
industrial and retail properties relative to tend@tmand

o the financial condition of our tenants could detmte;

e We may not be able to complete development, adprisireinvestment, disposition or joint ventur@jpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipate

e We may not be able to lease or release space yuckin as favorable terms as old leases;
e increases in interest rates would increase our sklice costs;

e We may not be able to meet our liquidity requiretaear obtain capital on favorable terms, if at &l fund our working capit
needs and growth initiatives or to repay or refoeoutstanding debt upon maturi

e Wwe could lose key executive officers; and
e our southeastern and midwestern markets may siéfdines in economic growt

This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also wevhe other cautionary statements
make in “Business — Risk Factors” set forth in thimual Report.

Given these uncertainties, you should not placeuen@liance on forwartboking statements. We undertake no obligation ubliply
release the results of any revisions to these fiahdemking statements to reflect any future eventsimmumstances or to reflect the occurre
of unanticipated events.

OVERVIEW

We are a fully integrated, self-administered arlét semnaged equity REIT that provides leasing, managgndevelopment, constructi

and other customer-related services for our pragseend for third parties. As of December 31, 260&,0wned or had an interest in 378 i

service office, industrial and retail propertiescempassing approximately 33.9 million square #eet 527 rental residential units. As of
date, we also owned development land and othereptiep under development as described under “Bssirend “Propertiesabove. We al
based in Raleigh, North Carolina, and our propgeied development land are located in Florida, @aptowa, Kansas, Maryland, Mississij
Missouri, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessse Virginia.
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Results of Operations

Approximately 82% of our rental and other revermaanf continuing operations in 2007 was derived fiaum office properties. As a resi
while we own and operate a limited number of indaktretail and residential properties, our op@atesults depend heavily on success
leasing and operating our office properties. Furtteee, since approximately 80% of our annualizegtnees from office properties come fi
properties located in Florida, Georgia, North Ciasoland Tennessee, economic growth in those stagsd will continue to be an import
determinative factor in predicting our future opirg results.

The key components affecting our rental revenueastr are dispositions, acquisitions, new developseldced in service, aver:
occupancy and rental rates. Average occupancy génancreases during times of improving economiovgth, as our ability to lease sp.
outpaces vacancies that occur upon the expiratbexisting leases. Average occupancy generalljirte during times of slower econor
growth, when new vacancies tend to outpace ouityabil lease space. Asset acquisitions, dispostamd new developments placed in sel
directly impact our rental revenues and could impag average occupancy, depending upon the occypate of the properties that
acquired, sold or placed in service. A further aador of the predictability of future revenueshs txpected lease expirations of our portf
As a result, in addition to seeking to increase awgrage occupancy by leasing current vacant speeelso must concentrate our lea
efforts on renewing leases on expiring space. Faerimformation regarding our lease expirations, ‘$&roperties — Lease Expirations.”

Whether or not our rental revenue tracks averagepancy proportionally depends upon whether rentieunew leases signed are hi
or lower than the rents under the previous leaBes.average rental rate per square foot on secenergtion renewal and relet leases sign
our Wholly Owned Properties compared to the reneunhe previous leases (based on straight linalrestes) was 5.2% higher in 2007, 2
higher in 2006 and 2.2% lower in 2005. The annedlizental revenues from second generation leagesdsiduring any particular yeal
generally less than 15% of our total annual rersaénues.

Our expenses primarily consist of rental properyemses, depreciation and amortization, generahdnministrative expenses and inte
expense. Rental property expenses are expensesatsdavith our ownership and operation of rentalperties and include expenses that
somewhat proportionately to occupancy levels, sashcommon area maintenance and utilities, and ergethat do not vary based
occupancy, such as property taxes and insurangareBiation and amortization is a noash expense associated with the ownership c
property and generally remains relatively consiséach year, unless we buy, place in service, lbassets, since we depreciate our prope
and related building and tenant improvement asses straightine basis over a fixed life. General and admiaiste expenses, net of amot
capitalized, consist primarily of management andleyee salaries and other personnel costs, cogparatrhead and longrm incentiv
compensation. Interest expense depends upon thenambour borrowings, the weighted average intera®s on our debt and the amour
interest capitalized on development projects.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We incur capital expenditures to lease space t@ostomers and to maintain the quality of our proee to successfully compete aga
other properties. Tenant improvements are the cegtsired to customize the space for the spec#ds of the customer. Lease commis:
are costs incurred to find the customer for theegphease incentives are costs paid to or on beh&thants to induce them to enter into le
and that do not relate to customizing the spacéh®tenans specific needs. Building improvements are rengrdapital costs not related t
customer to maintain the buildings. As leases expire either attempt to relet the space to aniegistustomer or attract a new custome
occupy the space. Generally, customer renewaldgrestpwer leasing capital expenditures than raigttio new customers. However, ma
conditions such as supply of available space omtheket, as well as demand for space, drive not onstomer rental rates but also te
improvement costs. Leasing capital expendituresaarertized over the term of the lease, and buildimgrovements are depreciated over
appropriate useful life of the assets acquiredhBoé included in depreciation and amortizatioresults of operations.

Because we are a REIT, we are required under therdbtax laws to pay dividends to our stockholdsgeal to at least 90.0% of «
annual REIT taxable income, excluding capital gaive generally use rents received from customedsmaoceeds from sales of noore
development land to fund our operating expensesjrrieg capital expenditures and stockholder dinatke To fund property acquisitio
development activity or building
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renovations, we may sell other assets and may idelot from time to time. As of December 31, 200€, vad $665.3 million of secured d
outstanding and $976.7 million of unsecured delistanding. Our debt generally consists of mortgdelet, unsecured debt securities
borrowings under our credit facilities.

As of December 31, 2007 and February 27, 2008, ae dpproximately $220 million and $218 million, pestively, of addition:
borrowing availability under our unsecured revotyicredit facility, and we had approximately $84lioil and $80 million, respectively,
additional borrowing availability under our securesgolving construction loan facilities.

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture goming our outstanding lontgrm unsecured debt securities require us to gatesious
operating and financial covenants and performaaties. As a result, to ensure that we do not wothe provisions of these debt instrume
we may from time to time be limited in undertakiogrtain activities that may otherwise be in thet eterest of our stockholders, suct
repurchasing capital stock, acquiring additionale#s, increasing the total amount of our debt oreiasing stockholder dividends. We rev
our current and expected operating results, firro@ndition and planned strategic actions on agony basis for the purpose of monitol
our continued compliance with these covenants atids. Any unwaived event of default could resalan acceleration of some or all of
debt, severely restrict our ability to incur adulital debt to fund short- and long-term cash needssult in higher interest expense.

To generate additional capital to fund our growtkl ather strategic initiatives and to lessen th@enship risks typically associated v
owning 100.0% of a property, we may sell some of mmoperties or contribute them to joint venturdthen we create a joint venture wit
partner, we usually contribute cash or wholly owasdets to a newly formed entity in which we retinequal or minority interest. The jc
venture itself will frequently borrow money on d@gn behalf to finance the acquisition of, and/aelage the return upon, the properties k
acquired by the joint venture or to build or acquadditional buildings. Such borrowings are tygicain a nonrecourse or limited recout
basis. We generally are not liable for the debt®uwf joint ventures, except to the extent of ounigginvestment, unless we have dire
guaranteed any of that debt. In most cases, weandf partners are required to agree to customergptions to non-recourse liability in non-
recourse loans. See Note 15 to the ConsolidatezhEial Statements for additional information ont&ierdebt guarantees. We have historic
also sold additional Common Stock or Preferred IStucissued Common Units to fund additional growthto reduce our debt, but we h
limited those efforts since 1998 because funds rgée@ from our capital recycling program in recgears have provided sufficient funds
satisfy our liquidity needs. In addition, we haeeently used funds from our capital recycling pamgrto redeem or repurchase Common |
and Preferred Stock for cash. In the future, we fnam time to time retire some or all of our remag outstanding Preferred Stock thro
redemptions, open market repurchases, privatelgtis#gd acquisitions or otherwise.

As described in Note 5 to the Consolidated Findrisfatements, in February 2008 we paid off the $iillon of unsecured notes tl
matured on February 1, 2008, and we obtained a $&8v.5 million threerear unsecured term loan from a group of banks witdrest ¢
LIBOR plus 110 basis points; the proceeds were tisquhy-down our revolving credit facility and fehortterm investments. We have
further debt maturities in 2008, other than norpréhcipal amortization on certain of secured loaks.noted above, as of February 27, 2
we have $298 million of availability combined unden revolving credit and revolving constructiorifdies.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Comparison of 2007 to 2006

The following table sets forth information regamgliour results of operations for the years endedeber 31, 2007 and 2006 ($
millions). As noted above and as more fully degsattiin Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statdmexs required by SFAS No. 144, res
for the year ended December 31, 2006 were rededsiom previously reported amounts to reflectliscontinued operations the operation:
those properties sold in 2007 which qualified facdntinued operations presentation.

Year Ended December 31, 2007 to 2006
2007 2006 $ Change % of Change
Rental and other revenues $ 4371 % 409.2 % 27.¢ 6.8%
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen 157.c 150.t 6.8 4.t
Depreciation and amortizatic 122.2 112.¢ 9.2 8.2
Impairment of assets held for L 0.8 — 0.8 100.(
General and administrative 41.€ 37.2 4.3 11.
Total operating expenses 321.¢ 300.7 21.2 7.1
Interest expenses
Contractua 94.C 94.2 (0.2) (0.2
Amortization of deferred financing cos 2.4 2.4 — —
Financing obligations 3.9 4.2 (0.9 (7.3
100.: 100.¢ (0.5) (0.5
Other income/(expense):
Interest and other incon 6.4 7.C (0.€) (8.6)
Settlement of bankruptcy clai — 1.6 (1.€) (200.0
Loss on debt extinguishments — (0.5 0.5 100.(
6.4 8.1 (1.9) (21.0
Income before disposition of property, insurance ga, minority
interest and equity in earnings of unconsolidatedféiliates 21.c 15.¢ 54 34.C
Gains on disposition of property, r 20.€ 16.2 4.4 27.2
Gain from property insurance settlem 4.1 — 4.1 100.(
Minority interest 3.7 (2.2 (1.5) (68.2)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 13.1 6.8 6.3 92.€
Income from continuing operations 55.4 36.7 18.7 51.C
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryorit
interest 1.9 3.2 1.3 (40.€)
Net gains on sales of discontinued operationsphet
minority interest 32.C 13.¢ 18.1 130.2
Release of FASB FIN 48 tax liability 1.5 — 1.5 100.(
35.4 17.1 18.: 107.(
Net income 90.¢ 53.¢ 37.C 68.€
Dividends on Preferred Stor (13.5) (7.7 3.€ 21.1
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption cost oveyiceyvalue (2.9 (1.8) (0.5) (27.6)
Net income available for common stockholders $ 75.C $ 34 $ 40.1 114.%y,

Rental and Other Revenues
The increase in rental and other revenues fromirmaing operations was primarily the result of thenttibution from developme

properties placed in service in the latter par@®6 and in 2007, higher average occupancy in 280dompared to 2006, and higher ave
rental rates in 2007 compared to 2006.
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There was modest but steady positive absorptionffife space in most of our markets during 2007soAlwe expect to deliv
approximately $211 million of new office and indtist development properties by the end of 2008 clvlsire 56% préeased. We expect to ¢
additional non-core properties in 2008 that wibhipably be classified as discontinued operations.

Rental Property and Other Expenses

The increase in rental and other operating expemsesrily was a result of general inflationary ri@eases in certain operating exper
which include utility costs, insurance, real estates, salaries, and benefits, and from experfsésvelopment properties placed in servic
2006 and 2007.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other rge@gmhess rental property and other expenses exgrassa percentage of rental and ¢
revenues, increased from 63.2% in 2006 to 64.0980@7. This increase in margin was primarily attrélalito higher average occupa
combined with certain operating expenses, suchxa@&stand insurance, being relatively fixed in thersterm.

We expect rental and other operating expensesctedre in 2008 as compared to 2007 from anticipaftationary increases in cert:
operating expenses, particularly higher real edtates and utility costs, and by operating expemnddbe development properties place
service during 2007 and 2008.

The increase in depreciation and amortization prilgneesults from development properties placedenvice in 2006 and in 2007.

In 2007, a land parcel had indicators of impairmehere the carrying value exceeded the sum of agtithundiscounted future ci
flows. Therefore, impairment of assets held for aggregating $0.8 million was recorded in the y@ated December 31, 2007.

The increase in general and administrative expewsasprimarily related to higher writffs of deferred development costs on pro]
that did not proceed or are deemed unlikely to oatthe future, higher annual and lotegm incentive compensation costs, higher salad
fringe benefit costs from annual employee wagesahary increases, and inflationary effects on offegreral and administrative expenses.

Interest Expense

Contractual interest expense is shown net of ansocapitalized to development projects. The netedes® in contractual interest \
primarily due to a decrease in weighted averageést rates on outstanding debt from 6.92% in d# gnded December 31, 2006 to 6.74
the year ended December 31, 2007, partly offsetrbincrease in average borrowings from $1,441 onilin the year ended December 31, -
to $1,540 million in the year ended December 30720n addition, capitalized interest in 2007 wapraximately $4.7 million high
compared to 2006 due to increased developmentitgctwd higher average construction and developnuasts. Interest allocated
discontinued operations was $0.6 million in 2006.

Total interest expense is expected to increase008 Drimarily from higher average borrowings congghto 2007 due to expec
borrowings to fund existing and future developmentjects. If proceeds from property dispositionse®d cash requirements for
development and other investing activities, averdgat balances in 2008 may not exceed those of. 2008tage interest rates are expecte
be lower in 2008 due to a projected decline intft@arates and to the retirement of $100 million70£25% bonds in early February 2
through the use of less expensive floating rate.deb

Settlement of Bankruptcy Claim

In 2006, we received a settlement of a bankruptaircin the amount of $1.6 million related to lesseith a former tenant that wi
terminated in 2003. See Note 19 to the Consolidabedncial Statements for further discussion.
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Loss on Debt Extinguishments

In 2006, we had $0.5 million from losses on earfirgguishments of debt, including our prior revalgicredit facility and bank term loi
which were paid off in the second quarter of 2006ruthe closing of our current revolving creditifiae

Gains on Disposition of Property; Gain from Property Insurance Settlement; Minority Interest; Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated
Affiliates

Net gains on dispositions of properties not clasdifis discontinued operations were $20.6 milliothe year ended December 31, 2
compared to $16.2 million for the year ended Decam®i, 2006; the components of net gains are dextin Note 4 to the Consolida
Financial Statements. Gains are dependent on #wfispassets sold, their historical cost basis @thér factors, and can vary significantly f
period to period.

In 2007, we recorded a $4.1 million gain from fimation of a prior year insurance claim. See Ndetd the Consolidated Financ
Statements for further discussion.

Minority interest changed from $2.2 million in tlyear ended December 31, 2006 to $3.7 million inythar ended December 31, 2(
The increase is due primarily to significantly hégghnet income in 2007 of the Operating Partnersafter Preferred Unit distributior
compared to 2006.

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates remsed $6.3 million from 2006 to 2007. The increpsenarily resulted from tt
following transactions. In 2007, the Weston Lakesgimint venture sold 332 rental residential uniég,ognizing a gain of approximately $1
million, which resulted in an increase of approxieta $5.0 million in equity in earnings of unconisisited affiliates. Five properties ownec
our DLF | joint venture (“DLF I")were sold and the joint venture recognized a ghiapproximately $9.3 million, resulting in an inese o
approximately $2.1 million in equity in earningswiconsolidated affiliates in 2007. Additionallp, 2007, DLF | received a lease terminat
of which the net effect was $2.7 million, which ulted in an increase of approximately $0.6 millianequity in earnings of unconsolida
affiliates. (See Note 2 to the Consolidated FinalnStatements for further discussion related tseheansactions). These increases are offt
$1.7 million of adjustments to depreciation expergtated to certain of our unconsolidated affilsate

Discontinued Operations

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we classified meaf $35.4 million and $17.1 million as discon&duoperations for the year en
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Theseiaimoelate to 4.2 million square feet of officelandustrial properties and 173 residel
units sold during 2006 and 2007. These amountsidiechet gains on the sale of these properties 20%8illion and $13.9 million in the ye
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

During 2007, we recorded $1.5 million in incomenfrdhe release of a liability recorded in accordandth the adoption of FAS
Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48"). See Note 17 te tBonsolidated Financial Statements for furthecudision.

Preferred Stock Dividends and Excess of Preferred Stock Redemption Cost Over Carrying Value

The decrease in Preferred Stock dividends andaser& excess of Preferred Stock redemption cestsaarrying value were due to
retirement of $62.3 million of Preferred Stock ®0Z as compared to the retirement of $50.0 mikibRreferred Stock in 2006.

Net I ncome and Net | ncome Available for Common Stockholders

We recorded net income of $90.8 million in 2007 paned to $53.8 million in 2006, and net income lald¢ for common stockholde
of $75.0 million in 2007 compared to $34.9 millitn2006; these changes resulted from the variottefedescribed above.
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Comparison of 2006 to 2005

The following table sets forth information regamgliour results of operations for the years endedeber 31, 2006 and 2005 ($
millions). As noted above and as more fully dessttiin Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statamexs required by SFAS No. 144, res
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 reelassified from previously reported amountsetfbect in discontinued operations
operations for those properties sold in 2006 of7208ich qualified for discontinued operations preaagon.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 to 2005
2006 2005 $ Change % of Change
Rental and other revenues $ 409.2 $ 387.¢ % 21.£ 5.5%
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen 150.t 138.t 12.C 8.7
Depreciation and amortizatic 112.¢ 107.1 5.8 5.4
Impairment of assets held for L — 3.2 (3.2 (100.0
General and administrative 37.2 33.1 4.2 12.7
Total operating expenses 300.7 281.¢ 18.¢ 6.7
Interest expenses
Contractua 94.2 98.2 (4.0 4.7
Amortization of deferred financing cos 2.4 34 (2.0 (29.9
Financing obligations 4.2 5.0 (0.8) (16.0)
100.¢ 106.€ (5.9 (5.49)
Other income/(expense):
Interest and other incon 7.C 7.C — —
Settlement of bankruptcy clai 1.6 — 1.€ 100.C
Loss on debt extinguishments (0.5 (0.4) (0.2) (25.0)
8.1 6.6 1kt 22.7
Income before disposition of property, minority interest and
equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 15.¢ 6.C 9.¢ 165.(
Gains on disposition of property, r 16.2 14.2 2.C 14.1
Minority interest (2.2 0.2 (2.9 (1,200.0
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 6.8 9.3 (2.5) (26.9)
Income from continuing operations 36.7 29.7 7.C 23.€
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryorit
interest 3.2 9.5 (6.9 (66.9)
Net gains on sales of discontinued operationsphet
minority interest 13.€ 23.2 (9.9 (40.7)
17.1 32.7 (15.6) (47.9)
Net income 53.¢ 62.4 (8.€) (13.9)
Dividends on Preferred Stor (17.0) (27.2) 10.1 37.1
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption cost oveyicayvalue (1.9) (4.3 2E 58.1
Net income available for common stockholders $ 34¢ $ 30.¢ $ 4.C 12.%

Rental and Other Revenues

The increase in rental and other revenues fromiroaing operations was primarily the result of higlawerage occupancy in 200€
compared to 2005, the contribution from developnpeoperties placed in service in the latter par2@®5 and in 2006 and the consolidatio
the Markel joint venture effective January 1, 2086 discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated FiahBtatements. These increases were |
offset by a decrease in lease termination fees 2065 to 2006 and the recognition of Eastshore@sgleted sale which occurred in the t
quarter of 2005.
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Rental Property and Other Expenses

The increase in rental and other operating expemsesrily was a result of general inflationary ieases in certain operating exper
such as salaries, benefits, utility costs and estdte taxes, expenses of development properiesgln service in the latter part of 2005
2006 and the consolidation of the Markel joint weat effective January 1, 2006, as discussed in Note the Consolidated Financ
Statements. These increases were partly offsetd®ceease in operating expenses as a result oftbgnition of Eastshore as a completed
which occurred in the third quarter of 2005.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other reggfess rental property and other expenses exgrassa percentage of rental and «
revenues, decreased from 64.3% in 2005 to 63.22006. This decrease in margin was primarily calmsedperating expenses increasing f
inflationary pressures at a higher rate than ootateevenues and operating cost recoveries.

The increase in depreciation and amortization iimgrily a result of the contribution from developmi@roperties placed in service in
latter part of 2005 and in 2006 and the consolilatf the Markel joint venture effective Januan2@06, as discussed in Note 1 to
Consolidated Financial Statements. These increases partly offset by a decrease related to thegmition of Eastshore as a completed
which occurred in the third quarter of 2005.

For 2005, one land parcel had indicators of impairtrwhere the carrying value exceeded the sumth&®d undiscounted future ci
flows. Therefore, impairment of assets held for ois$3.2 million was recorded in the year endeddbelger 31, 2005.

The increase in general and administrative expenasgrimarily related to higher annual and Id¢egn incentive compensation costs
from deferred compensation, a portion of whicheisognized based on increases in the total retuiwuoiCommon Stock, which was 50.6%
2006, higher salary and fringe benefit costs fronmuml employee wage and salary increases, inflatjoeffects on other general :
administrative expenses and costs related to thremeent of a certain officer at June 30, 2006.

Interest Expense

The decrease in contractual interest was primatilg to a decrease in average borrowings from $1rbillion in the year ende
December 31, 2005 to $1,441 million in the yeareehBecember 31, 2006, partially offset by an inseeia weighted average interest rate
outstanding debt from 6.80% in the year ended Dbeerdl, 2005 to 6.92% in the year ended Decemhe2®¥6. In addition, capitaliz
interest in 2006 was approximately $2.1 milliontrég compared to 2005 due to increased developneéita and higher average construct
and development costs. Interest allocated to disaoed operations was $1.2 million in 2005 compace$i0.6 million in 2006.

The decrease in amortization of deferred financiosts was primarily related to obtaining the newoheing credit facility in May 200¢
as discussed further in the Note 5 to the CongalilRinancial Statements, resulting in a reduatibamortization of deferred financing cost:
approximately $1.0 million from 2005 to 2006.

The decrease in interest from financing obligatia@s primarily a result of the completed sale eé¢hbuildings in Richmond, Virgin
(the Eastshore transaction) in the third quarte20ff5 and the elimination of the related finanadjgation. Partly offsetting this decrease
an increase in 2006 related to BRA/ Harborview Plaza LP primarily from amortizatiaf the option discount, as described in Note &g
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Settlement of Bankruptcy Claim

In 2006, we received a settlement of a bankruptaircin the amount of $1.6 million related to lesseith a former tenant that wi
terminated in 2003. See Note 19 to the Consolidabedncial Statements for further discussion.
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Loss on Debt Extinguishments

In 2006, we had $0.5 million from losses on earfirgguishments of debt, including our prior revalgicredit facility and bank term loi
which were paid off in the second quarter of 20@éruthe closing of our current revolving creditifiage The $0.4 million of loss in 20(
relates to loans that were paid off early in 20@®f proceeds raised from disposition activities.

Gains on Disposition of Property; Minority I nterest; Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Net gains on dispositions of properties not clasdifis discontinued operations were $16.2 milliothe year ended December 31, 2
compared to $14.2 million for the year ended Decam®i, 2005; the components of net gains are dextin Note 4 to the Consolida
Financial Statements. Gains are dependent on #wfispassets sold, their historical cost basis @thér factors, and can vary significantly f
period to period.

Minority interest changed from $0.2 million of inoe in the year ended December 31, 2005 to $2.20milif expense in the year en
December 31, 2006. In 2005, the Operating Partipetsdd a loss from continuing operations after &refd Unit distributions which caus
minority interest income. In 2006, the Operatingti®arship had income from continuing operationsraftreferred Unit distributions, result
in minority interest expense related to the OpegatPartnership. In addition, minority interest i00B includes $0.6 million from tl
consolidation of the Markel joint venture, the aacting for which changed from equity method to adigstion effective January 1, 2006,
described in Note 1 to the Consolidated Finandiale®nents.

The decrease in equity in earnings of unconsolitlafélliates primarily resulted from the consolidet of the Markel joint venture
2006, and from $0.7 million of our share of a lossearly debt extinguishment from refinancing @re in the Des Moines joint ventures in
third quarter of 2006. The Markel joint venture trdyuted $0.8 million to equity in earnings of umsolidated affiliates during the year en
December 31, 2005. In addition, capitalization mterest ceased and full depreciation commencechbigj December 2005 for the off
property in the Plaza Colonnade, LLC joint ventwigch caused an approximate $0.6 million reductioaquity in earnings of unconsolida
affiliates in 2006 compared to 2005.

Discontinued Operations

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we classified meaf $17.1 million and $32.7 million as discon&duoperations for the year en
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Theseiaimoelate to 8.9 million square feet of officelandustrial properties and 202 residet
units sold during 2005, 2006 and 2007. These amsdnnlude net gains on the sale of these propesti&43.9 million and $23.2 million in tl
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respgc
Preferred Stock Dividends and Excess of Preferred Stock Redemption Cost Over Carrying Value

The decreases in Preferred Stock dividends andssxo€ Preferred Stock redemption costs over cagryialue were due to t
redemptions of $130.0 million of Preferred Stockha third quarter of 2005 and $50.0 million of flereed Stock in the first quarter of 2006.

Net Income and Net I ncome Available for Common Stockholders
We recorded net income of $53.8 million in 2006 paned to $62.4 million in 2005, and net income ladé¢ for common stockholde
of $34.9 million in 2006 compared to $30.9 million2005; these changes resulted from the variottefadescribed above.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Statement of Cash Flows

As required by GAAP, we report and analyze our dishks based on operating activities, investingwvitéés and financing activities. T
following table sets forth the changes in our démhis from 2006 to 2007 ($ in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 Change
Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 164,080 $ 14552 $ 18,55¢
Cash (Used In)/Provided By Investing Activiti (153,12) 64,73¢ (217,859
Cash Used In Financing Activities (24,509  (194,78) 170,27:
Total Cash Flows $ (13,55(0$ 1547¢ $ (29,028

In calculating cash flow from operating activitiefgpreciation and amortization, which are mash expenses, are added back ti
income. As a result, we have historically generatesignificant positive amount of cash from opemgtactivities. From period to period, ¢
flow from operations depends primarily upon chanigesur net income, as discussed more fully abowideu “Results of Operationsghange
in receivables and payables, and net additionseoredses in our overall portfolio, which affect #maount of depreciation and amortiza
expense.

Cash provided by or used in investing activitiesegelly relates to capitalized costs incurred é&asing and major building improveme
and our acquisition, development, disposition amidtjventure activity. During periods of signifidanet acquisition and/or developm
activity, our cash used in such investing actisitigill generally exceed cash provided by investiagjvities, which typically consists of ce
received upon the sale of properties and distmgtiof capital from our joint ventures.

Cash used in financing activities generally relatestockholder dividends, distributions on Comntdmits, incurrence and repaymen
debt and sales, repurchases or redemptions of Canstoek, Common Units and Preferred Stock. As dised previously, we use a signific
amount of our cash to fund stockholder dividend$ @ammon Unit distributions. Whether or not we hinareases in the outstanding bala
of debt during a period depends generally upom#teeffect of our acquisition, disposition, devetamt and joint venture activity. We use
revolving credit facility for working capital purges, which means that during any given periodrdeioto minimize interest expense, we
likely record significant repayments and borrowinggsler our revolving credit facility.

The increase of $18.6 million in cash provided pgmting activities in 2007 compared to the samm®mgén 2006 was primarily the res
of higher cash flows from net income as adjustectchanges in gains on disposition of propertiegaia from a property insurance settlem
minority interest, and equity in earnings of unaditsated affiliates. In addition, the net changeperating assets and liabilities resulted i
$11.6 million increase in cash provided by opematntivities from 2006 to 2007.

The decrease of $217.9 million in cash providedhigsting activities in 2007 compared to the saméop in 2006 was primarily a res
of a $115.6 million decrease in proceeds from ditpmns of real estate assets and a $65.5 millierease in additions to real estate asset
deferred leasing costs. In addition, changes itricésd cash and other investing activities reslltea decrease of $43.0 million primarily
to cash received from escrow during 2006 relating tollateral substitution on an existing secuoath and outflows of cash in 2007 relate
proceeds from dispositions which were set asidedmsignated for potential future tax-deferred esahte transactions and for the shiertr
purchase of tax increment financing bonds relatedrt office building and garage constructed byRestly offsetting these decreases \
proceeds of $4.9 million which were received in 206r a property insurance settlement.

The decrease of $170.3 million in cash used imiiireg activities in 2007 compared to the same pPend2006 was primarily a result o
$214.3 million increase in net borrowings on theoteing credit facility and mortgages and notesglag and an increase of $4.9 million du
contributions from our minority interest partnese€ Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statepdots2007 compared to 2006. Th
decreases were partly offset by a
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$35.7 million decrease in net proceeds from the sAlCommon Stock, an increase of $12.3 millioncash used for the redemption
repurchase of Preferred Stock and an increase.6frillion for cash used in connection with theusghase of Common Units from 200¢
2007.

During 2008, we expect to have positive cash flékesn operating activities. The net cash flows framesting activities in 2008 &
expected to be negative as cash inflows from ptgplspositions and joint ventures are expectebedess than cash used for developn
capitalized leasing and tenant improvement costs.ddsh flows from operating and investing aceégtcombined in 2008 are expected t
positive and, together with positive financing cdlkiws from new debt borrowings or other sourcedl| e used to pay stockholder ¢
unitholder distributions, scheduled debt maturjtipancipal amortization payments and any othemctidns of debt and Preferred St
balances (see Note 9 to the Consolidated FinaStiaéments).

Capitalization

The following table sets forth our capitalizatios af December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 @ousHdnds, except per sh
amounts):

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 1,641,98 $ 1,465,12!
Financing obligation $ 35,07 $ 35,53(
Preferred Stock, at liquidation val $ 135,437 $ 197,44!
Common Stock and Common Units outstanc 61,22¢ 60,94«
Per share stock price at year ¢ $ 293¢t $ 40.7¢
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units 1,798,76. 2,484,07
Total market capitalization with debt and obligato $ 3,611,251 $ 4,182,18.

Based on our total market capitalization of apprately $3.6 billion at December 31, 2007 (at thedédaber 31, 2007 per share st
price of $29.38 and assuming the redemption foreshaf Common Stock of the approximate 4.1 milldommon Units not owned by 1
Company), our mortgages and notes payable repezbed5.5% of our total market capitalization. Mogga and notes payable
December 31, 2007 was comprised of $665 milliosexfured indebtedness with a weighted average #ttexee of 6.62% and $977 million
unsecured indebtedness with a weighted average#tate of 6.42%. As of December 31, 2007, otstanding mortgages and notes pay
and financing obligations were secured by realtestasets with an aggregate undepreciated book vlapproximately $1.0 billion.

We do not intend to reserve funds to retire exgsircured or unsecured debt upon maturity. For r@ mamplete discussion of our long-
term liquidity needs, see “Liquidity and Capitald®arces - Current and Future Cash Needs.”
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Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth a summary regarding known contractual obligations, including regdiinterest payments for those it
that are interest bearing, at December 31, 2007 f{$ousands):

Amounts due during years ending December 31,

Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter
Mortgages and Notes Payabl(1)
Principal payment $ 1,641,98 $ 109,93 $ 409,720 $ 28,747 $ 9,507 $ 212,16t $ 871,90
Interest paymeni(2) 568,43t 99,84¢ 84,29 70,41: 69,37( 55,57( 188,94¢
Financing Obligations:
SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LP
financing obligatior(3) 15,61¢ — — — — — 15,61¢
Tax Increment Financing
obligation4) 26,18: 2,18: 2,182 2,182 2,18: 2,182 15,27:
Capitalized ground lease obligati 1,951 52 52 52 52 52 1,691
Capitalized lease obligationgs) 33¢ 22¢ 82 16 6 — —
Purchase Obligations:
Completion contract(s) 58,94 58,94: — — — — —
Operating Lease Obligations:
Land lease(e) 50,02¢ 1,077 1,11¢ 1,13¢ 1,15k 1,17¢ 44,36¢
Other Long Term Liabilities
Reflected on the Balance Sheet:
Plaza Colonnade lease guarar(s) 8 — 8 — — — —
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF
99/32 LP lease guarant(s) 20¢ 20¢ — — — — —
RRHWoods, LLC(s) 3C — 30 — — — —
RRHWoods, LLC and Dallas County
Partners lease guaranie) 68 — — — — — 68
Industrial environmental
guarante«(s) 12& — — — — — 12¢&
DLF payable) 3,02¢ 53€ 54¢€ 55€ 567 57¢ 243
KC Orlando, LLC lease
guarante«s) 322 97 97 97 32 — —
KC Orlando, LLC accrued lease
commissions, tenant improvements
and building improvemen ) 29€ — — — — — 29€
RRHWoods, LLCs) 324 — — 324 — — _
Total $ 2,367,890 $ 273,100 $ 498,13: $ 10352. $ 8287. $ 271,72. $ 1,138,53!

(1) See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statenfenfsirther discussion, including the $100 milliaggregate principal notes paid of
early 2008

(2) These amounts represent interest payments due dgages and notes payable, based on the statedfoatie fixed rate debt and on
December 31, 2007 rates for the variable rate déiat.weighted average interest rate on the variadéedebt as of December 31, 2007
5.86%.

(3) This liability represents a financing obligation ¢or joint venture partner as a result of accounfior this transaction as a financ
arrangement. See Note 3 to the Consolidated FiabBtatements for further discussi

(4) In connection with tax increment financing for ctiostion of a public garage related to an officélding constructed by us, we
obligated to pay fixed special assessments ové-year period. The net present value of these assessjrdiscounted at 6.93%, wh
represents the interest rate of the underlying bandhown as a financing obligation in the Cordatled Balance Sheet. We also rec
special tax revenues and property tax rebatesdeddn interest and other income which are intentatinot guaranteed, to provide fu
to pay the special assessments. See Note 5 tootieoliiated Financial Statements for further disimure

(5) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensestaad liabilities.
(6) See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statesrfenfurther discussiol
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(7) Represents a fixed obligation we owe our partnéfighwoods DLF 98/29, LP. This obligation arosenfran excess contribution from «
partner at the formation of the joint venture, dhd net present value of the fixed obligation distded at 9.62% which represents
interest rate derived from the agreement, is resmbiid other liabilities. See Note 2 to the Consatkdl Financial Statements for furt
discussion

(8) This amount represents our estimate of contractolidations as of December 31, 2007 related toowarconstruction project
Preferred Stock Transactions

On May 29, 2007, we redeemed 1.6 million of ourstariding Series B Preferred Shares, aggregatind $4dlion plus accrued a
unpaid dividends. In connection with this redemmptithe $1.4 million excess of the redemption cograhe net carrying amount of -
redeemed shares was recorded as a reduction iticoate available for common shareholders in thersgguarter of 2007.

On August 6, 2007, we repurchased and retired 8200®ur outstanding Series A Preferred Sharesafoaggregate purchase prict
$22.3 million. In connection with this repurchatfee $0.8 million excess of the purchase cost dvemiet carrying amount of the repurch
shares was recorded as a reduction to net incoaikable for common shareholders in the third quaste2007.

Debt Financing Activity

Our $450 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis initially scheduled to mature on May 1, 2088suming no default exists, we h
an option to extend the maturity date by one aolditi year and, at any time prior to May 1, 2008y meguest increases in the borrow
availability under the credit facility by up to aaditional $50 million. The interest rate is LIBQfus 80 basis points and the annual
facility fee is 20 basis points. As of December 2007 and February 27, 2008, we had $229 millicsh $230 million, respectively, borrow
on this revolving credit facility.

On March 22, 2007, the Operating Partnership is§4&® million aggregate principal amount of 5.85%té¢ due March 15, 2017, ne
original issue discount of $1.2 million. We usee thet proceeds from the issuance of the notesp@myrborrowings outstanding under
unsecured norevolving credit facility that was obtained on Janu31, 2007 (which was subsequently terminated) wmder the revolvir
credit facility.

On December 20, 2007, we closed a $70 million sstuevolving construction facility. The loan matsiren December 20, 2010. 7
interest rate is based on LIBOR plus 85 basis poitit December 31, 2007 and February 27, 2008¢ there no amounts outstanding on
revolving facility.

On February 1, 2008, we paid off at maturity $106llion of 7.125% unsecured notes using borrowingsler our revolving crec
facility. On February 26, 2008, we closed a $13miBion threeyear term loan that bears interest at LIBOR plu8 lhdsis points. Procee
from this loan were used to reduce the outstandargowings under our revolving credit facility afat short-term investments.

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture tigmverns our outstanding notes require us to cpmfih customary operating covene
and various financial and operating ratios. We @rgently in compliance with all such requirememdthough we expect to remain
compliance with these covenants and ratios foeadtlthe next year, depending upon our future tipgrperformance, property and financ
transactions and general economic conditions, waataassure you that we will continue to be in cbhamze.

If any of our lenders ever accelerated outstandigigt due to an event of default, we would not ble &b borrow any further amoul
under our revolving credit facility, which would atsely affect our ability to fund our operatioffsour debt cannot be paid, refinancec
extended at maturity or upon acceleration, in @oidito our failure to repay our debt, we may notabé to make distributions to stockholc
at expected levels or at all. Furthermore, if agfjnancing is done at higher interest rates, tleeeimsed interest expense would adversely i
our cash flows and ability to pay dividends to ktemders. Any such refinancing could also impogéter financial ratios and other coven:i
that would restrict our ability to take actions tthveould otherwise be in our stockholdel®st interest, such as funding new develop
activity, making opportunistic acquisitions, repugsing our securities or paying dividends.
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On June 5, 2007, two thrgear secured construction loans totaling $24.7ionilwith interest at 175 basis points over LIBORrg
obtained by REES, a consolidated joint venture {$et 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statemei®sghsequently, on July 17, 2007, RE
obtained an additional $13.7 million, thrgear secured construction loan with interest at B&&is points over LIBOR. In October 2007,
paid off one of the original secured constructiarans, which had accounted for $4.4 million of thegioal $24.7 million. A
December 31, 2007 and February 27, 2008, $19.8m#ind $23.7 million, respectively, was outstagdimder the two remaining loans.

During 2007, we also paid off $92.4 million, exdlugl any normal debt amortization, of secured delh & weighted average interest
of 7.87%. Approximately $202 million of real estaissets (based on undepreciated cost basis) baganeumbered after paying off
secured debt.

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soafdeinds to meet our shoterm liquidity requirements, which primarily consist
operating expenses, debt service, stockholder elivd, any guarantee obligations and recurring aapitpenditures. In addition, we co
incur tenant improvement costs and lease commissilated to any releasing of vacant space.

As of the date of this filing, other than princigahortization on certain secured loans, we haveuistanding debt that matures pric
the end of 2008. We expect to fund our shertn liquidity needs through a combination of aablié working capital, cash flows fr
operations and the following:

o the selective disposition of n-core land and other asse

e borrowings under our revolving credit facility amglvolving construction facilities (which have $2@llion and $80 million ¢
availability, respectively, as of February 27, 21)(

e the sale or contribution of some of our Wholly Owrieroperties, development projects and developfaedtto joint ventures to
formed with unrelated investors, which would have het effect of generating additional capital tlylo such sale or contributior

o theissuance of secured debt; and
e the issuance of unsecured debt.

Our longterm liquidity needs generally include the fundofgcapital expenditures to lease space to our mest®, maintain the quality
our existing properties and build new propertieapi@l expenditures include tenant improvementsidimg improvements, new buildii
completion costs and land infrastructure costs.aneimprovements are the costs required to cusmisjiace for the specific needs of first-
generation and secomgneration customers. Building improvements arerréty capital costs not related to a specific costr to maintai
existing buildings. New building completion costdate to the construction of new buildings. Lanfilastructure costs are incurred to pre
development land for future development activitgttis not specifically related to a single buildifixcluding recurring capital expenditures
leasing costs and tenant improvements and for dobmidding improvements, our expected future cdpéapenditures for started anc
committed new development projects were approxilp&e61 million at December 31, 2007. A significaartion of these future expenditu
are currently subject to binding contractual areangnts.

Our longterm liquidity needs also include the funding oWelepment commitments, selective asset acquisitaons the retirement
mortgage debt, amounts outstanding under our di@dllities and longerm unsecured debt. Our goal is to maintain a@masive and flexibl
balance sheet. Accordingly, we expect to meet ong4erm liquidity needs through a combination of (b tissuance by the Operai
Partnership of additional unsecured debt securifidsthe issuance of additional equity securitied partnership interests by the Company
the Operating Partnership, (3) borrowings undeeioiecured construction loans that we may enter ag well as (4) the sources descr
above with respect to our short-term liquidity. \ect to use such sources to meet our teng-liquidity requirements either through dil
payments or repayments of borrowings under ourlveng credit facility. As mentioned above, we dotnotend to reserve funds to re
existing secured or
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unsecured indebtedness upon maturity. Instead, iWsegk to refinance such debt at maturity orreeiuch debt through the issuance of e
or debt securities or from proceeds from salegopgrties.

Notwithstanding the recent turbulence in the glalyadit markets, such as widening credit spreadstightening underwriting standa
which have negatively impacted the availabilitycapital across many industries, we anticipate ¢thatavailable cash and cash equivalents
cash flows from operating activities, with cashikalde from borrowings and other sources, will likeguate to meet our capital and liqui
needs in both the short and long term. If thesecgsuof funds are insufficient or unavailable, ability to pay dividends to stockholders i
satisfy other cash payments may be adversely affect

Stockholder Dividends

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we musy pavidends to stockholders that are at least 9000%ur annual REIT taxable incor
excluding capital gains. REIT taxable income, takwlation of which is determined by the federal l@wvs, does not equal net income ul
GAAP. The minimum dividend per share of Common Btamuired for the Company to maintain its REITtssa(excluding any net capi
gains) was $0.54 per share in 2007. Aggregate elidd paid on Preferred Stock exceeded REIT taxabteme (excluding capital gains)
2006, which resulted in no required dividend on @wn Stock in 2006 for REIT qualification purpos®@ge generally expect to use our ¢
flow from operating activities for dividends to skiolders and for payment of recurring capital exeires. Future dividends will be mad:
the discretion of our Board of Directors. The faliag factors will affect our cash flows and, acdagly, influence decisions of the Board
Directors regarding dividends:

o debt service requirements after taking into accdeht covenants and the repayment and restructafiogrtain indebtednes
e scheduled increases in base rents of existingde

e changes in rents attributable to the renewal ditang leases or replacement lea:

e Cchanges in occupancy rates at existing properntidseaecution of leases for newly acquired or deguetioproperties;

e Operating expenses and capital replacement neexisding tenant improvements and leasing costs; and

e sales of properties and non-core land.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have several off balance sheet joint ventureqratantee arrangements. The joint ventures weneefb with unrelated investors
generate additional capital to fund property adtjaiss, repay outstanding debt, fund other strategitiatives and lessen the risks typic
associated with owning 100.0% of a property. Whencweate a joint venture with a partner, we usuadiytribute cash or wholly owned as:
to a newly formed entity in which we retain an dgoraminority interest. For financial reporting pases, certain assets we sold have
accounted for as financing arrangements. See No2snd 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Finar®ti@tements, we generally account for our inveatsyé less than majority own
joint ventures, partnerships and limited liabildtgmpanies under the equity method of accountinga Assult, the assets and liabilities of tf
joint ventures are not included on our balance tshed the results of operations of these joint wesst are not included on our incc
statement, other than as equity in earnings of nsmalated affiliates. Generally, we are not liafilethe debts of our joint ventures, excef
the extent of our equity investment, unless we ldixectly guaranteed any of that debt. In most sage and/or our joint venture partners
required to agree to customary limited exceptionsan-recourse liability in non-recourse loans.

As of December 31, 2007, our unconsolidated joeritures had $738.2 million of total assets and ¥b@iillion of total liabilities a
reflected in their financial statements. At Decemiik 2007, our weighted average equity interestebaon the total assets of tr
unconsolidated joint ventures was 38.6%. During72®0ese
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unconsolidated joint ventures earned $36.9 milldrtotal net income, of which our share, after appiate purchase accounting and ¢
adjustments, was $13.1 million. For additional mfation about our unconsolidated joint venture\dyti see Note 2 to the Consolida
Financial Statements.

As of December 31, 2007, our unconsolidated joamttures had $558.8 million of outstanding mortgaglet. All of this joint venture de
is nonfecourse to us except (1) in the case of customergptions pertaining to such matters as misu$enafs, environmental conditions ¢
material misrepresentations and (2) those guarsrded loans described in the following paragragi®e following table sets forth t
scheduled maturities of our proportionate shar¢hefoutstanding debt of our unconsolidated joimtwees as of December 31, 2007 (:
thousands):

2008 $ 4,68¢
2009 6,79(
2010 9,51¢
2011 6,21°¢
2012 42,01
Thereafter 164,70(

$ 23392

We and our joint venture partner each guarantee@ $8llion of debt of the Des Moines joint venturésat was outstanding
December 31, 2007. Because the joint ventures rlyrgenerate sufficient cash flow to cover theuiegd debt service, no liability for the
guarantees was recorded at December 31, 2007. Recprovisions exist that would enable us to rec@oene or all of any such payme
from the joint ventures’ assets.

To facilitate a financing by the RRHWoods, LLC joirenture, we and our joint venture partner eadranteed $3.1 million relating t¢
letter of credit and a corresponding master lehssugh August 2010. The guarantee requires usyaipder a contingent master lease il
cash flows from the building securing the letterco#dit do not cover at least 50% of the minimurbtdeervice. During 2007, we made ma
lease payments of $0.1 million. As of DecemberZ)7, we recorded a $0.3 million deferred chargéudted in other assets and liabilities
our Consolidated Balance Sheet with respect to dh&rantee. Our maximum potential exposure undergharantee was $0.5 million
December 31, 2007. Recourse provisions exist tbatdwenable us to recover some or all of any seghments from the joint venture’s assets.

To facilitate a financing by the Plaza ColonnadeClLjoint venture, we and our joint venture partsemned a contingent master le
relating to 30,772 square feet through December92@ur maximum potential exposure under this maktase was $0.9 million
December 31, 2007. The current occupancy leveh@fuilding has been sufficient to cover all dedrvice requirements and, accordingly
payments have been required under the master lease.

To facilitate the restructuring of a tenantéases with us and the Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLRB®9LP joint venture in September 2C
we agreed to compensate the joint venture for amna@mic losses incurred as a result of these leasdifications through June 2008.
connection with this arrangement, we have approtgéipeb0.2 million in other liabilities and $0.2 ridn as a deferred charge in other as
recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheet at Deme®1, 2007. Our maximum potential exposure uthisrarrangement was $0.3 mill
at December 31, 2007. During 2007, $0.5 million wlaarged to expense in connection with this arrarege.

To facilitate a financing by the RRHWoods, LLC abdllas County Partners joint ventures, we and oimnt jventure partner agreec
master lease certain vacant space and each guafh&million of debt through 2014. No master éepayments were necessary in 2007
currently have recorded $0.07 million in other iiles and $0.07 million as a deferred charge udeld in other assets on its Consolid
Balance Sheet with respect to the master lease gratyguarantee. The maximum potential exposure uhgemaster lease was $2.0 milliol
December 31, 2007. Because the joint venturesmilyrgenerate sufficient cash flow to cover theuieed debt service, no liability for the $
million direct guarantee was recorded at DecemthePB07. Recourse provisions exist that would enaklto recover some or all of any ¢
payments from the joint ventures’ assets.

On September 27, 2004, we and an affiliate of @ra$l Inc. (“Crosland”Yormed Weston Lakeside, LLC, in which we had a %&
ownership interest. On June 29, 2005, we contrb@®24 acres of land at an agreed upon
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value of $3.9 million to this joint venture, andoSkand contributed approximately $2.0 million irskalmmediately thereafter, the joint ven
distributed approximately $1.9 million to us and meeorded a gain of $0.5 million. Crosland managed operated this joint venture, wt
constructed 332 rental residential units in thragdings at a total cost of approximately $33.7limil. Crosland received 3.25% of all proj
costs other than land as a development fee and 8f58e gross revenue of the joint venture in managnt fees. We provided cert
development services for the project and receivéekasqual to 1.0% of all project costs excludiagd. We accounted for this joint vent
using the equity method of accounting. On Febr22ry2007, the joint venture sold the 332 rentaldesttial units to a third party for grc
proceeds of $45.0 million and paid off all of itststanding debt and various development relatetscd®e joint venture recorded a gai
$11.3 million in the first quarter of 2007 relatiedthis sale and we recorded $5.0 million as oapprtionate share through equity in earning
unconsolidated affiliates. Our share of the gais Vess than 50.0% due to Croslamgreferred return as the developer. We receivgdeggt
net distributions of $6.2 million. Weston LakesitleC has been dissolved.

On December 22, 2004, we and Easlan InvestmentpgGino. (“Easlan”)formed The Vinings at University Center, LLC. Wentidbutec
7.8 acres of land at an agreed upon value of $lllBmto the joint venture in December 2004 inuwet for a 50.0% equity interest. Eas
contributed $1.1 million in the form of ndnterest bearing promissory notes for a 50.0% gdquoterest in the joint venture. The joint vent
completed the construction of 156 rental residéntiéts on the 7.8 acres of land in the first gaadf 2006. Easlan was the manager and le
agent for these residential units and receivedoousty management fees and leasing commissionseéééved development fees througt
the construction project. We consolidated this tjoienture from inception under the provisions of SBA Interpretation No. 46 (revis
December 2003) “Consolidation of Variable InterEstities” (“FIN 46(R)") because Easlan had noriak equity and we would absorb
majority of the joint ventura expected losses, if any. On November 1, 200Gotheventure sold the residential units to adtparty for gros
proceeds of $14.3 million, paid off all of its owtsding debt and made cash distributions to thénpes. We received a distribution of $
million and recorded a gain of $1.4 million duritige fourth quarter of 2006. The Vinings at Univr&enter, LLC has been dissolved.

We have a 22.81% interest in a joint venture (“DDRwith Schweiz-Deutschland-USA Dreilander Betgiing Objekt DLF 98/2%/alkel
Fink-KG ("DLF"). We are the property manager andsiag agent of DLF § properties and receive customary managementeastht fee
On March 12, 2007, DLF | sold five properties tthiad party for gross proceeds of $34.2 million aedorded a gain of $9.3 million relatec
this sale. We recorded $2.1 million as our propodie share of this gain through equity in earnin§aunconsolidated affiliates. (
May 21, 2007, DLF | acquired Eola Park Centre, @080 square foot office building in Orlando, Fétaj for $39.3 million. In June 2007,
joint venture obtained a $27.7 million loan secutsdEola Park Centre. Simultaneously with DI's acquisition of Eola Park Centre,
separately acquired an adjacent parcel of developtaed for $2.0 million on a wholly-owned basis.

Financing Arrangements

The following summarizes significant sale trangawi in 2000 and 2002 that were or continue to bepwaded for as financit
arrangements under paragraphs 25 through 29 of $#A86 during the years ended December 31, 20006 and 2005.

- SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LP

On September 11, 2002, we contributed Harborvieaz&l an office building in Tampa, Florida, to BRA Harborview Plaza, L
(“Harborview LP"), a newly formed entity, in exchange for a 20.0% tadi partnership interest and $35.4 million in caie other partn
contributed $12.6 million of cash and a new loars watained by the partnership for $22.8 million.cbnnection with this disposition,
entered into a master lease agreement with HaberldP for five years on the then vacant space énlthilding (approximately 20% of t
building); occupancy was 98.8% at December 31, 200& also guaranteed to Harborview LP the paymétgrant improvements and le
commissions of $1.2 million. Our maximum exposwddss under the master lease agreement was $2idnnait September 11, 2002; t
guarantee expired on September 10, 2007. Addilignadlir partner in Harborview LP was granted trghtito put its 80.0% equity interest
Harborview LP to us in exchange for cash at anyetoaring the ongear period commencing September 11, 2014. Theevaflithe 80.0¢
equity interest will be determined at the time thath partner elects to exercise its put righevir, based upon the then fair market valt
Harborview LP’s assets and liabilities, less 3.08ich amount was intended to cover the normal cafséssale transaction.
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Because of the put option, this transaction is actad for as a financing transaction as describeNadte 1. Accordingly, the ass¢
liabilities and operations related to Harborvieva#l, the property owned by Harborview LP, includamy new financing by the partners|
remain in our Consolidated Financial StatementsaAssult, we have established a financing obbgatiqual to the net equity contributec
the other partner. At the end of each reportingogerthe balance of the financing obligation isustigd to equal the greater of the orig
financing obligation or the current fair value betput option discussed above. The estimated &irevof the put option was $15.6 millior
December 31, 2007. This amount is adjusted by atewlvaluation allowance account, which is beingorized prospectively throu
September 2014 as interest expense on financingatioh. The amount of the financing obligation etwer with the valuation allowance v
$16.6 million at December 31, 2007. Additionallgetnet income from the operations before depreciaif Harborview Plaza allocable to
80.0% partner is recorded as interest expensenanding obligation. We continue to depreciate ttaperty and record all of the deprecia
on our books. Any payments made under the masiselagreement were expensed as incurred ($0.0ém#i0.1 million and $0.1 millic
was expensed during the years ended December 87, 2006 and 2005, respectively) and any amouritsyraler the tenant improvement .
lease commission guarantee are capitalized andtiaewto expense over the remaining lease ternsudh time as the put option expires «
otherwise terminated, we will record the transactg a sale and recognize gain on sale.

- Eastshore

On November 26, 2002, we sold three buildings kddh Richmond, Virginia (the “Eastshor&ansaction) for a total price of $2
million in cash. Each of the properties was leageda triplenet basis to Capital One Services, Inc., a sulrgidié Capital One Financi
Services, Inc. In connection with the sale, we gnteed any shortfalls that may be incurred in @ngnent of rent and reenanting costs for
five-year period from the date of sale (through Novenfi#7). Our maximum exposure to loss under thealtentarantee agreements
$18.7 million at the date of sale. Payments madieuthis guarantee were as follows: 2002 and 2088ne; 2004 - $0.09 million; 2005 04
million; 2006 - $0.7 million; and 2007 through thearantee termination date - $0.8 million.

These rent guarantees were a form of continuinghi@ment as discussed in paragraph 28 of SFAS BoBécause the guarant
covered the entire space occupied by a single temater a triplenet lease arrangement, our guarantees were coadideguaranteed return
the buyers investment for an extended period of time. Theeefthe transaction had been accounted for asmading transaction following t
accounting method described in Note 1 to the Cadsigld Financial Statements through July 2005. Adiogly, through July 2005, the ass
liabilities and operations were included in the €aidated Financial Statements, and a financinggatibn of $28.8 million was recorde
which represented the amount received from the hayhusted for subsequent activity. The incomenftbe operations of the properties, o
than depreciation, was allocated 100.0% to the owsenterest expense on financing obligations.ni&mts made under the rent guarar
were charged to expense as incurred. This traosaeths recorded as a completed sale transactidulyr2005 when the maximum exposur
loss under the guarantees became less than thedreleferred gain; accordingly, $1.7 million in maias recognized in the last six month
2005, $3.6 million in gain was recognized in 2008l 3.3 million in gain was recognized in 2007 bs maximum exposure under
guarantees was reduced. Payments made under seanhgges after July 2005 were recorded as a reduatithe deferred gain.

Interest Rate Hedging Activities

To meet, in part, our lontgrm liquidity requirements, we borrow funds atoenbination of fixed and variable rates. Borrowingsler ou
revolving credit facility bear interest at varialoltes. Our long-term debt, which consists of sed¢@nd unsecured lortigrm financings and tl
issuance of unsecured debt securities, typicalardterest at fixed rates although some loans ingaxest at variable rates. Our interest
risk management objectives are to limit the impgddhterest rate changes on earnings and cash #hmggo lower our overall borrowing co:
To achieve these objectives, from time to time,may enter into interest rate hedge contracts saatolars, swaps, caps and treasury
agreements in order to mitigate our interest riszte with respect to various debt instruments. Wendbhold or issue these derivative contr
for trading or speculative purposes. The interagt pn all of our variable rate debt is adjustedre and three month intervals, subjec
settlements under these interest rate hedge ctsitkéle also enter into treasury lock agreements fime to time in order to limit our expos
to an increase in interest rates with respecttiaréudebt offerings.

39



During 2007, we entered into two floating-to-fixaderest rate swaps for a ogear period with respect to an aggregate of $50amibf
borrowings outstanding under our revolving creditility. These swaps fix the underlying 8@y LIBOR rate under which interest on s
borrowings is based at 4.70%. These swaps werelaegignated as hedges as of December 31, 2007 GRde® No. 133, Accounting fo
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” ("85 No. 133”), as amended by SFAS No. 148xendment of Statement 133 on Deriva
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” Accordinglyet swaps were accounted for as hedge derivatives as of December 31, 2007, al
aggregate unrealized loss of $0.2 million was reczegl in 2007 for these two swaps.

In January 2008, we entered into two additionahtfleg-to-fixed interest rate swaps for a grear period with respect to an aggrega
$50 million of borrowings outstanding under ouraksng credit facility or other floating rate deffthese swaps fix the underlying LIBOR 1
under which interest on such borrowings is bas&126% for $30 million of borrowings and 3.24% &#0 million of borrowings. These swi
were designated as hedges under SFAS No. 133. dingby, the swaps are being accounted for as dashifedges.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires us to make estimates andrapsions that affect the repor
amounts of assets and liabilities and the discsidfircontingent assets and liabilities at the aditthe financial statements and the repc
amounts of revenues and expenses for the repgréirigd. Actual results could differ from our esties

The policies and estimates used in the preparatimur Consolidated Financial Statements are desdrin Note 1 to our Consolida
Financial Statements for the year ended Decemhe2(®)I/. However, certain of our significant accanmipolicies contain an increased leve
assumptions used or estimates made in determihigig impact on our Consolidated Financial Statesmeltanagement has reviewed
critical accounting policies and estimates with élglit committee of our Board of Directors.

We consider our critical accounting estimates tdhmse used in the determination of the reportedwents and disclosure related to
following:

o Real estate and related assets;

e Sales of real estat

e Allowance for doubtful accounts; a
e Property operating expense recover

Real Estate and Related Assets

Real estate and related assets are recorded aarmbstated at cost less accumulated deprecidienovations, replacements and ¢
expenditures that improve or extend the life ofemset are capitalized and depreciated over thémaed useful lives. Expenditures
ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged tatipg expense as incurred. Depreciation is contpusing the straightne method over tt
estimated useful life of 40 years for buildings atepreciable land infrastructure costs, 15 yeardfilding improvements and five to se'
years for furniture, fixtures and equipment. Tenamprovements are amortized using the stri-line method over initial fixed terms of 1
respective leases, which generally are from tloekOtyears.

Expenditures directly related to the developmert @nstruction of real estate assets are includeet real estate assets and are sta
cost in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Our dapit@n policy on development properties is in @tance with SFAS No. 67Atcounting
for Costs and the Initial Rental Operations of REatate Properties,” SFAS No. 34, “Capitalizatidnirterest Costs,’and SFAS No. 5
“Capitalization of Interest Cost in Financial Statnts That Include Investments Accounted for by Hwpiity Method.” Developmer
expenditures include presnstruction costs essential to the developmemraperties, development and construction costerést costs, re
estate taxes, salaries and related costs andahtsr incurred during the period of developmenerkst and other carrying costs are capita
until the building is ready for its intended usee \8bnsider a construction project as substantiaiypleted and ready for its intended use |
the
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completion of tenant improvements. Interest aneiotarrying costs are capitalized until the buidis ready for its intended use, but not |
than one year from cessation of major constructictivity. We cease capitalization on the portioattis substantially completed and occu
or held available for occupancy, and capitalizeyahbse costs associated with the portion undestcoction.

Expenditures directly related to the leasing ofperties are included in deferred leasing costsaardstated at cost in the Consolid:
Balance Sheets. We capitalize initial direct costated to our leasing efforts in accordance wiHAS No. 91, Accounting for Nonrefundahb
Fees and Costs Associated with Originating or AdagiLoans and Initial Direct Costs of LeaseAll’leasing commissions paid to third par
for new leases or lease renewals are capitalingéekrnlal leasing costs include primarily compensatimenefits and other costs such as lega
related to leasing activities that are incurreccamnection with successfully securing leases onpttoperties. Capitalized leasing costs
amortized on a straighine basis over the initial fixed terms of the resfive leases, which generally are from three tgedrs. Estimated co
related to unsuccessful activities are expensddasred. Changes in our estimates regarding tbeessful efforts of leasing could resul
changes that impact earnings.

We record liabilities under FASB Interpretation N, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligas, an interpretation
SFAS No. 143" (“FIN 47")for the performance of asset retirement activitigeen the obligation to perform such activities iEonditional
whether or not the timing or method of settlemdtthe obligation may be conditional on a future rve

Upon the acquisition of real estate, we asses$aih@alue of acquired tangible assets such as, laniidings and tenant improvemel
intangible assets such as above and below markstde acquired iplace leases and other identified intangible asssisassumed liabilities
accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business CombinatidiVe allocate the purchase price to the acquiredsaase assumed liabilities basec
their relative fair values. We assess and condaievalue based on estimated cash flow projectitias utilize appropriate discount anc
capitalization rates as well as available markfgrination. The fair value of the tangible assetawfacquired property considers the valt
the property as if it were vacant.

Above and below market leases acquired are recardether assets at their fair value. Fair valuedkulated as the present value o
difference between (1) the contractual amountsetpdid pursuant to each jilace lease and (2) our estimate of fair marketdeates for ea
corresponding irplace lease, using a discount rate that refleetsiks associated with the leases acquired andurezhover a period equa
the remaining term of the lease for above-marka$ds and the initial term plus the term of any Wwetoarket fixed rate renewal options
below-market leases. The capitalized abmarket lease values are amortized as a reductibas# rental revenue over the remaining ter
the respective leases and the capitalized behanket lease values are amortized as an incredsestorental revenue over the remaining
of the respective leases and any below market mppieriods. If a tenant vacates its space priortgocontractual expiration date,
unamortized balance is adjusted through rentalmese

In-place leases acquired are recorded at their faieva real estate and related assets and areiaewbtb depreciation and amortizat
expense over the remaining term of the respecatiasd. The value of iplace leases is based on our evaluation of thefgpelsaracteristics «
each tenant’'s lease. Factors considered includmaiss of carrying costs during hypothetical expdcleasaip periods, current mark
conditions and costs to execute similar leasesstimating carrying costs, we include real estateg, insurance and other operating expt
and estimates of lost rentals at market rates dufie expected leasg periods, depending on local market conditionsedtimating costs
execute similar leases, we consider tenant imprewesnleasing commissions and legal and otherektpenses. The value ofpface lease
is amortized to depreciation and amortization egpesver the remaining term of the respective ledb@stenant vacates its space prior t
contractual expiration date, any unamortized baasfdts related asset is expensed.

The value of a tenant relationship is based onowerall relationship with the respective tenantctBes considered include the tenant’
credit quality and expectations of lease renewitle value of a tenant relationship is amortizeddpreciation and amortization expense
the initial term and any renewal periods definedha respective leases. Based on our acquisitioiege she adoption of SFAS No. 141
SFAS No. 142, we have deemed tenant relationsbigse timmaterial and have not allocated any amotmtsis intangible asset. We v
evaluate these items in future transactions.
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Real estate and leasehold improvements are ckdsifi long-lived assets held for sale or as lomgh assets to be held for use. Real e
is classified as held for sale when the criteriafegh in SFAS No. 144 are satisfied; this deteration requires us to make estimates
assumptions, including assessing the probability potential sales transactions may or may notrodectual results could differ from thc
assumptions. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, werckassets held for sale at the lower of the gagrgmount or estimated fair value. |
value of assets held for sale is equal to the eséichor contracted sales price with a potentiakblsss costs to sell. The impairment loss i
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds thenastd fair value. With respect to assets clagbifie held for use, if events or change
circumstances, such as a significant decline iupaocy and change in use, indicate that the cayryaue may be impaired, an impairmn
analysis is performed. Such analysis consists téradening whether the assettarrying amount will be recovered from its undisatec
estimated future operating cash flows, includingnested residual cash flows. These cash flows a&témated based on a numbel
assumptions that are subject to economic and mariagrtainties including, among others, demandface, competition for tenants, char
in market rental rates and costs to operate eaghepty. If the carrying amount of a held for ussed®exceeds the sum of its undiscounted fi
operating and residual cash flows, an impairmesd le recorded for the difference between estimiaiedalue of the asset and the net carr
amount. We generally estimate the fair value oktsséeld for use by using discounted cash flow yaigl in some instances, appra
information may be available and is used in additmthe discounted cash flow analysis. As theoiactised in generating these cash flow
difficult to predict and are subject to future etsethat may alter our assumptions, the discountetioa undiscounted future operating
residual cash flows estimated by us in our impaiamalyses or those established by appraisal meenachieved and we may be require
recognize future impairment losses on our propeited for sale and held for use.

Sales of Real Estate

We account for sales of real estate in accordariteS¥AS No. 66. For sales transactions meetingeheirements of SFAS No. 66
full profit recognition, the related assets andilies are removed from the balance sheet anddbegltant gain or loss is recorded in the pe
the transaction closes. For sales transactionslthabt meet the criteria for full profit recogoiti, we account for the transactions in accord
with the methods specified in SFAS No. 66. Forsalansactions with continuing involvement after Hale, if the continuing involvement w
the property is limited by the terms of the salestract, profit is recognized at the time of sale & reduced by the maximum exposure to
related to the nature of the continuing involvem&ales to entities in which we have or receivéngrest are accounted for in accordance
partial sale accounting provisions as set fortSHAS No. 66.

For sales transactions that do not meet sale ieritex set forth in SFAS No. 66, we evaluate theneabf the continuing involveme
including put and call provisions, if present, aamtount for the transaction as a financing arramgegnprofitsharing arrangement, leas
arrangement or other alternate method of accountatger than as a sale, based on the nature aent e the continuing involvement. So
transactions may have numerous forms of continirimglvement. In those cases, we determine whichhatets most appropriate based on
substance of the transaction.

If we have an obligation to repurchase the propattst higher price or at a future indeterminablieiwdsuch as fair market value), or
guarantee the return of the buyeihvestment or a return on that investment foreatended period, we account for such transactioe
financing transaction. If we have an option to mepase the property at a higher price and it islyikve will exercise this option, the transac
is accounted for as a financing transaction. Famdactions treated as financings, we record theiategeceived from the buyer as a finan
obligation and continue to keep the property amated accounts recorded on our consolidated fimdustatements. The results of operatior
the property, net of expenses other than depreniditiet operating income), are reflected as “irsteegzpensedn the financing obligation. If tl
transaction includes an obligation or option tourepase the asset at a higher price, additionatest is recorded to accrete the liability tc
repurchase price. For options or obligations tairepase the asset at fair market value at the €edah reporting period, the balance of
liability is adjusted to equal the current fair walto the extent fair value exceeds the originadricing obligation. The corresponding deb
credit will be recorded to a related discount act@nd the revised debt discount is amortized tiverexpected term until termination of
option or obligation. If it is unlikely such optiomill be exercised, the transaction is accountedufuder the deposit method or pradharing
method. If we have an obligation or option to rejhase at a lower price, the transaction is accduioteas a leasing arrangement. At such
as these repurchase obligations expire, a saldwilecorded and gain recognized.
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If we retain an interest in the buyer and providetain rent guarantees or other forms of suppoere/ithe maximum exposure to |
exceeds the gain, we account for such transactom rofit-sharing arrangement. For transactioeatéd as profisharing arrangements,
record a profitsharing obligation for the amount of equity conttdd by the other partner and continue to keepptioperty and relate
accounts recorded on our consolidated financiéstants. The results of operations of the propery pof expenses other than depreciatior
operating income), are allocated to the other parfar their percentage interest and reflected amsventure expenseah our Consolidate
Financial Statements. In future periods, a saledéerded and profit is recognized when the remgimraximum exposure to loss is redu
below the amount of gain deferred.

Discontinued Operations

Properties that are sold or classified as helcsébe are classified as discontinued operationgéordance with SFAS No. 144 and E
Issue No. 03-13, Applying the Conditions of Paragraph 42 of FASBt&teent No. 144 in Determining Whether to ReportcDiginuer
Operations,” ¢ffective beginning in 2005) provided that (1) thmerations and cash flows of the property will bmi@ated from our ongoir
operations and (2) we will not have any significaattinuing involvement in the operations of theparty after it is sold. Interest expens
included in discontinued operations if the reldtsh securing the sold property is paid off or assd by the buyer in connection with the ¢
If the property is sold to a joint venture in whiate retain an interest, the property will not beamted for as a discontinued operation di
our significant ongoing interest in the operatitmough our joint venture interest. If we are neéal to provide property management, lee
and/or other services for the property owner dfiersale, the property generally will be accouritechs a discontinued operation becaus
expected cash flows related to these managemereéasidg activities will generally not be signifitan comparison to the cash flows from
property prior to sale.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowanceafoounts that may become uncollectible in the &t@ur receivable balance
comprised primarily of rents and operating cosboweties due from tenants as well as accrued stréiigh rents receivable. We regule
evaluate the adequacy of our allowance for doulstfwounts. The evaluation primarily consists ofie@ing past due account balances
considering such factors as the credit quality wf tenant, historical trends of the tenant andtbeondebtor, current economic conditions
changes in customer payment terms. Additionallyhwespect to tenants in bankruptcy, we estimaeipected recovery through bankru,
claims and increase the allowance for amounts déemeollectible. If our assumptions regarding tbéectibility of accounts receivable a
accrued straight-line rents receivable prove iremirrwe could experience write-offs of accountsengable or accrued straighihe rent:
receivable in excess of our allowance for doutdftdounts.

Property Operating Expense Recoveries

Property operating cost recoveries from tenantggst reimbursements) are determined on a leadeasg-basis. The most common ty
of cost reimbursements in our leases are commamnraegntenance (“CAM”) and real estate taxes, wlieeetenant pays its prata share «
operating and administrative expenses and redkeedstees.

The computation of property operating cost recovagpme from tenants is complex and involves numeriodgments, including t
interpretation of terms and other tenant leaseipianvs. Leases are not uniform in dealing with sackt reimbursements and there are r
variations in the computation. Many tenants makettmy fixed payments of CAM, real estate taxes atiter cost reimbursement items.
record these payments as income each month. We adjkstments, positive or negative, to cost regpwecome to adjust the recorc
amounts to our best estimate of the final amounteetbilled and collected with respect to the ceshbursements. After the end of the cale
year, we compute each ter’'s final cost reimbursements and, after consideaimpunts paid by the tenants during the year, issbél or
credit for the appropriate amount to the tenane @liferences between the amounts billed less pusly received payments and the acc
adjustment are recorded as increases or decreasesttrecovery income when the final bills arepared, usually beginning in March ¢
completed by mid-year.
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FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS

We believe that FFO and FFO per share are benldficrmanagement and investors and are importamntatats of the performance of ¢
equity REIT. Because FFO and FFO per share calontatxclude such factors as depreciation and d@atidn of real estate assets and ¢
or losses from sales of operating real estateaésbich can vary among owners of identical assesgmilar conditions based on historical «
accounting and useful life estimates), they faailitcomparisons of operating performance betweeiodseand between other REITS. |
management believes that historical cost accouritingeal estate assets in accordance with GAARiditlp assumes that the value of r
estate assets diminishes predictably over timeceSieal estate values have historically risen berfavith market conditions, many indus
investors and analysts have considered the preamentsf operating results for real estate compatti@s use historical cost accounting tc
insufficient by themselves. As a result, managenimiieves that the use of FFO and FFO per shagether with the required GA/
presentations, provide a more complete understgrafiour performance relative to our competitord armore informed and appropriate b
on which to make decisions involving operatingafining and investing activities.

FFO and FFO per share as disclosed by other REBysnmat be comparable to our calculation of FFO BRO per share as descril
below. However, you should be aware that FFO ard pér share are ndBAAP financial measures and therefore do not reprieset incom
or net income per share as defined by GAAP. Neatrime and net income per share as defined by GAARharenost relevant measure:
determining our operating performance because FECF&O per share include adjustments that investagsdeem subjective, such as ad
back expenses such as depreciation and amortiza&timthermore, FFO per share does not depict theuatnthat accrues directly to -
stockholdersbenefit. Accordingly, FFO and FFO per share shawder be considered as alternatives to net incamnetancome per share
indicators of our operating performance.

Our calculation of FFO, which we believe is coreigtwith the calculation of FFO as defined by tregibhal Association of Real Est

Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) and which approprigteixcludes the cost of capital improvements anateel capitalized interest, is as follows:

e Netincome (loss) computed in accordance with GA
e Less dividends to holders of Preferred Stock aasl éxcess of Preferred Stock redemption cost @reying value;
e Plus depreciation and amortization of assets ufycgignificant to the real estate industry;

e Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of depriecaterating properties (but excluding impairmergsks) and excluding ite
that are classified as extraordinary items undeAB#

e Plus or minus adjustments for unconsolidated peships and joint ventures (to reflect funds froneigtions on the same bas
and

e Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and #ration and gains/(losses) on sales and minoriteréest related
discontinued operation

Further, in calculating FFO, we add back minoritterest in the income from our Operating Partn@rsivhich we believe is consist

with standard industry practice for REITs that @perthrough an UPREIT structure. We believe that important to present FFO on an as-

converted basis since all of the Common Units wated by the Company are redeemable on a onerferbasis for shares of our Comr
Stock.

Other REITs may not define FFO in accordance whith ¢urrent NAREIT definition or may interpret tharent NAREIT definitiol
differently than we do.
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FFO and FFO per share for the years ended Dece3ib@007, 2006 and 2005 are summarized in theviollp table (in thousanc
except per share amounts):

2007 2006 2005
Per Per Per
Amount Share Amount Share Amount Share
Funds from operations:
Net income $ 90,74¢ $ 53,74« $ 62,45¢
Dividends to preferred stockholde (13,477 (17,069 (27,239
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption cost oveyicayr
value (2,28Y) (1,809 (4,272)
Net income available for common stockhold 74,98! $ 1.31 34,87¢ $ 0.6Z 30,94¢ $ 0.5¢
Add/(Deduct):
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a 119,75: 1.9¢ 109,79t 1.7¢ 104,45: 1.7:
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable proper (3,952 (0.0¢) (4,119 (0.07) (7,692) (0.13)
Minority interest from the Operating Partnership in
income from operation 3,06¢ — 1,64( — (25%) —
Unconsolidated affiliates
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a: 13,43¢ 0.21 11,19: 0.1¢ 10,98¢ 0.1¢
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable proper (7,15¢ (0.12) — — — —
Discontinued operation
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a: 1,692 0.0¢ 5,43¢ 0.0¢ 19,37( 0.3z
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable proper (34,86)) (0.57) (15,082 (0.29 (34,129 (0.57)
Minority interest from the Operating Partnership in
income from discontinued operatia 2,60t — 1,53¢ — 3,53¢ —
Release of FASB FIN 48 tax liability (1,479 (0.02) — _ _ _
Funds from operations $ 168,090 $ 2.7z $ 14528 $ 237 $ 127,22: $ 2.11
Weighted average shares outstanding) 61,54° 61,36: 60,30

(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdikiCommon Stock equivalen
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The effects of potential changes in interest raresdiscussed below. Our market risk discussioludes “forward-looking statements”
and represents an estimate of possible changesrinveiue or future earnings that would occur asagniypothetical future movements
interest rates. These disclosures are not pregdieators of expected future effects, but only datbrs of reasonably possible effects.
result, actual future results may differ materidflym those presented. See “Managengbliscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionl
Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Reses”and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenfents description of our accounti
policies and other information related to thesariitial instruments.

To meet in part our longerm liquidity requirements, we borrow funds atamnbination of fixed and variable rates. Borrowingeler ou
revolving credit facility bear interest at varialoltes. Our long-term debt, which consists of sed¢@nd unsecured lortigrm financings and tl
issuance of unsecured debt securities, typicalardbterest at fixed rates although some loans ingxest at variable rates. Our interest
risk management objectives are to limit the impddhterest rate changes on earnings and cash #mago lower our overall borrowing co:
To achieve these objectives, from time to time wéeeinto interest rate hedge contracts such asrsplswaps, caps and treasury
agreements in order to mitigate our interest ratewith respect to various debt instruments. Wieegally do not hold or issue these derive
contracts for trading or speculative purposes.

As of December 31, 2007, we had $1,394 millionioéd rate debt outstanding. The estimated aggregatenarket value of this debt
December 31, 2007 was $1,385 million. If interegés increase by 100 basis points, the aggregatadaket value of our fixed rate debt a
December 31, 2007 would decrease by approxima&9dyndillion. If interest rates decrease by 100 bpsists, the aggregate fair market vi
of our fixed rate debt as of December 31, 2007 déautrease by approximately $75 million.

As of December 31, 2007, we had $197.6 million afiable rate debt outstanding not protected byrésterate hedge contracts. If
weighted average interest rate on this variabke dabt is 100 basis points higher or lower durhregg12 months ended December 31, 200¢
interest expense relating to this debt would beciased or decreased approximately $2.0 million.

For a discussion of the $50 million of intereserawaps in effect at December 31, 2007, see “Manages Discussion and Analysis
Financial Conditions and Results of Operations guldity and Capital Resources — Interest Rate Hegdictivities.” If LIBOR interest rate
increase or decrease by 100 basis points, the gafgréair market value of these swaps as of DeceBthe2007 would decrease or incre
respectively, by approximately $0.3 million.

In addition, we are exposed to certain losses @& dahent of nonperformance by the counterpartieeutite swaps. We expect
counterparties, which are major financial instias, to perform fully under the swaps. Howevei ifounterparty defaults on its obligati
under a swap, we could be required to pay theditdls on our debt, even if such rates were in exgkthe rate in the contract.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See page 53 for Index to Consolidated FinanciakS8tants.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

GENERAL

The purpose of this section is to discuss the g¥fegess of our disclosure controls and procedanesour internal control over financ
reporting. The statements in this section repreentonclusions of Edward J. Fritsch, our Pregidend Chief Executive Officer, and Terry
Stevens, our Senior Vice President and Chief Filahficer.

The CEO and CFO evaluations of our controls andceatares include a review of the controls’ objecivand design, the controls’
implementation by us and the effect of the contorighe information generated for use in this AnrRiport. We seek to identify data ern
control problems or acts of fraud and confirm thppropriate corrective action, including procespriomements, is undertaken. Our coni
and procedures are also evaluated on an ongoirg tyasr through the following:

e activities undertaken and reports issued by emgloye our internal audit departme

e quarterly su-certifications by representatives from appropriatsiness and accounting functions to support th®'s and CF(s
evaluations of our controls and procedu

e other personnel in our finance and accounting grgdion;
e members of our internal disclosure committee; and
e Mmembers of the audit committee of our Board of Etives.

We do not expect that our controls and proceduitprevent all errors and all fraud. A control 8y, no matter how well conceived i
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absaisgrance that the objectives of the controlesystre met. Further, the design of con
and procedures must reflect the fact that thereeseurce constraints, and the benefits of contraist be considered relative to their c«
Because of the inherent limitations in all consgktems, no evaluation of controls can provide labs@ssurance that all control issues
instances of fraud, if any, have been detectedsdlieherent limitations include the realities thatgments in decisiomaking can be faul
and that breakdowns can occur because of a simmlea mistake. Additionally, controls can be cinevented by the individual acts of sc
persons, by collusion of two or more people, onfanagement override of the control. The desigmgfsystem of controls also is based in
upon certain assumptions about the likelihood tirievents, and there can be no assurance thateaign will succeed in achieving its ste
goals under all potential future conditions.

MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  FINANCIAL REPORTING

We are required to establish and maintain intecoatrol over financial reporting designed to pravigasonable assurance regardin
reliability of financial reporting and the prepdoat of financial statements for external purposesaccordance with generally accep
accounting principles. As defined in Rule 18&f) under the Exchange Act, internal control ofieancial reporting includes those policies
procedures that:

e pertain to the maintenance of records that in nrealsie detail accurately and fairly reflect our sactions and dispositions of assets;

e provide reasonable assurance that transactioneeepeded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in accorda
with generally accepting accounting principles, athét receipts and expenditures are being made onlaccordance wi
authorizations of management and directors;

e provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wselisposition of our assets t
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Under the supervision of our CEO and CFO, we cotatl@an evaluation of the effectiveness of our makrcontrol over financi

reporting as of December 31, 2007 based on therieriestablished in Internal Control ‘ategrated Framework issued by the Committe
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
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We have concluded that, as of December 31, 2007nternal control over financial reporting wasezffive. Deloitte & Touche LLP, o
independent registered public accounting firm, isased their attestation report, which is inclutbetbw, on the effectiveness of our inte
control over financial reporting as of December 2107.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Highwoods Properties, Inc.
Raleigh, North Carolina

We have audited the internal control over finanegdorting of Highwoods Properties, Inc. (the "Camy") as of December 31, 20
based on the criteria established in Internal @biitegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of t
Treadway Commission. The Company's managemensonsible for maintaining effective internal comeer financial reporting and for
assessment of the effectiveness of internal comvel financial reporting included in the accomgagyManagemens Annual Report ¢
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the Compsuiyternal control over financial report
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statedof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lo@Jnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetdadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€@ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
evaluating management's assessment, testing ahatng the design and operating effectivenesstafrhal control, and performing such o
procedures as we considered necessary in the @tanoes. We believe that our audit provides a redse basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed by, or under the supenvisf, the company's princij
executive and principal financial officers, or pmrs performing similar functions, and effected W tcompany's board of directc
management, and other personnel to provide reakaaburance regarding the reliability of financggorting and the preparation of finan
statements for external purposes in accordance geétierally accepted accounting principles. A comfsamternal control over financ
reporting includes those policies and procedures ({h) pertain to the maintenance of records tinateasonable detail, accurately and f:
reflect the transactions and dispositions of thgetssof the company; (2) provide reasonable asser#imat transactions are recordel
necessary to permit preparation of financial states in accordance with generally accepted acaogirgrinciples, and that receipts
expenditures of the company are being made onlgceordance with authorizations of management anectdirs of the company; a
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding pr@reatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the company's as
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tcohover financial reporting, including the positp of collusion or imprope
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventedetected on a timely basis. Al
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenesshe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk tha
controls may become inadequate because of changesnditions, or that the degree of compliance wiite policies or procedures n
deteriorate.

In our opinion, Highwoods Properties, Inc., main&, in all material respects, effective internahtcol over financial reporting as
December 31, 2007, based on the criteria establishdnternal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo&tnited States), tl
consolidated financial statements and financigkstant schedules as of and for the year ended Oeme®i, 2007, of Highwoods Propert
Inc., and our report dated March 2, 2008, expreasaahqualified opinion on those financial stateteemd financial statement schedules.
Raleigh, North Carolina
March 2, 2008
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CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN G

In Iltem 9A of our 2006 Annual Report, our managetreported that the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2006 due to matergakmesses that existed as of such date in the@&@hteontrol environment associated with
accounting for real estate assets. In 2007, we ldged and implemented remediation plans to imprthes internal control environme
associated with the material weaknesses that ed@st®f December 31, 2006. First, we converted fasupplemental software package, w
had been used for tracking detailed fixed asseirdscand for calculating depreciation, to the dethfixed asset and depreciation moi
contained within and integrated to our general éedgackage. This conversion eliminated the needdoncile the supplemental system tc
general ledger, enhanced the effectiveness of otremt fixed asset account reconciliations, andvadd for the development and use
additional integrity reports to analyze our fixesbat and related depreciation accounts. Seconteg@n using our centralized lease app!
software to identify and properly account for athant improvements undertaken by tenants. Thirdjmgemented additional analytir
procedures to reasonably assure that costs rdtatiegorocess building improvements, tenant improvemants new development complet
costs are identified and properly accrued in oursotidated financial statements on a timely baS@urth, we set up an internal stee
committee and hired an outside consultant to et@laar current use of the jalmst module within our general ledger package. Assalt, wi
designed and are implementing improved proceduresli use of the software to track the percentdg®mpletion of jobs that are in proce
Fifth, we developed and are implementing a plange our centralized invoice approval software tcess all invoices related to fmeces
building improvements, tenant improvements and devwelopment completion costs. Sixth, we created@cir of SOX Compliance positic
which was filled in November 2007, to oversee aurent project to develop and implement a Compaide policy and procedures manual
use by our divisional and accounting staff to readdy assure consistent and appropriate assessamdnapplication of generally accer
accounting principles. Seventh, we hired a ChiefdAmting Officer who started with the Company ingiigt 2007. As a result of the foregc
activities, the material weaknesses that existesf &ecember 31, 2006 were determined to have aerdiated as of December 31, 2007.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules also require us to maintain disclosumatrots and procedures that are designed to enbateiriformation required to
disclosed in our annual and periodic reports fileith the SEC is recorded, processed, summarizedreported within the time perio
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. As defiedRule 13ai5(e) under the Exchange Act, disclosure contrald procedures incluc
without limitation, controls and procedures desifjie ensure that information required to be disafblsy us is accumulated and communic
to our management, including our CEO and CFO, lmatimely decisions regarding required disclosier CEO and CFO believe that
disclosure controls and procedures were effectivbeaend of the period covered by this Annual Repo

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE
Information about our executive officers and dioestand the code of ethics that applies to ourfamecutive officer and our sen
financial officers, which is posted on our websii®,incorporated herein by reference to the Commmroxy Statement to be filed
connection with our annual meeting of stockholderbe held on May 15, 2008. See Item X in Part thi§ Annual Report for biographit
information regarding our executive officers.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information about the compensation of our directamsgl executive officers is incorporated herein &femrence to the ComparsyProx)
Statement to be filed in connection with our anmaakting of stockholders to be held on May 15, 2008

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information about the beneficial ownership of oun@non Stock and our equity compensation planscisrporated herein by referenct
the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed in cotineavith our annual meeting of stockholders tchieéd on May 15, 2008.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information about certain relationships and reldatadsactions and the independence of our diretgangorporated herein by referenc
the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed in cotinaavith our annual meeting of stockholders tchie& on May 15, 2008.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information about fees paid to and services pravidg our independent registered public accountingsf is incorporated herein
reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement toled fin connection with our annual meeting of staiiklbrs to be held on May 15, 2008.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reference is made to the Index of Financial Statesnen page 53 for a list of the consolidated foianstatements included in this report.

Exhibit

Number

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

EXHIBITS

Description

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatiorhef Company (filed as part of the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-
K dated September 25, 1997 and amended by artiafgdementary filed as part of the Compan@urrent Report on For
8-K dated October 4, 1997 and articles supplemefiilad as part of the Company’s Current ReporfFonm 8-K dated
April 20, 1998)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (fiedaat of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 1fixkthe year
ended December 31, 20C

Indenture among the Operating Partnership, the @osnpand First Union National Bank of North Caroltheted as ¢
December 1, 1996 (filed as part of the Operatingrnieashif's Current Report on Forn-K dated December 2, 199

Form of 5.85% Notes due March 15, 2017 (filed as pithe Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K date
March 22, 2007

Officers’ Certificate Establishing the Terms of th&5% Notes, dated as of March 22, 2007 (filedaas of the Company’s
Current Report on Forrr-K dated March 22, 200°

Second Restated Agreement of Limited Partnershifgddas of January 1, 2000, of the Operating Pattipe(filed as pat
of the Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 22, 2004, tStheond Restated Agreement of Limited Partnerslaifgddas o
January 1, 2000, of the Operating Partnershipd(file part of the Company’s Annual Report on ForrKXor the year
ended December 31, 20C

Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan (fitepart of the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the
guarter ended June 30, 20(

Form of warrants to purchase Common Stock of theamy issued to former shareholders of Associatguitél
Properties, Inc. (filed as part of the Comg’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 19

2005 Shareholder Value Plan (filed as part of thenfany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeadezh
December 31, 200¢

Amendment to Credit Agreement among the OperatargnBrship, the Company, the Subsidiaries namedithand the
Lender named therein, dated August 8, 2006 (fiedat of the Company’s Current Report on Form @aked
August 8, 2006

Highwoods Properties, Inc. Retirement Plan, effectis of March 1, 2006 (filed as part of the Cony’s Quarterly Repoil
on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

Executive Supplemental Employment Agreement, daseof April 13, 2007, between the Company and Edwafritsct
(filed as part of the Company’s Current Report onnfr
8-K dated April 13, 2007
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Exhibit
Number

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

21

23.1
311
31.2
31.3
32.1
32.2
32.3

Description

Executive Supplemental Employment Agreement, daseof April 13, 2007, between the Company and MétEa Harris
(filed as part of the Company’s Current Report omfr
8-K dated April 13, 2007

Executive Supplemental Employment Agreement, daseof April 13, 2007, between the Company and Ter8tevens
(filed as part of the Company’s Current Report onnfr
8-K dated April 13, 2007

Executive Supplemental Employment Agreement, daseof April 13, 2007, between the Company and Gen&ndersor
(filed as part of the Company’s Current Report omf
8-K dated April 13, 2007

Executive Supplemental Employment Agreement, daseof April 13, 2007, between the Company and Seffy. Miller
(filed as part of the Company’s Current Report onnfr
8-K dated April 13, 2007

Schedule of subsidiaries of the Company (filedas f the Compar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ende
December 31, 200

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LL

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saelk-Oxley Act
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saelk-Oxley Act
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INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiimm 54
Consolidated Financial Statemer
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&0)200¢ 55
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Yeare8mkecember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2 56
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equitytiier Years Ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 200! 57
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEeaded December 31, 2007, 2006 and Z 58
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems 60
Schedule | 111
Schedule 11l 112

All other schedules are omitted because they ateapplicable or because the required information@uded in the Consolidat
Financial Statements or notes thereto.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Highwoods Properties, Inc.
Raleigh, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Highwoods Properties, Inc. and sulrsigi (the “Company”gs o
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related cdaset statements of income, stockholders' equity,cash flows for each of the three yi
in the period ended December 31, 2007. Our autiitsiacluded the financial statement schedulesfd3ecember 31, 2007 and 2006 anc
each of the three years in the period ended DeceBih@007 listed in the Index at Item 15. Thesafficial statements and financial stater
schedules are the responsibility of the Compangsagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements
financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting Oversigha8lo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet aodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimidugcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tiliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements. An &
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenemtekhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateteaepresent fairly, in all material respects, thearcial position of Highwoot
Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Decembe2®17 and 2006, and the results of their operatand their cash flows for each of the tl
years in the period ended December 31, 2007, ifioomity with accounting principles generally acasgptin the United States of Ameri
Also, in our opinion, such financial statement ghtles, when considered in relation to the basicsalidated financial statements taken
whole, present fairly, in all material respect® thformation set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findratatements, effective January 1, 2006, the Comphanged its method of account
for share-based payments to conform to Statememir@ncial Accounting Standards No. 123(Rhare-Based Payment , and changed |
method of accounting for joint ventures to confdorEmerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 0Bebermining Whether a General Partner or
the General Partnersasa Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Smilar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights .

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo&tnited States), tl
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2007, based on the criteragbkstted ininternal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrtee Treadway Commission, and our report datealckl 2, 2008 express
an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internatteol over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Raleigh, North Carolina
March 2, 2008
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,
2007 2006
Assets:
Real estate assets, at c
Land $ 357,84 $ 345,54¢
Buildings and tenant improvemer 2,708,98! 2,573,038
Development in proces 101,66: 101,89¢
Land held for development 103,36! 102,64
3,271,85! 3,123,12
Less-accumulated depreciation (649,76 (588,307
Net real estate assets 2,622,09. 2,534,81.
Real estate and other assets, net, held fol 10,46¢ 44,32:
Cash and cash equivalel 3,14( 16,69(
Restricted cas 15,89¢ 2,02
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $935 ab@%3, respectivel 23,52 23,347
Notes receivable, net of allowance of $68 and $7@&ectively 5,22¢ 7,871
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net of\waloce of $440 and $301,
respectively 74,421 68,36«
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat 58,04¢ 60,35¢
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdataed amortizatiol 72,18¢ 66,35:
Prepaid expenses and other assets 41,95¢ 20,70¢
Total Assets $ 2,926,95 $ 2,844 85:
Liabilities, Minority Interest and Stockholders' Equity:
Mortgages and notes payal $ 1,641,98 $ 1,465,12!
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and othetitied 157,76¢ 156,73
Financing obligations 35,07 35,53(
Total Liabilities 1,834,82. 1,657,391
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note
Minority interest 70,09¢ 79,72t

Stockholders' Equity
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 awtbdrshares

8 5/8% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSiaquidation

preference $1,000 per share), 82,937 and 104, %t8sissued and

outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respéc 82,931 104,94!

8% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred SKlayaiiation

preference $25 per share), 2,100,000 and 3,70G|0@@s issued and

outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respéc 52,50( 92,50(
Common stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdishares

57,167,193 and 56,211,148 shares issued and oditsgeat

December 31, 2007 and 2006, respecti' 57z 562
Additional paic-in capital 1,448,05! 1,449,33
Distributions in excess of net earnir (561,09) (538,099
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (93€) (1,515)

Total Stockholders' Equity 1,022,03; 1,107,73.
Total Liabilities, Minority Interest and StockholdeEquity $ 2,926,95 $ 2,844,85:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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Rental and other revenues
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment of assets held for L
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Interest expenses:
Contractua

Amortization of deferred financing cos
Financing obligations

Other income/(expense):
Interest and other incon

Settlement of tenant bankruptcy cla
Loss on debt extinguishments

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Income before disposition of property, insurance ga, minority
interest and equity in earnings of unconsolidatedféiliates

Gains on disposition of property, r
Gain from property insurance settlem
Minority interest

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates

Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:

Income from discontinued operations, net of miryariteresi
Net gains on sales of discontinued operationsphetinority interes

Release of FASB FIN 48 tax liability

Net income
Dividends on preferred stot

Excess of preferred stock redemption cost oveytayivalue

Net income available for common stockholders

Net income per common shar«- basic:

Income/(loss) from continuing operatio

Income from discontinued operations
Net income

Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic

Net income per common share - diluted:

Income/(loss) from continuing operatio

Income from discontinued operations
Net income

Weighted average common shares outstanding - dilute

Dividends declared per common share

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
$ 437,050 $ 40927 $ 387,92
157,26 150,47: 138,53
122,17: 112,88: 107,08
78¢ — 3,17:
41,57 37,30¢ 33,06
321,79: 300,66+ 281,85
93,99: 94,22¢ 98,23
2,41¢ 2,37t 3,372
3,93( 4,167 5,03z
100,33’ 100,76t 106,63
6,41 6,99: 7,04z
— 1,581 —
— (494) (459)
6,41 8,08( 6,58¢
21,34( 15,92: 6,02¢
20,56 16,15; 14,17:
4,12¢ — —
(3,74%) (2,24%) 25E
13,11( 6,841 9,30:
55,39t 36,67¢ 29,75¢
1,86¢ 3,21( 9,47:
32,01: 13,85¢ 23,22¢
1,47¢ — —
35,35( 17,06¢ 32,69
90,74¢ 53,74 62,45¢
(13,47) (17,06 (27,239
(2,28F) (1,809) (4,277)
$ 7498 $ 3487t $  30,94¢
$ 0.7C $ 0.3 $ (0.09)
0.6: 0.31 0.61
$ 1.3 $ 0.64 $ 0.5¢
56,44« 54,48¢ 53,73
$ 0.6¢ $ 03z $ (0.09)
0.62 0.3( 0.61
$ 1.31 $ 0.6: $ 0.5¢
61,54 61,36 53,73
$ 1.7C $ 1.7C $ 1.7¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@ssients.
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Balance at December 31, 2004
Issuance of Common Sto
Common Stock dividenc
Preferred Stock dividenc

Adjustment to minority interest of
unitholders in the Operating
Partnershiy

Issuance of restricted stock, 1
Redemption of Preferred Sto
Fair market value of options gran

Amortization of restricted stock al
stock options

Other comprehensive incor

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2005
Reversal of unvested deferred

compensation as a result of the

adoption of SFAS No. 123(F
Issuance of Common Sto
Conversion of warrants to shal
Common Stock dividenc
Preferred Stock dividenc

Adjustment to minority interest of
unitholders in the Operating
Partnershiy

Issuance of restricted stock, 1
Redemption of Preferred Sto

Amortization of restricted stock al
stock options

Other comprehensive incor
Net income
Balance at December 31, 2006

Cumulative effect adjustment
resulting from the adoption of
FASB Interpretation No. 4

Issuance of Common Sto

Conversion of Common Units to
Common Stocl

Common Stock dividenc
Preferred Stock dividenc

Adjustment to minority interest of
unitholders in the Operating
Partnershiy

Issuance of restricted stock, 1

Redemption/repurchase of Prefel
Stock

Amortization of restricted stock al
stock options

Other comprehensive incor
Net income

Balance at December 31, 2007

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(in thousands, except share amounts)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 ansl 200

Accum Distri-
Other butions
Number of Additional Deferred Compre- in Excess
Common Common  Series A Series B Series D Paid-In Compen- hensive of Net
Shares Stock Preferred  Preferred  Preferred Capital sation Loss Earnings Total
53,813,42 $ 53¢ $ 104,94'$ 172,50($ 100,00 $ 1,416,131 $ (4,110 % (2,819)% (419,079$%  1,368,11
109,52¢ 1 - - - 1,64¢ - - - 1,65(
: B . . - - - (91,777 (91,779
- - - - - - - - (27,239 (27,239)
- - - - - (4,916 - - - (4,916
105,55 1 - - - 1,31¢ (1,317) - - -
- - - (30,000 (100,00¢) 4,272 - - (4,272) (130,001)
- - - - - 1,232 (1,237) - - -
- - - - - - 2,72¢ - - 2,72¢
- - - - - - - 60z - 602
- - - - - - - - 62,45¢ 62,45¢
54,028,50 54C 104,94! 142,50( - 1,419,68. (3,936) (2,217) (479,907 1,181,61!
- - - - - (3,93¢) 3,93¢ - - -
1,975,62: 21 - - - 42,78 - - - 42,80t
83,94: - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - (93,07%) (93,07%)
- - , - - - - - (17,067) (17,069
- - - - - (14,726 - - - (14,726
123,07: - - - - - - - - -
- - - (50,000 - 1,80 - - (1,807) (50,000
- 1 - - - 3,72¢ - - - 3,73(
- - - - - - - 697 - 697
- - - - - - - - 53,74« 53,74«
56,211,14 562 104,94! 92,50( - 1,449,33 - (1,51%) (538,09%) 1,107,73:
- - - - - - - - (1,429 (1,424
692,28: 7 - - - 7,06( - - - 7,067
55,83¢ 1 - - - 2,16t - - - 2,16¢
} . - - - - - - (96,55¢) (96,552
} . - - - - - - (13,477) (13,477)
- - - - - (17,579 - - - (17,579
207,92¢ - - - - - - - - -
- - (22,009) (40,000 - 2,037 - - (2,285) (62,25¢)
- 2 - - - 5,02¢ - - - 5,031
- - - - - - - 571 - 577
- - - - - - - - 90,74¢ 90,74¢
57,167,19 $ 572 $ 82,931 $ 52,500 $ -$  1448,05 $ -3 (93§ $ (561,099%  1,022,03:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Operating activities:
Net income $ 90,74 $ 53,74 $ 62,45¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciatior 109,54t 103,77¢ 110,85:
Amortization of lease commissio 14,31¢ 14,54¢ 15,60¢
Amortization of lease incentive 962 82¢ 87¢
Amortization of restricted stock and stock opti 5,031 3,73( 2,72¢
Amortization of deferred financing cos 2,41% 2,37¢ 3,372
Amortization of accumulated other comprehensive 577 697 70z
Impairment of assets held for L 78¢ 2,60( 7,581
Loss on debt extinguishmer — 494 452
Net gains on disposition of propel (55,039 (31,239) (39,92¢)
Gain from property insurance settlem (4,12¢) — —
Minority interest 6,35( 3,78 3,281
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia (13,110 (6,847) (9,309)
Release of FASB FIN 48 tax liabili (1,424 — —
Change in financing obligatior 454 1,191 21z
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 4,462 7,74¢ 8,96¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 481 2,80¢ (8,76¢)
Prepaid expenses and other as (2,157) (3,626 (1,495)
Accrued straigl-line rents receivabl (7,41¢) (8,592 (7,496
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitied 8,80< (2,499 4,03(
Net cash provided by operating activit 161,66: 145,52! 154,13:
Investing activities:
Additions to real estate assets and deferred lga&sists (287,49) (222,03() (167,767
Proceeds from disposition of real estate as 144,64t 260,22 370,93:
Proceeds from property insurance settlen 4,94( — —
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated afitkes 19,25¢ 11,88¢ 4,81¢
Net repayments in notes receiva 2,91¢ 1,361 4,39¢
Contributions to unconsolidated affiliat (4,716 (200) —
Cash assumed upon consolidation of unconsoliddfiidte — 64t —
Changes in restricted cash and other investingiaes (30,259 12,74¢ (11,467
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activi (150,70 64,73¢ 200,92!
Financing activities:
Distributions paid on Common Stock and Common L (103,719 (101,78) (101,48)
Redemption/repurchase of Preferred St (62,25¢) (50,000) (130,000
Dividends paid on Preferred Sto (13,477 (17,069 (27,23%)
Distributions to minority partner in consolidateffilate (2,404 (737) —
Net proceeds from the sale of Common St 7,067 42,808 1,65(
Repurchase of Common Un (27,46%) (26,487) (11,319
Borrowings on revolving credit facilit 399,80( 662,00( 152,50(
Repayments of revolving credit facili (545,50() (479,000 (132,000
Borrowings on mortgages and notes pay: 424,43: 68,62¢ 38,28
Repayments of mortgages and notes pay (101,97¢) (289,181) (167,079
Payments on financing obligatio (913) (86%) (775)
Payments on debt extinguishme — — (255)
Contributions from minority interest partn 5,651 76C —
Additions to deferred financing cos (3,7572) (3,855 (621)
Net cash used in financing activiti (24,509 (194,78)) (378,329
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equis. (13,55() 15,47¢ (23,27()
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the ¢ 16,69( 1,217 24,48:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the p $ 3.14C $ 16,69C $ 121%

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalizsealudes cash distributions to

owners of sold properties accounted for as finaggeiof $2,148, $1,614 and

$3,454 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectiv $ 88867 $ 96,28« $ 100,76:

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anthincing activities:

The following table summarizes the net asset aitquis and dispositions subject to mortgage notagaple and other nocast
transactions. There were no non-cash investindiaadcing activities during the year ended Decen#dgr2007.

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Assets:
Net real estate asst $ — $ 3485 $ (20,679
Restricted cas — (1,865 2,50(
Accounts receivabl — 10z 10
Notes receivabl — — —
Accrued straigl-line rents receivabl — 962 (4349
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat — (1,939 1,55:
Deferred leasing costs, r — 287 (62)
Prepaid and other — — (268)
$ — $ 32400 $ (17,379
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payal $ — $ 3107¢ $ 7,33(
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiied — (1,652 12,27,
Financing obligation — 1,04¢ (30,219
$ — $ 3047: $ (10,61)
Minority Interest and Stockholders’ Equity $ — $ 1,92¢ $ (6,769

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdidsded subsidiaries (the “Company”), is a fulljteégrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust (“REtf&t operates in the southeastern and midwesteitedJ8tates. The Company condi
virtually all of its activities through HighwoodseRlty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Partngrgh

The Company is the sole general partner of the &ioey Partnership. At December 31, 2007, the Commarned all of the prefern
partnership interests (“Preferred Units”) and 93.8%the common partnership interests (“Common Uhita the Operating Partnersk
Limited partners (including certain officers andeditors of the Company) own the remaining CommoritdJrGenerally, the Operati
Partnership is required to redeem each Common &tnibe request of the holder thereof for cash etahe value of one share of
Company’s Common Stock, $.01 par value (the “Com®tmtk”), based on the average of the market price for theatlilng days immediate
preceding the notice date of such redemption, peabithat the Company at its option may elect taumecany such Common Units preser
for redemption for cash or one share of CommonlStohe Common Units owned by the Company are ragemable. In 2007, the Compi
redeemed 620,361 Common Units for $27.5 milliosash and redeemed 55,836 Common Units for a likeben of shares of Common Stc
which increased the percentage of Common Units dvayethe Company from 92.2% at December 31, 20@318% at December 31, 2007
2006, the Company redeemed 716,888 Common Unitash, which increased the percentage of Commors @nihed by the Company fre
90.8% at December 31, 2005 to 92.2% at Decembe2@G. Preferred Units in the Operating Partnersipe issued to the Company
connection with the Company’s Preferred Stock affgs in 1997 and 1998 (the “Preferred StocRfe net proceeds raised from each o
Preferred Stock issuances were contributed by tmapany to the Operating Partnership in exchangéh®Preferred Units. The terms of €
series of Preferred Units generally parallel thengeof the respective Preferred Stock as to diddehquidation and redemption rights as n
fully described in Note 9.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company and/or ther&ipg Partnership wholly owned: 311 service office, industrial and ret
properties; 109 rental residential units; 634 aafesndeveloped land suitable for future developtnehwhich 493 acres are considered
holdings; and an additional 15 properties and 18%éle condominiums under development. In additionowned interests (50.0% or less
67 in-service office and industrial properties afitB rental residential units. Five of the Sarvice office properties are consolidate
December 31, 2007 as more fully described belowimmbte 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepiarednformity with accounting principlegenerally accepted in the United State
America (“GAAP”). As more fully described below amt Notes 4 and 12, as required by SFAS No. 144ctnting for the Impairmerdr
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” (“SFAS Nadl44"), theConsolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 200éhandonsolidated Statement:
Income for the years ended December 31, 2006 af8 @@re reclassified from previously reported antsua reflect in real estate and of
assets held for sale and in discontinued operatlmmassets and operations for those propertidsogdield for sale in 2007 which qualified
discontinued operations presentation.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

The Consolidated Financial Statements include ther&ing Partnership, wholly owned subsidiaries tna$e subsidiaries in which
own a majority voting interest with the ability twontrol operations of the subsidiaries and wheresubstantive participating rights
substantive kick out rights have been granted ¢ontinority interest holders. In accordance with Egimgy Issues Task Force (“EITFI$sue
No. 045, “Determining Whether a General Partner or the GéfRadners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partrigrsh Similar Entity Whe
the Limited Partners Have Certain Righta& consolidate partnerships, joint ventures andteunliability companies when we control
major operating and financial policies of the gntlirough majority ownership or in our capacitygeneral partner or managing membe
addition, we consolidate those entities, if anyemhwe are deemed to be the primary beneficiagy \ariable interest entity (as defined
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Imegtation No. 46 (revised December 2003}ohsolidation of Variable Intere
Entities” (“FIN 46(R)")). All significant intercomany transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accactdamith GAAP requires us to make estimates andnagsons that affect the amou
reported in the financial statements and accompanybtes. Actual results could differ from thosgmaates.

Real Estate and Related Assets

Real estate and related assets are recorded aarmbstated at cost less accumulated deprecidienovations, replacements and ¢
expenditures that improve or extend the life oktsare capitalized and depreciated over theimastid useful lives. Expenditures for ordir
maintenance and repairs are charged to operatipgnse as incurred. Depreciation is computed udiegstraightine method over tf
estimated useful life of 40 years for buildings atepreciable land infrastructure costs, 15 yeardfilding improvements and five to se'
years for furniture, fixtures and equipment. Tenamprovements are amortized using the stri-line method over initial fixed terms of 1
respective leases, which generally are from ttoekOtyears.

Expenditures directly related to the developmert @nstruction of real estate assets are includeet real estate assets and are sta
cost in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Our dapit@n policy on development properties is in @tance with SFAS No. 67 Atcounting
for Costs and the Initial Rental Operations of REatate Properties,” SFAS No. 34, “Capitalizatidnirterest Costs,’and SFAS No. 5
“Capitalization of Interest Cost in Financial Statnts That Include Investments Accounted for by Hwpiity Method.” Developmer
expenditures include presnstruction costs essential to the developmemraperties, development and construction costerést costs, re
estate taxes, salaries and related costs andabesr incurred during the period of developmerterest and other carrying costs are capita
until the building is ready for its intended usee \bnsider a construction project as substantiaiypleted and ready for its intended use |
the completion of tenant improvements. Interest atier carrying costs are capitalized until theding is ready for its intended use, but
later than one year from cessation of major constrn activity. We cease capitalization on the jportthat is substantially completed
occupied or held available for occupancy, and edip& only those costs associated with the pouimsher construction.

Expenditures directly related to the leasing ofpemties are included in deferred leasing costsaardstated at cost in the Consolid:
Balance Sheets. We capitalize initial direct costated to our leasing efforts in accordance wiAS No. 91, Accounting for Nonrefundah
Fees and Costs Associated with Originating or AdagiLoans and Initial Direct Costs of LeaseAll'leasing commissions paid to third par
for new leases or lease renewals are capitalizedrnal leasing costs include primarily compensatlzenefits and other costs, such as
fees related to leasing activities, that are irediin connection with successfully securing leasethe properties. Capitalized leasing cost
amortized on a straigine basis over the initial fixed terms of the resjive leases, which generally are from three toy&@rs. A
December 31, 2007 and 2006, gross deferred leasisig were $106.4 million and $95.8 million, resjpety, and accumulated amortizat
was $43.0 million and $37.0 million, respectivelistimated costs related to unsuccessful activaresexpensed as incurred. Changes i
estimates regarding the successful efforts of tgasould result in changes that impact earnings.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

We record liabilities under FASB Interpretation NtY.,, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligas, an interpretation
SFAS No. 143" (“FIN 47")for the performance of asset retirement activitig®n the obligation to perform such activities iconditional
whether or not the timing or method of settlemdtthe obligation may be conditional on a future ve

Upon the acquisition of real estate, we asses$aithealue of acquired tangible assets such as, lanildings and tenant improvemel
intangible assets such as above and below markstde acquired iplace leases and other identified intangible asssisassumed liabilities
accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business CombinatidiVe allocate the purchase price to the acquiredsaase assumed liabilities basec
their relative fair values. We assess and condaievalue based on estimated cash flow projectitvas utilize appropriate discount anc
capitalization rates as well as available markfgrination. The fair value of the tangible assetawfacquired property considers the valt
the property as if it were vacant.

Above and below market leases acquired are recardether assets at their fair value. Fair valueakulated as the present value of
difference between (1) the contractual amountsetpdid pursuant to each fitace lease and (2) our estimate of fair markeddeates for ea
corresponding irplace lease, using a discount rate that refleetsiks associated with the leases acquired andurezhover a period equa
the remaining term of the lease for above-markasds and the initial term plus the term of any Wwetoarket fixed rate renewal options
below-market leases. The capitalized abmarket lease values are amortized as a reductibass rental revenue over the remaining tet
the respective leases and the capitalized behanket lease values are amortized as an incredsestorental revenue over the remaining
of the respective leases and any below market mptieriods. If a tenant vacates its space priortgocontractual expiration date, :
unamortized balance is adjusted through rentalmese

In-place leases acquired are recorded at their fhievia real estate and related assets and are iaewbtd depreciation and amortizai
expense over the remaining term of the respecatiasd. The value of iplace leases is based on our evaluation of thefgpelsaracteristics «
each tenant’s lease. Factors considered includmatss of carrying costs during hypothetical expdcleasaip periods, current marl
conditions and costs to execute similar leasesstimating carrying costs, we include real estateg, insurance and other operating expt
and estimates of lost rentals at market rates dufie expected leasg periods, depending on local market conditionsedtimating costs
execute similar leases, we consider tenant impremsn leasing commissions and legal and otherekatpenses. The value ofpface lease
is amortized to depreciation and amortization espeover the remaining term of the respective ledfestenant vacates its space prior ti
contractual expiration date, any unamortized baarfdts related asset is expensed.

The value of a tenant relationship is based onowerall relationship with the respective tenantctbes considered include the tenant’
credit quality and expectations of lease renewitle value of a tenant relationship is amortizeddpreciation and amortization expense
the initial term and any renewal periods definedhe respective leases. Based on our acquisitioee she adoption of SFAS No. 141 |
SFAS No. 142, we have deemed tenant relationsbigse timmaterial and have not allocated any amotmtsis intangible asset. We v
evaluate these items in future transactions.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Real estate and leasehold improvements are ckdsifi long-lived assets held for sale or as lorggh assets to be held for use. Real e
is classified as held for sale when the criteriafegh in SFAS No. 144 are satisfied; this deteration requires us to make estimates
assumptions, including assessing the probabiliéy potential sales transactions may or may notrodectual results could differ from thc
assumptions. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, werdeassets held for sale at the lower of the aagrgmount or estimated fair value. |
value of assets held for sale is equal to the estichor contracted sales price with a potentiakbugss costs to sell. The impairment loss i
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds thenatd fair value. With respect to assets classidie held for use, if events or change
circumstances, such as a significant decline iupancy and change in use, indicate that the carryalue may be impaired, an impairmr
analysis is performed. Such analysis consists téroening whether the assetcarrying amount will be recovered from its undisttec
estimated future operating cash flows, includingnested residual cash flows. These cash flows atemated based on a numbel
assumptions that are subject to economic and marartainties including, among others, demandgparce, competition for tenants, chat
in market rental rates and costs to operate eaxgepty. If the carrying amount of a held for ussed®xceeds the sum of its undiscounted fi
operating and residual cash flows, an impairmesg Is recorded for the difference between estimf@iedalue of the asset and the net carr
amount. We generally estimate the fair value ofetséeld for use by using discounted cash flow yaigl in some instances, appra
information may be available and is used in additmthe discounted cash flow analysis. As theoi@ctised in generating these cash flow
difficult to predict and are subject to future etgethat may alter our assumptions, the discountetioa undiscounted future operating
residual cash flows estimated by us in our impairnamalyses or those established by appraisal melenachieved and we may be require
recognize future impairment losses on our propeitild for sale and held for use.

Sales of Real Estate

We account for sales of real estate in accordaritte SFAS No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Esta“SFAS No. 66”).For sale
transactions meeting the requirements of SFAS Mdo6full profit recognition, the related assetaldiabilities are removed from the bala
sheet and the resultant gain or loss is recordetdmeriod the transaction closes. For sales driois that do not meet the criteria for
profit recognition, we account for the transactionsaccordance with the methods specified in SFAS 66. For sales transactions v
continuing involvement after the sale, if the coothg involvement with the property is limited byetterms of the sales contract, prof
recognized at the time of sale and is reduced byntaximum exposure to loss related to the naturthefcontinuing involvement. Sales
entities in which we have or receive an interestancounted for in accordance with partial sal@aeting provisions as set forth in SFAS
66.

For sales transactions that do not meet sale ieritex set forth in SFAS No. 66, we evaluate theneabf the continuing involveme
including put and call provisions, if present, atount for the transaction as a financing arramgenprofitsharing arrangement, leas
arrangement or other alternate method of accountatger than as a sale, based on the nature aent e the continuing involvement. So
transactions may have numerous forms of continiraglvement. In those cases, we determine whicthatkts most appropriate based on
substance of the transaction.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

If we have an obligation to repurchase the propattst higher price or at a future indeterminablei@gsuch as fair market value), or
guarantee the return of the buyeihvestment or a return on that investment foregtended period, we account for such transactioe
financing transaction. If we have an option to repase the property at a higher price and it islyikve will exercise this option, the transac
is accounted for as a financing transaction. Famgactions treated as financings, we record thaiateoeceived from the buyer as a finan
obligation and continue to keep the property anated accounts recorded on our Consolidated FinhStatements. The results of operat
of the property, net of expenses other than degtieai (net operating income), are reflected asfst expensedn the financing obligation.
the transaction includes an obligation or optiomefpurchase the asset at a higher price, additintexkest is recorded to accrete the liabilit
the repurchase price. For options or obligationepurchase the asset at fair market value atrttiefeach reporting period, the balance o
liability is adjusted to equal the current fair walto the extent fair value exceeds the originaricing obligation. The corresponding deb
credit will be recorded to a related discount act@nd the revised debt discount is amortized tverexpected term until termination of
option or obligation. If it is unlikely such optionill be exercised, the transaction is accountedufader the deposit method or pragharing
method. If we have an obligation or option to regmase at a lower price, the transaction is accduioteas a leasing arrangement. At such
as these repurchase obligations expire, a saldwilecorded and gain recognized.

If we retain an interest in the buyer and proviédetain rent guarantees or other forms of suppoere/the maximum exposure to |
exceeds the gain, we account for such transactam rofit-sharing arrangement. For transactioeatéd as profisharing arrangements,
record a profitsharing obligation for the amount of equity conttdd by the other partner and continue to keepptioperty and relate
accounts recorded on our Consolidated Financideints. The results of operations of the propery,of expenses other than depreci:
(net operating income), are allocated to the offagtner for its percentage interest and reflectetica-venture expensei our Consolidate
Financial Statements. In future periods, a saledéerded and profit is recognized when the remgimraximum exposure to loss is redu
below the amount of gain deferred.

Lease Incentives

We account for lease incentive costs, which arergags made to or on behalf of a tenant as an iiveettt sign the lease, in accorda
with FASB Technical Bulletin (FTB) 88-1, “IssuesIRéng to Accounting for LeasesThese costs are capitalized in deferred leasints cos
amortized on a straight-line basis over the respetease terms as a reduction of rental revenues.

Discontinued Operations

Properties that are sold or classified as helcsébe are classified as discontinued operationgéordance with SFAS No. 144 and E
Issue No. 03-13, Applying the Conditions of Paragraph 42 of FASBt&teent No. 144 in Determining Whether to ReportcDiginuer
Operations,” ¢ffective beginning in 2005) provided that (1) thgerations and cash flows of the property will bemimated from our ongoir
operations and (2) we will not have any significaattinuing involvement in the operations of theparty after it is sold. Interest expens
included in discontinued operations if the reldtsh securing the sold property is paid off or assd by the buyer in connection with the ¢
If the property is sold to a joint venture in whiake retain an interest, the property will not beamted for as a discontinued operation di
our significant ongoing interest in the operatitough our joint venture interest. If we are neéal to provide property management, lee
and/or other services for the property owner dfiersale, the property generally will be accouritechs a discontinued operation becaus
expected cash flows related to these managemerieasidg activities will generally not be signifiddn comparison to the cash flows from
property prior to sale.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Minority Interest

Minority interest in the accompanying Consolidatddancial Statements relates primarily to the owhigr by various individuals a
entities other than the Company of Common Unit¢hi;n Operating Partnership. In addition, minorityenest is also recorded for the 50
interest in a consolidated affiliate, Highwoods-k&rAssociates, LLC (“Markel")the equity interest owned by a third party in asmidates
venture formed during 2006 with Real Estate ExcleaBgrvices (“REES”)and the 7% equity interest owned by a third pantyPiazi
Residential, LLC, a consolidated joint venture fedrin February 2007 related to a residential condium project, as described below. At
December 31, 2007, minority interest in the OparatPartnership consisted of approximately 4.1 onlliCommon Units, which had
aggregate market value of $119.2 million basedher$29.38 per share closing price of the Commonksts of such date. Minority interes
the net income of the Operating Partnership is adatp by applying the weighted average percentagéomfimon Units not owned by 1
Company during the period (as a percent of thd tatenber of outstanding Common Units) to the OpegaPartnershifs net income aft
deducting distributions on Preferred Units. Thailieis the amount of minority interest expenseif@ome) recorded for the period. In addit
when a minority unitholder redeems a Common Unitafghare of Common Stock or cash, the minoritgradt is reduced and the Company’
share in the Operating Partnership is increasedhétend of each reporting period, the Companyrdetes the amount that represents
minority unitholders’share of the net assets (at book value) of the &ipgr Partnership and compares this amount to tinerity interes
balance that resulted from transactions duringptréod involving minority interest. The Company @&ts the minority interest liability to t
computed share of net assets with an offsettingsaaiient to the Company’s paid in capital.

Beginning January 1, 2006, we began to record ritinorterest upon consolidation of Markel, a 50.0%ned affiliate, as a result of ¢
adoption of EITF Issue No. 08- Accordingly, the Consolidated Balance Sheetatdry 1, 2006 included approximately $44 millidirea
estate assets, net of accumulated depreciation,otet assets, and approximately $39 million in tgeges and notes payable and ¢
liabilities, with the remaining effects primarilg thvestments in unconsolidated affiliates and toarity interest.

The organizational documents of Markel requireghgty to be liquidated through the sale of itseéssipon reaching December 31, 2
As controlling partner, we have an obligation tasmthis propertpwning entity to distribute proceeds of liquidatitmthe minority intere
partner in these partially owned properties onlyhé net proceeds received by the entity from tie ef our assets warrant a distributiol
determined by the agreement. In accordance withdtb&osure provisions of SFAS No. 15@ctounting for Certain Financial Instrume
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and EquifySFAS No. 150”),we estimate the value of minority interest disttibos would have be:
approximately $15.5 million had the entity beenuldtpted as of December 31, 2007. This estimatekseint value is based on estimated
party consideration realizable by the entity upohypothetical disposition of the properties andés of all other assets and liabilities. -
actual amount of any distributions to the minoiitterest holder in this entity is difficult to prietldue to many factors, including the inhe
uncertainty of real estate sales. If the endityhderlying assets are worth less than the uridgrliabilities on the date of such liquidation,
would have no obligation to remit any consideratiothe minority interest holder.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we entered into greament with REES to ground lease certain devedopand to special purpose enti
owned by REES. Under the agreement, REES will daute 7% of the costs of constructing propertieghos land not to exceed $4.0 milli
outstanding at any time. REES will generally eamagreed fixed return for its economic investmeantthese entities. The balance
development costs will be funded by third partystanction loans. If third party construction loaare not obtained, the remaining 93% of ¢
are loaned to the entities by us. Subject to tleFase of a purchase option, it is expected thatwlleacquire the properties in the future a
amount generally equal to the actual developmestscimcurred plus the fixed return earned by RE&Sit6 economic investment in th
entities. As we are considered the primary bereficiwe consolidate these entities in accordante ®IiN 46(R). These entities will be re-
evaluated for primary beneficiary status when thgties undertake additional activity, such as plgcthe development projects $ervice
REESS investment in the entities is included in minpiitterest as shown in the tables below. All castorm the entities and other rela
fees have been expensed as incurred.

In the first quarter of 2007, our taxable REIT ddizsy formed Plaza Residential, LLC with DominiBartners, LLC (“Dominion”)Plaz:
Residential was formed to develop and sell 13%deggial condominiums to be constructed above aiceotbwer being developed by us
Raleigh, NC. Dominion has a 7% equity interestlia joint venture, will perform development servides the joint venture for a marl
development fee and guarantees 40.0% of the catistnufinancing. Dominion will also receive 35.0%tbe net profits from the joint ventt
once the partners have received distributions eguileir equity plus a 12.0% return on their egjuiWe are consolidating this majority ow:
joint venture and intercompany transactions hawenlsiminated in the Consolidated Financial StatgmeAt December 31, 2007, binding ¢
contracts had been executed for all of the resiglecindominiums. $3.9 million of deposits relatedhese contracts (naefundable unless \
default in our obligation to deliver the units) hbden received and are reflected in restricted e@h a corresponding amount in ot
liabilities. We will account for the salef the residential condominiums in accordance VBBAS No. 66 and will record the sales wher
related closings occur.

Following is minority interest as reflected in dionsolidated Statements of Income and Consolidaédahce Sheets:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Amount shown as minority interest in continuing gi®ns(1) $ (3,749 % (2,245 $ 25¢
Amount related to income from discontinued operst (140 (319 (12,0098
Amount related to gains on sales of discontinuestaons (2,465) (1,224) (2,526

Total minority interest in net income $ (6,35 $ (3,789 $ (3,287

(1) Minority interest related to the consolidated éasitother than the Operating Partnership amoumtéd &7 million and $0.6 million for ti
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2

December 31,

2007 2006
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership $ 63,29 $ 76,84¢
Minority interest in Marke 3,44¢ 2,11¢
Minority interest in REES 2,561 76C
Minority interest in Plaza Residential 797 _

Total minority interest $ 70,09¢ $ 79,72¢
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Investments in Joint Ventures

We account for our investments in less than majanitned joint ventures, partnerships and limitedbility companies under the eqt
method of accounting when, in accordance with EOBF5, our interests represent a general partnershépeist but substantive participat
rights or substantive kick out rights have beemtgd to the limited partners or when our interestiot represent a general partnership int
and we do not control the major operating and farpolicies of the entity. These investmentsiaitally recorded at cost, as investment
unconsolidated affiliates, and are subsequentlysaell for our share of earnings and cash contdbsitand distributions. To the extent our
basis at formation of the joint venture is differéman the basis reflected at the joint venturellethe basis difference is amortized over the
of the related asset and included in our sharguityin earnings of unconsolidated affiliates.

From time to time, we contribute real estate asess joint venture in exchange for a combinatiércash and an equity interest in
venture. We assess whether we have continuingvewaént in the joint venture as defined in SFAS Bi®.and account for the transac
according to the nature and extent of such invokmmif substantially all the risks and rewardwfership have transferred and there ai
other activities which would represent continuingdlvement with the property, a gain is recognisthe extent of the third party investor’
interest and we account for our interest in thatjgenture under the equity method of accountingrasnconsolidated affiliate as describe
the preceding paragraph. If substantially all tkksand rewards of ownership of the property hastetransferred or there are activities wi
would represent continuing involvement with thepgedy, the transaction is accounted for as a fimgnor profitsharing arrangement, leas
arrangement or other alternate method of accouwtingr than as a sale, as required by SFAS N&S&6 also “Sales of Real Estate” above.

Additionally, the joint ventures will frequently bow funds on their own behalf to finance the asiiigin of, and/or leverage the ret
upon, the properties being acquired by the joimtwees or to build or acquire additional buildingsich borrowings are typically on a non-
recourse or limited recourse basis. We generadiynat liable for the debts of our joint venturescept to the extent of our equity investm
unless we have directly guaranteed any of that (ke Note 15 for further discussion). In most sage and/or our joint venture partners
required to agree to customary limited exceptiams@n-recourse loans.

Rental and Other Revenues

In accordance with GAAP, rental revenue is recagphian a straighline basis over the terms of the respective ledBeis. means the
with respect to a particular lease, actual amobitiisd in accordance with the lease during any giperiod may be higher or lower than
amount of rental revenue recognized for the peBidhightline rental revenue is commenced when the tenaoinass possession of the lee
premises. Accrued straight-line rents receivabfgasents the amount by which straijhe rental revenue exceeds rents currently biife
accordance with lease agreements. Terminationdeesecognized as revenue when the following faurdgtions are met: a fully execu
lease termination agreement has been deliveredettant has vacated the space; the amount of ¢his fileterminable; and collectibility of 1
fee is reasonably assured.

Property operating cost recoveries from tenantegst reimbursements) are determined on a leadeasg-basis. The most common ty
of cost reimbursements in our leases are commamnraegntenance (“CAM”) and real estate taxes, wlieeetenant pays its prata share «
operating and administrative expenses and redkeestees.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

The computation of property operating cost recovaopme from tenants is complex and involves numgrodgments, including t
interpretation of terms and other tenant leaseipiavs. Leases are not uniform in dealing with soohkt reimbursements and there are r
variations in the computation. Many tenants makettmy fixed payments of CAM, real estate taxes atiter cost reimbursement items.
record these payments as income each month. We adjlstments, positive or negative, to cost regpwecome to adjust the recorc
amounts to our best estimate of the final amountetbilled and collected with respect to the ceshbursements. After the end of the cale
year, we compute each ter’'s final cost reimbursements and, after consideaimgpunts paid by the tenants during the year, issbél or
credit for the appropriate amount to the tenane dliferences between the amounts billed less pusty received payments and the acc
adjustment are recorded as increases or decreasesttrecovery income when the final bills arepgred, usually beginning in March ¢
completed by mid-year.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowanceafoounts that may become uncollectible in the &t@ur receivable balance
comprised primarily of rents and operating cosboweties due from tenants as well as accrued stréiigh rents receivable. We regule
evaluate the adequacy of our allowance for doulastfwounts. The evaluation primarily consists ofie@ing past due account balances
considering such factors as the credit qualityhef tenant, historical trends of the tenant andiberodebtor, current economic conditions
changes in customer payment terms. Additionallyhwespect to tenants in bankruptcy, we estimaeipected recovery through bankru,
claims and increase the allowance for amounts déemeollectible. If our assumptions regarding tbéectibility of accounts receivable a
accrued straight-line rents receivable prove iremirrwe could experience write-offs of accountsengable or accrued straighe rent:
receivable in excess of our allowance for doutdftdounts.

Cash Equivalents

We consider highly liquid investments with an onigli maturity of three months or less when purchasdx cash equivalents.
Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents cash deposits thaggallyl restricted or held by third parties on oahélf. They include security deposits fi
sales contracts on residential condominiums, coostnrelated escrows, property disposition proceedsiside and designated or intende
fund future taxdeferred exchanges of qualifying real estate imaeats, escrows and reserves for debt serviceestate taxes and prope

insurance established pursuant to certain mortfjagecing arrangements, and deposits given to lenieunencumber secured properties.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Income Taxes

We have elected and expect to continue to quatifp &EIT under Sections 856 through 860 of thermaleRevenue Code of 1986,
amended (the “Code”A corporate REIT is a legal entity that holds resfiate assets and, through the payment of dividenst®ckholders,
generally permitted to reduce or avoid the paynoéifiéderal and state income taxes at the corpdeatd. To maintain qualification as a RE
we are required to pay dividends to our stockhald=ual to at least 90.0% of our annual REIT taxatome, excluding capital gains. -
minimum dividend per share of Common Stock requicedis to maintain our REIT status (excluding aey capital gains) was $0.54 per sl
in 2007 and $0.24 per share in 2005. Aggregataldnds paid on Preferred Stock exceeded REIT taxabtene (excluding capital gains)
2006, which resulted in no required dividend on @mn Stock in 2006 for REIT qualification purpos€antinued qualification as a RE
depends on our ability to satisfy the dividend riisttion tests, stock ownership requirements antbua other qualification tests prescribe
the Code. We conduct certain business activitiesuthh a taxable REIT subsidiary, as permitted utigeiCode. The taxable REIT subsidial
subject to federal and state income taxes on it$axable income. We record provisions for incomees, to the extent required under S
No. 109,“Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109Dased on its income recognized for financial stat@npurposes, including t
effects of temporary differences between such ircamd the amount recognized for tax purposes. gy, beginning January 1, 2007,
began to recognize and measure the effects of tamtetax positions under FASB Interpretation No. @BIN 48”), “Accounting fo
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation BAS No. 109."See Impact of Newly Adopted and Issued Accountitan&ards below ai
Note 17 for discussion of the effect of FIN 48 am accounting for income taxe

The tax basis of our assets (net of accumulatedeaxeciation and amortization) and liabilities vegproximately $2.3 billion and $:
billion, respectively, at December 31, 2007 and ayggroximately $2.2 billion and $1.6 billion, respieely, at December 31, 2006.

Concentration of Credit Risk
We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our tesaAs of December 31, 2007, the properties (exalydéesidential units) to which \
directly or indirectly hold title and have all dfe¢ ownership rights (the “Wholly Owned Properties8re leased to 1,836 tenants in 10 prir

geographic locations. Our tenants engage in a vadiety of businesses. No single tenant of the \WHolvned Properties generated more
7.6% of our consolidated revenues during 2007.

Employee Benefit Plans and Stock-Based Compensation
On January 1, 2003, we adopted the fair value ndetfi@ccounting for stock-based compensation uS#&S No. 123, Accounting fo
Stock-Based Compensation.” Prior to that time, wioived Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 2Bccounting for Stock Issued

Employees” (“APB 25") and related interpretations.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Under SFAS No. 123, the fair value of a stock api®estimated using an optigmnicing model that takes into account as of thengdatt
the exercise price and expected life of the optiba,current price of the underlying stock andeitpected volatility, expected dividends on
stock and the riskree interest rate for the expected term of th@opSFAS No. 123 provides examples of possibleipgi models and includ
the Black-Scholes pricing model, which we have teléd¢o use. The Blacgcholes model was developed for use in estimatiadair value ¢
traded options that have no vesting restrictiond are fully transferable rather than for use irinesting the fair value of employee st
options subject to vesting and transferability niesons. We applied the prospective method of aoting and expense all employee s
options (and similar awards) issued on or afteudanl, 2003 over the vesting period based ondhevélue of the award on the date of g
using the Black-Scholes valuation model.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123@&)are-Based Paymenyhich revised SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 123(R) reg
compensation costs related to shiaased payment transactions to be recognized ifinthiecial statements and forfeitures to be estichateth:
grant date rather than as they occur. We basedstumated forfeiture rate on historical forfeituodsall stock option and restricted stock gre
We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) effective January 162(ng the modifiegirospective method and apply the provisions of SR&S123(R) ti
all sharebased compensation. The adoption of SFAS No. 128i(Rjot have any material effects on our resuitsperations for the year enc
December 31, 2006.

Had the compensation cost for options issued befaneiary 1, 2003 accounted for under APB 25 betrrdmed based on the fair val
at the grant dates for awards granted between datu&995 and December 31, 2002, consistent wighprovisions of SFAS No. 123(R),
net income and net income per share for 2005 whaleé decreased to the pro forma amounts indicatkxivb Because options issued pric
January 1, 2002 were vested and fully expenseddnemdber 31, 2005, and because options issued i \28fe granted on March 1 and
only two months of expense in 2006, the impact @@62net income of adopting this aspect of SFAST¥E(R) is not material.

Year Ended
December 31,
2005
Net income available for common stockhold-- as reported $ 30,94¢
Add: Stock option expense included in reportedimaime 484
Deduct: Total stock option expense determined ufadevalue recognition method for all awards (727)
Pro forma net income available for common stockésd $ 30,70¢
Basic net income per common sh- as reportel $ 0.5¢
Basic net income per common sh- pro forma $ 0.57
Diluted net income per common shi- as reportet $ 0.5¢
Diluted net income per common shi- pro forma $ 0.57

Dividends paid on all outstanding restricted staok nonforfeitable to the recipient and are paid at thmeaate and on the same dat
on shares of Common Stock, whether or not vestédd&nds on shares that are forfeited are accouitteds compensation expense wi
corresponding credit to retained earnings.

Awards denominated in cash amounts granted in pears under our Shareholder Value Plans are atedfor as liability awards.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Derivative Financial Instruments

Our interest rate risk management objectives alienibthe impact of interest rate changes on egysiand cash flows and to lower ove
borrowing costs. To achieve these objectives, ftiome to time we may enter into interest rate heclg®racts such as collars, swaps, cap:
treasury lock agreements in order to mitigate @gerate risk with respect to various debt instmimeWe generally do not hold th
derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instrumgrand Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 133"as amended by SFAS No. 1
“Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruteeand Hedging Activities,fequires us to recognize all derivatives on theuhet she:
at fair value. On the date that we enter into avdéwve contract, we designate the derivative gsa(hedge of the variability of cash flows t
are to be received or paid in connection with @geézed liability (a “cash flowhedge), (2) a hedge of changes in the fair vallenadsset or
liability attributable to a particular risk (a “favalue” hedge) or (3) an instrument that is heddaanonhedge derivative. Changes in the
value of highly effective cash flow hedges, to éxtent that the hedges are effective, are recordédcumulated Other Comprehensive L
(“AOCL"), until earnings are affected by the hedgednsaction (i.e., until periodic settlements ofaxiablerate liability are recorded
earnings). Any hedge ineffectiveness (which reprissthe amount by which the changes in the fauevalf the derivative exceed the variab
in the cash flows of the transaction) is recordedurrentperiod earnings. For derivatives designated asvidire hedges, changes in the
value of the derivative and the hedged item relttagtie hedged risk are recognized in current-pegirnings. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging instruments are reported in current-pegithings.

To determine the fair value of derivative instrutsemve use a variety of methods and assumptionstbadased on market conditions
risks existing at each balance sheet date. Fom#jerity of financial instruments, including mostrivatives, standard market conventions
techniques such as discounted cash flow analysimropricing models, replacement cost and ternonatost are used to determine fair ve
All methods of assessing fair value result in aggahapproximation of value, and such value mayeneactually be realized.

We formally document all relationships between hegdnstruments and hedged items as well as okrmianagement objective ¢
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactidhgs process includes linking all derivativestthee designated as cash flow hedges t
specific assets and liabilities on the balance tsbe) forecasted transactions. We also assassl@arument, both at the hedging instrument
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether thevdtives that are used in hedging transactions igiédyheffective in offsetting changes in ci
flows associated with the hedged items. When werdehe that a derivative is not (or has ceasedejohighly effective as a hedge,
discontinue hedge accounting prospectively.

We are exposed to certain losses in the eventrgderformance by the counter party under any oulgtgrhedge contracts. We expect
counter parties, which are major financial insittos, to perform fully under any such contractswidwer, if any counter party were to def;
on its obligation under an interest rate hedgerashtwe could be required to pay the full rateoandebt, even if such rates were in exce
the rate in the contract.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Earnings Per Share

We compute earnings per share in accordance wigB3%o. 128, “Earnings per Share” (“SFAS No. 128hasic earnings per share
computed by dividing net income available for conmstockholders by the weighted average number arfeshof Common Stock outstand
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividireg income available for common stockholders plusonity interest in the Operatil
Partnership by the weighted average number of stkar€ommon Stock plus the dilutive effect of oppwarrants and convertible secur
outstanding, including Common Units, using the dtery stock’'method. Earnings per share data is required fgreaibds for which an incor
statement or summary of earnings is presentedjdivgd summaries outside the basic financial statésne

Impact of Newly Adopted and Issued Accounting Stanakds
In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which we &stbps of January 1, 2007. See Note 17 for fudissussion.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153ir “Falue Measurements” (“SFAS No. 1573FAS No. 157 defines fair vall
establishes a framework for measuring fair valud arpands disclosures about fair value measurem8mAS also applies under ot
accounting pronouncements that require or perniit falue measurements in any new circumstances.SSRA. 157 is effective as
January 1, 2008. On November 14, 2007, the FASBroed the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for onaryer all nonfinancial assets al
liabilities, except for those items that are redegd or disclosed in the financial statements oacarring basis. We will adopt SFAS No. 15
the first quarter of 2008 and are currently evahgathe impact this statement may have on our fifondition and results of operations.

In September 2006, the SEC released Staff AccagirBimletin No. 108 (“SAB 108”)which addresses how the effects of prior
uncorrected misstatements should be considered whantifying misstatements in current year finahsi@mtements. SAB 108 requi
companies to quantify misstatements using botrb#iance sheet and income statement approaches avdltiate whether either approac
material. If, in transition, in evaluating misstaents following an approach not previously usedusy the effect of initial adoption
determined to be material, SAB 108 allows compatdagcord that effect as a cumulative effect adjest to beginning retained earnings.
requirements of initially applying this guidancee aeffective for annual financial statements cowgrthe first fiscal year ending af
November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 in 20i@bnot have an effect on our financial conditiorresults of operation:

In November 2006, the FASB ratified EITF Issue R6-8, “Applicability of the Assessment of a BuyeContinuing Investment unc
FASB Statement No. 66 for Sales of Condominium$THENoO. 068 provided additional guidance on whether the selle condominium ur
is required to evaluate the buyeKcontinuing investment under SFAS No. 66 in otderecognize profit from the sale under the peragato
completion method. The EITF concluded that bothithger's initial and continuing investment must meet thiteda in SFAS No. 66 in ord
for condominium sale profits to be recognized urttierpercentage of completion method. Sales of @mimiums not meeting the continu
investment test must be accounted for under thesiemethod. EITF No. 06-8 is effective as of Jagua 2008. We will adopt EITF No. 08-
in the first quarter of 2008 and are currently eatihg the impact this guidance may have on owniiial condition and results of operations.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESSAND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

In December 2006, the FASB issued FSP EITF 00-192¢ounting for Registration Payment Arrangeménts, specify that th
contingent obligation to make future payments dreowvise transfer consideration under a registrapagment arrangement should
separately recognized and measured in accordanite RSB Statement No. 5, “Accounting for Contingessc’ The FSP is effectiy
immediately for registration payment arrangements the financial instruments subject to those aeaments that are entered into or mod
subsequent to the issuance date of this FSP aedtigé for fiscal years beginning after December2l®6 and interim periods within the
fiscal years for arrangements that were entereal pnibr to the issuance of this FSP. Our adoptibthizs FSP as of January 1, 2007 hat
impact on our financial condition or results of cgtens.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢“Hair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finankiabilities” (“SFAS No
159"), which permits all entities to choose to measurgitdk items at fair value at specified electionedatSFAS No. 159 is effective as
January 1, 2008. We will adopt SFAS No. 159 infthet quarter of 2008 and are currently evaluatimg impact this statement may have or
financial condition and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141)siness Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141(R)Which addresses principles
requirements for how an acquirer recognizes andsuarea in its financial statements the identifisddsets acquired, the liabilities assumec
any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree. SFA& Ml41(R) becomes effective for us on January @9280Ve are currently evaluating
impact SFAS No. 141(R) will have on our financiahdition and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160nhddatrolling Interests in Consolidated Financiat8inents -an amendment
ARB No. 51" (“*SFAS No. 160")which establishes accounting and presentation atdadfor a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiant
amends certain of ARB No. &l tonsolidation procedures for consistency wittepthusiness combination standards. SFAS No. 166nbex
effective for us on January 1, 2009. We are culyentaluating the impact SFAS No. 160 will have @ur financial condition and results
operations.

In December 2007, the FASB ratified EITF Issue D66 “Accounting for the Sale of Real Estate SubjechtRequirements of FAS
Statement No. 66Accounting for Sales of Real Estate, When the Agreement Includes a Buy-Sell Clause” TEENo. 07-6"),which address:
whether a buysell clause represents a prohibited form of coimiginvolvement that would preclude partial salé @nofit recognition pursua
to SFAS No. 66. We will adopt EITF No. @&in the first quarter of 2008 and are currentlglaating the impact this guidance may have ot
financial condition and results of operations.
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2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES

We have retained equity interests ranging from %2t6 50.0% in various joint ventures with unrelatadestors. We account for ¢
unconsolidated joint ventures using the equity meétof accounting. As a result, the assets andliiaki of these joint ventures for which
use the equity method of accounting are not indugte our consolidated balance sheet.

A number of our joint ventures are consolidated:H8¥ Harborview Plaza, LP is accounted for as arfoiag arrangement pursuan
SFAS No. 66, as described in Note 3; The Vininggmiversity Center, LLC was consolidated pursuanEiN 46(R) until late 2006 upon t
sale of the venturg’assets and distribution of its net cash assets partners; and Markel, REES and Plaza Resiemthich are discussed
Note 1, are each consolidat

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates consistethe following as of December 31, 2007:

Ownership

Joint Venture Location of Properties Interest
Board of Trade Investment Compa Kansas City, MC 49.0(%
Kessinger/Hunter, LL( Kansas City, MC 26.5(%
4600 Madison Associates, LL Kansas City, MC 12.5(%
Plaza Colonnade, LL! Kansas City, MC 50.0(%
Dallas County Partners I, L Des Moines, IA 50.0(%
Dallas County Partners Il, L Des Moines, IA 50.0(%
Dallas County Partners lll, L Des Moines, 1A 50.00%
Fountain Thret Des Moines, IA 50.00%
RRHWoods, LLC Des Moines, IA 50.0(%
Highwoods DLF 98/29, LP Atlanta, GA; Charlotte, NC; Greensboro, NC;

Raleigh, NC; Orlando, FL; Baltimore, M 22.81%
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L Atlanta, GA; Greensboro, NC; Orlando, 42.9%
Highwoods KC Glenridge Office, L Atlanta, GA 40.0(%
Highwoods KC Glenridge Land, L Atlanta, GA 40.0(%
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC Orlando, FL 40.0(%
Concourse Center Associates, L Greensboro, N( 50.0(%
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2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

Combined summarized financial information for oncansolidated joint ventures is as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006
Balance Sheets
Assets:
Real estate, net of accumulated deprecic $ 626,84 $ 672,86
Other assets 111,31 103,97(
Total Assets $ 738,16 $ 776,83
Liabilities and Partners’ and Shareholder! Equity:
Mortgage deb() $ 558,75 $ 575,45.
Other liabilities 32,22t 29,43(
Partners’ and shareholders’ equity 147,17! 171,95
Total Liabilities and Partners’ and Shareholderguigy $ 738,16, $ 776,83
Our share of historical partn/ and shareholde’ equity $ 28,38 $ 43,047
Net excess of cost of investments over the net vabke of underlying net assets, ne
accumulated depreciati(2) 18,85¢ 10,787
Carrying value of investments in unconsolidatedtjeenturegs) $ 47,23¢ $ 53,83¢
Our share of unconsolidated non-recourse mortgaggml $ 233,920 $ 244,97

(1) Our share of the mortgage debt through maturityfda¥ecember 31, 2007 is as follov

2008 $ 4,68¢
2009 6,79(
2010 9,51¢
2011 6,21°F
2012 42,01
Thereafter 164,70(

$ 23302

We generally are not liable for any of this delxigept to the extent of our investment, unless weetdirectly guaranteed any of the ¢
(see Note 15). In most cases, we and/or our sicapagtners are required to agree to customarydanéxceptions on non-recourse loans.

(2) This amount represents the aggregate differenaeeleet our historical cost basis and the basis tefieat the joint venture level, whict
typically amortized over the life of the relatedgsets In addition, certain acquisition, transactom other costs may not be reflected ir
assets at the joint venture lev

(3) During the third quarter of 2006, three of our jomentures located in Des Moines, lowa made casthilolitions aggregating $17.0 milli
in connection with a debt refinancing. We recei8@d% of such distributions. As a result of thesgrithutions, our investment accoun
these joint ventures became negative. Althoughniwe debt is nomecourse, we and our partner have guaranteed déigrand hay
contractual obligations to support the joint veatyrwhich are included in the Guarantees and Ofi#igations table in Note 1
Therefore, in accordance with SOP 78-9 “Accounforginvestments in Real Estate Venturese recorded the distributions as a reduc
of the investment account and included the resuitiagative investment balances of $10.8 milliomdgounts payable, accrued expe
and other liabilities in the Consolidated Balante& at December 31, 20(

75



HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Income Statements:
Revenues $ 143,59: $ 139,51: §$ 141,77!
Expenses:
Operating expenst 62,19/ 60,63¢ 58,69:
Depreciation and amortizatic 30,89¢ 29,001 29,73¢
Interest expense and loan cost amortize 34,25¢ 33,76¢ 34,68:
Loss on debt extinguishment — 1,44¢ _
Total expenses 127,34¢ 124,86: 123,11.
Income before disposition of property 16,24¢ 14,65( 18,66
Gains on disposition of property 20,62: — _
Net income $ 36,86¢ $ 14,65( $ 18,66
Our share of:
Net income) $ 13,11 $ 6,841 $ 9,30:
Depreciation and amortization (real estate related) $ 13,43¢ $ 11,19: $ 10,98¢
Interest expense and loan cost amortization $ 14,418 $ 14,17C $ 14,57.
Loss on debt extinguishment $ — 3 724 $ —
Gains on disposition of property $ 7,156 $ — $ —

(1) Our share of net income differs from our weightegrage ownership percentage in the joint ventunes’income due to our purch
accounting and other related adjustme

The following summarizes the formation and printigetivities of our unconsolidated joint ventures.
Board of Trade Investment Company; Kessinger/Hunter LLC; 4600 Madison Associates, LP

We have a 49.0% interest in Board of Trade Investr@®mpany, a 26.5% interest in Kessinger/Hunte€ land a 12.5% interest in 4€
Madison Associates, L.P. We are the property mantagehe Board of Trade Investment Company andodBladison Associates, L.P. jo
ventures, for which we receive property managenfiees. In addition, Kessinger/Hunter, LLC, whichnignaged by our partner, provi
property management, leasing and brokerage serd@odsprovides certain construction related servicesertain of our Wholly Owne
Properties. Kessinger/Hunter, LLC received $3.8iom| $2.3 million and $1.2 million from us for tbe related services in 2007, 2006
2005, respectively.
Des Moines Joint Ventures

We have a 50.0% ownership interest in a seriesiot ventures with R&R Investors (the “Des Moinasnd Ventures”)relating tc
properties in Des Moines, lowa. Our partner isrttanaging partner and receives management anddef@gis from the joint ventures.
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2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

Highwoods DLF 98/29, L.P.

We have a 22.81% interest in a joint venture (“DDRwith Schweiz-Deutschland-USA Dreilander Betgiing Objekt DLF 98/2%/alkel
Fink-KG (“DLF"). We are the property manager anddimg agent of DLF § properties and receive customary managementasihy fees. /
the formation of this joint venture, the amount Deéntributed in cash to the venture was determtoelge in excess of the amount requ
based on its ownership interest and on the finededpupon value of the real estate assets. We agreegb&ry this amount to DLF over
years. The payments of $7.2 million were discourtteahet present value of $3.8 million using a distorate of 9.62% specified in 1
agreement. Payments of $0.5 million were made @h ed the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 @08, 2f which $0.2 million, $0
million and $0.3 million in the years ended DecentiE 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, repregantputed interest expense. The bal
at December 31, 2007 is $2.3 million, which is umgd in other liabilities.

On March 12, 2007, DLF | sold five properties téhad party for gross proceeds of $34.2 million amdorded a gain of $9.3 milli
related to this sale. We recorded $2.1 million asproportionate share of this gain through eqintgarnings of unconsolidated affiliates.
May 21, 2007, DLF | acquired Eola Park Centre, @080 square foot office building in Orlando, Fétaj for $39.3 million. In June 2007,
joint venture obtained a $27.7 million loan secubgdEola Park Centre. Simultaneously with DI's acquisition of Eola Park Centre,
separately acquired an adjacent parcel of developtaed for $2.0 million on a wholly-owned basis.

Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L.P.

We have a 42.93% interest in a joint venture (fDeF Il Joint Venture”) with Dreilander-Fonds 97/26d 99/32 (“DLF 11").We are th
property manager and leasing agent of the DLFifitenture’s properties and receive customary rgangent and leasing fees.

Concourse Center Associates, LLC and Plaza ColonnadLLC

We have 50.0% interests in Concourse Center AgesciblLC and Plaza Colonnade, LLC. Unrelated inMssbown the remaining 50.(
ownership interest in the joint ventures. We aee ianager and leasing agent for the propertiegeneive customary management fees
leasing commissions.
Highwoods KC Glenridge Office, LP and Highwoods KCGlenridge Land, LP

We have 40.0% interests in Highwoods KC Glenridgéc® LP and Highwoods KC Glenridge Land, LP wiapital-Consult, :

European investment firm. We are the manager aaslng agent for the office properties and receiv@amary management fees and le
commissions.
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2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

HIW -KC Orlando, LLC

On June 28, 2004, Kapital-Consult bought a 60.08r&st in HIW-KC Orlando, LLC. We own the remainiag.0% interest. HIWKC
Orlando, LLC owns five irservice office properties, encompassing 1.3 millientable square feet, located in the central legsiristrict ¢
Orlando, Florida, which were valued under the jaiabture agreement at $212.0 million. The jointtues borrowed $143.0 million unde
tenyear fixed rate mortgage loan from a third partydier at the time of its formation. In connectionthnhis transaction, we agreec
guarantee rent to the joint venture for 3,248 figletaquare feet commencing in August 2004 and expin April 2011. In connection with tt
guarantee, as of June 30, 2004, we included $0l®min other liabilities and reduced the total @mt of gain to be recognized by the s
amount. Additionally, we agreed to guarantee rextéing costs for approximately 11% of the joint uga’s total square footage. We recor
a $4.1 million contingent liability with respect saich guarantee as of June 30, 2004 and reducedtéh@mount of gain to be recognizec
the same amount. In the three and a half year ¢ghaimled December 31, 2007, we paid $3.8 milliometenanting costs related to t
guarantee. The contribution was accounted forzertial sale as defined by SFAS No. 66 and we neéized a $16.3 million gain in June 20
Since we have an ongoing 40.0% financial interesihé joint venture and since we are engaged bjotheventure to provide management
leasing services for the joint venture, for whiclke weceive customary management fees and leasingissions, the operations of th
properties were not reflected as discontinued ajpers consistent with SFAS No. 144 and the relgaich on sale was included in contint
operations in the second quarter of 2004.

Weston Lakeside, LLC

On September 27, 2004, we and an affiliate of @ra$l Inc. (“Crosland”Yormed Weston Lakeside, LLC, in which we had a %&
ownership interest. On June 29, 2005, we contrib@2.4 acres of land at an agreed upon value & 88llion to this joint venture, ai
Crosland contributed approximately $2.0 millioncash. Immediately thereafter, the joint venturéridisted approximately $1.9 million to
and we recorded a gain of $0.5 million. Croslanchagged and operated this joint venture, which caottd 332 rental residential units in tf
buildings at a total cost of approximately $33.7lioni. Crosland received 3.25% of all project costler than land as a development fee
3.5% of the gross revenue of the joint venture anagement fees. We provided certain developmenicssrfor the project and received a
equal to 1.0% of all project costs excluding lamle accounted for this joint venture using the equitethod of accounting. (
February 22, 2007, the joint venture sold the 38#al residential units to a third party for grpssceeds of $45.0 million and paid off all of
outstanding debt and various development relatstsc@he joint venture recorded a gain of $11.3ianilin the first quarter of 2007 relatec
this sale and we recorded $5.0 million as our pridpoate share through equity in earnings of unobdated affiliates. Our share of the ¢
was less than 50.0% due to Croslangreferred return as the developer. We receivepleggte net distributions of $6.2 million. Wes
Lakeside, LLC has been dissolved.

Consolidated Joint Ventures

The following summarizes the formation and printigetivities of our consolidated joint ventures.
Highwoods-Markel Associates, LLC

In 1999 and 2003, we contributed to this 50.0% alvjunt venture a total of four iservice office properties located in Richmc
Virginia aggregating approximately 413,000 squaet.f Our partner, Markel Corporation, occupies wutiglly all of this space for its o\
use. We are the manager and leasing agent forrtpeies and receive customary management feedeasthg commissiondAs furthe

described in Note 1, we began consolidating thekilgoint venture in January 2006 under the prawisiof EITF No. 04-5.
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2. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AND OTHER AFFILIATES - Continued

SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LP

As further described in Note 3, we contributed tssgthis joint venture which was accounted foadmancing arrangement under Sk
No. 66. Accordingly, the assets continue to be chaated in our Consolidated Financial Stateme

The Vinings at University Center, LLC

On December 22, 2004, we and Easlan InvestmentpgGino. (“Easlan”)formed The Vinings at University Center, LLC. Wentidbutec
7.8 acres of land at an agreed upon value of $lllBmto the joint venture in December 2004 inuwet for a 50.0% equity interest. Eas
contributed $1.1 million in the form of ndnterest bearing promissory notes for a 50.0% gdquoterest in the joint venture. The joint vent
completed the construction of 156 rental residéntiéts on the 7.8 acres of land in the first gaadf 2006. Easlan was the manager and le
agent for these residential units and receivedocoaty management fees and leasing commissions.edééidved development fees througt
the construction project. We consolidated this tjei@nture from inception under the provisions oNF6(R) because Easlan had naisk-
equity and we would absorb the majority of the johentures expected losses, if any. On November 1, 2006 ,jdim venture sold tt
residential units to a third party for gross prateef $14.3 million, paid off all of its outstandirdebt and made cash distributions ta
partners. We received a distribution of $2.9 milliand recorded a gain of $1.4 million during thertb quarter of 2006. The Vinings
University Center, LLC has been dissolved.

Development, Leasing and Management Fees

As discussed above, we receive development, maregesnd leasing fees for services provided to edhour joint ventures. The
fees are recognized as income to the extent dftther joint venture partner’s interest and are showental and other revenues, as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Development fees $ — $ 98 $ 42

Management and leasing fees 2,208 1,92( 1,96:
Total fees $ 2,208 $ 2,01t $ 2,00t

3. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The following summarizes sale transactions in 2806 2002 that were or continue to be accounte@ddinancing arrangements ur
paragraphs 25 through 29 of SFAS No. 66 during/dses ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.
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3. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS - Continued

SF-HIW Harborview Plaza, LP

On September 11, 2002, we contributed Harborvieaz&l an office building in Tampa, Florida, to BRA Harborview Plaza, L
(“Harborview LP"), a newly formed entity, in exchange for a 20.0% tédi partnership interest and $35.4 million in caie other partn
contributed $12.6 million of cash and a new loars watained by the partnership for $22.8 million.cbmnection with this disposition,
entered into a master lease agreement with HaberldP for five years on the then vacant space énlthilding (approximately 20% of t
building); occupancy was 98.8% at December 31, 200& also guaranteed to Harborview LP the paymétgrant improvements and le
commissions of $1.2 million. Our maximum exposwddss under the master lease agreement was $Ridnnait September 11, 2002; t
guarantee expired on September 10, 2007. Addilignadlir partner in Harborview LP was granted trghtito put its 80.0% equity interest
Harborview LP to us in exchange for cash at anyetauring the ongear period commencing September 11, 2014. Theevafluhe 80.0¢
equity interest will be determined at the time thath partner elects to exercise its put righevir, based upon the then fair market valt
Harborview LP’s assets and liabilities less 3.0%icl amount was intended to cover the normal aofséssale transaction.

Because of the put option, this transaction is actad for as a financing transaction as describeNadte 1. Accordingly, the ass¢
liabilities and operations related to HarborvievaZa, the property owned by Harborview LP, includamy new financing by the partnersl
remain in our Consolidated Financial StatementsaAssult, we have established a financing obbgagiqual to the net equity contributec
the other partner. At the end of each reportingogerthe balance of the financing obligation isustigd to equal the greater of the orig
financing obligation or the current fair value betput option discussed above. The estimated &irevof the put option was $15.6 millior
December 31, 2007. This amount is adjusted by ate@lvaluation allowance account, which is beingmimed prospectively throu
September 2014 as interest expense on financingatioh. The amount of the financing obligation eétwer with the valuation allowance v
$16.6 million at December 31, 2007. Additionallyetnet income from the operations before depreciaif Harborview Plaza allocable to
80.0% partner is recorded as interest expensenanding obligation. We continue to depreciate ttaperty and record all of the deprecia
on our books. Any payments made under the mastselagreement were expensed as incurred ($0.08rm#0.1 million and $0.1 millic
was expensed during the years ended December @7, 2006 and 2005, respectively) and any amourndsiypaler the tenant improvement .
lease commission guarantee are capitalized andtiaewto expense over the remaining lease ternsudh time as the put option expires «
otherwise terminated, we will record the transacts a sale and recognize gain on sale.

Eastshore

On November 26, 2002, we sold three buildings ket¢ah Richmond, Virginia (the “Eastshor&ansaction) for a total price of $2
million in cash. Each of the properties was leageda triplenet basis to Capital One Services, Inc., a sulrgidié Capital One Financi
Services, Inc. In connection with the sale, we gotged any shortfalls that may be incurred in #agngent of rent and reenanting costs for
five-year period from the date of sale (through Novenfi#7). Our maximum exposure to loss under theatentarantee agreements
$18.7 million at the date of sale. Payments madieuthis guarantee were as follows: 2002 and 2088ne; 2004 - $0.09 million; 2005 04
million; 2006 - $0.7 million; and 2007 through thearantee termination date - $0.8 million.
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3. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS - Continued

These rent guarantees were a form of continuinghi@ment as discussed in paragraph 28 of SFAS BoBécause the guarant
covered the entire space occupied by a single temater a triplenet lease arrangement, our guarantees were coadideguaranteed return
the buyers investment for an extended period of time. Trwegfthe transaction had been accounted for asmading transaction following t
accounting method described in Note 1 through 2085. Accordingly, through July 2005, the assésjlities and operations were include:
these Consolidated Financial Statements, and ading obligation of $28.8 million was recorded, ahirepresented the amount received
the buyer, adjusted for subsequent activity. Tloenme from the operations of the properties, othantdepreciation, was allocated 100.0¢
the owner as interest expense on financing obéigatiPayments made under the rent guarantees Wwarged to expense as incurred.
transaction was recorded as a completed sale tt@msan July 2005 when the maximum exposure t@ losder the guarantees became
than the related deferred gain; accordingly, $1lilliam in gain was recognized in the last six mantbf 2005, $3.6 million in gain w
recognized in 2006 and $3.3 million in gain wasogrized in 2007 as the maximum exposure under tiagagtees was reduced. Paym
made under rent guarantees after July 2005 weoeded as a reduction of the deferred gain.

4. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES AND IMPAIRMENT OF LONG  -LIVED ASSETS

Gains and impairments on disposition of properties, included in continuing operations (excludingpairments of assets held for
which are recorded in operating expenses as deschbiblow) consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Gains on disposition of land $ 17,36( $ 12,04 $ 8,60¢
Impairments on lan (750 — (2,129
Gains on disposition of depreciable properties 3,95 4,114 7,692

Total $ 2056: $ 16,157 $ 14,17

The above gains on land and depreciable propénidisde deferred gain recognition from prior sales.

Gains and impairments on properties sold or heldséde and classified as discontinued operatioesphminority interest, consisted
the following, as described in Note 12:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Gains on sales of depreciable properties $ 3486 $ 1508: $ 34,12¢
Impairments on disposition of depreciable propsi (3849) — (8,379
Allocable minority interest (2,465 (1,224 (2,52%)

Total $ 32,01: $ 13,858 $  23,22¢

2007 Dispositions

During 2007, we sold approximately 1.2 million sopiéeet of office and industrial properties for gggroceeds of approximately $11
million. The resultant gains, including recognitiohcertain gains deferred in prior years, are showthe preceding table. The significant 2
transactions are described below, all of which pkdand sales were recorded as discontinued opegtiCertain development land \
classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2007
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4. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES AND IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS- Continued

In the first quarter of 2007, we sold office andustrial properties encompassing 0.3 million reletaiguare feet located in Atlanta, (
and Raleigh, NC for gross proceeds of approxima#89.9 million and recorded gains of approximat&l®.5 million. These properties w
classified as held for sale and were included $catitinued operations at December 31, 2006.

In the third quarter of 2007, we sold five officedaindustrial properties aggregating 0.5 millionteble square feet located in Atlanta,
and Greenville, SC for gross proceeds of approxiya$36.8 million. A gain of approximately $6.9 twh and an impairment
approximately $0.4 million were recorded in thedhjuarter of 2007. These properties were classHie discontinued operations in the t
quarter of 2007.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, we sold six officadaindustrial properties aggregating 0.4 milliomteble square feet located
Greensboro, NC, Columbia, SC and Nashville, TNgiass proceeds of approximately $36.1 million asxbrded gains of approximately $
million. These properties were classified as disooed operations in the fourth quarter of 2007.

During 2007, we also sold 132.8 acres of wore land for gross sale proceeds of $37.4 miliiad gains net of impairments of $1
million. There was also a $0.8 million impairmealated to land held for use that was recorded 0¥ 2hd included in operating expenses.

2006 Dispositions

During 2006, we sold approximately 3.0 million srpideet of office and industrial properties, 17tatmesidential units and the Vinir
residential project for aggregate gross proceedappiroximately $241 million. The resultant gainscliuding recognition of certain ga
deferred in prior years, are shown in the precethde. The significant 2006 transactions are diesdrbelow, all of which except land st
were recorded as discontinued operations. Certéer oproperties and development land were alsosifiled as held for sale as
December 31, 2006.

In the first quarter of 2006, we sold office andustrial properties encompassing 1,867,000 rentsdpare feet located in Atlanta, C
Columbia, SC and Tampa, FL in a single transadtiorgross proceeds of approximately $141 milliohe3e properties were classified as
for sale as of December 31, 2005 and an impairfesstof $7.7 million was recorded in the fourth dqeaof 2005. The properties subjec
this sale were recorded as discontinued operatiotise fourth quarter of 2005. Also, in the firstagter of 2006, we sold an office propt
encompassing 132,000 rentable square feet locatRaleigh, NC for gross proceeds of approximatd!g.$ million. A gain of approximate
$1.4 million was recorded in the first quarter 608. This property was classified as discontinygerations in the first quarter of 2006.

In the third quarter of 2006, we sold five officedaindustrial properties aggregating 292,000 rdatafjuare feet located in Raleigh,
for gross proceeds of approximately $22.8 millidrgain of approximately $2.8 million was recordedtfe third quarter of 2006. This prope
was classified as discontinued operations in tird tjuarter of 2006.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we sold the follogiiassets: a retail property aggregating 105,00tabbémn square feet located in Kar
City, MO for gross proceeds of approximately $1fllion, with a gain of approximately $1.5 milliomywo office properties and 12 indust
properties aggregating 393,000 rentable squarerfeatinstonSalem and Greensboro, NC for gross proceeds obzippately $16.5 millior
with a gain of approximately $3.5 million; and tareffice properties aggregating 193,000 rentableszfeet in Tampa, FL for gross proce
of approximately $22 million, with a gain of appnorately $3.7 million.

During 2006, we also sold 220.7 acres of non-cane for gross sale proceeds of $34.5 million aridsgaf $12.0 million.
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4. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES AND IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS- Continued

2005 Dispositions

During 2005, we sold approximately 4.9 million sppifeet of office and industrial properties andr@Sidential units for gross proceed
approximately $386 million (including the Eastshdransaction recognized as a completed sale in 20886e Note 3) and also sold
contributed to a joint venture approximately 200eacof development land for gross proceeds of $2llion. The resultant gains a
impairments, including recognition of certain gadeferred in prior years, are shown in the preagpditle. The significant 2005 transacti
are described below, all of which except the Eastshiransaction were recorded as discontinued tipesa Certain other properties
development land were also classified as helddtar as of December 31, 2005.

In the first quarter of 2005, we sold an officelting in Raleigh, NC to an owner/user for grossggexds of approximately $27.3 millic
In the first and second quarters, we sold indugtiigldings in WinstonSalem, NC for gross proceeds of approximately $#7llon, as mor
fully described in Note 8. In the second quarteg, seld two vacant buildings in Highwoods Preseiampa, FL to an owner/user for gr
proceeds of approximately $24.5 million. In thedhjuarter, we sold all of our operating properéied certain vacant land in Charlotte, NC
certain operating properties in Tampa, FL in a lgintgansaction for gross proceeds of approximaeB8 million. In connection with this se
we closed our division office in Charlotte and imeal employee severance costs of approximately ®@li®n, which were charged to gene
and administrative expenses during the second faindl quarters. In the third quarter of 2005, weoalscognized as a completed sale
disposition of three office buildings in RichmondA (the Eastshore transaction); Eastshore had beeaunted for as a financing due -
significant guarantee of rent under leases in tié groperties that was made by us when the saleraed in 2002, as more fully describe:
Note 3.

Development

We currently have under development 15 office, stdal and retail properties aggregating 2.2 millisquare feet and 139 feale
residential units. The aggregate cost, includirgileg commissions, of these properties is currentpected to total approximately $380 mill
when fully leased and completed, of which $227.0ioni was incurred as of December 31, 2007. Theghieid average prieasing of suc
development projects was 69%. As more fully desdiln Note 1, binding sale contracts have been ugdcfor all 139 of the fosale
residential units; closings are expected to ocauate 2008 and early 2009. Seven of these 15 piepaggregating 1.3 million square feet
$136.2 million total expected investment have beempleted and transferred to completed real estagets at various times prior
December 31, 2007, but had not yet reached praje@&6 stabilized occupancy. The remaining develognmoperties are still unc
construction and are included in Development ircBss in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

In addition to the development projects discusdeal@, during the year ended December 31, 2007 d@xelopment properties that |
been under construction at December 31, 2006, s@rpleted and placed in service with average ogumpaf 100% at December 31, 2C
Two other development properties that had been taiegbbut had not achieved stabilized occupan®eaember 31, 2006, achieved stabil
occupancy during 2007. The total investment ingtseven properties aggregated approximately $14idmét December 31, 2007.
Impairments of Long-Lived Assets

As described in Note 1, we record impairments afid-bived Assets that are held for use or sold andédd for sale in accordance w
SFAS No. 144. Impairments of assets held for useéreuded in operating expenses.
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4. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES AND IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS- Continued

During 2005, one land parcel classified as helduse had indicators of impairment where the cagywmlue exceeded the sum
undiscounted future cash flows. Accordingly, weogrtized an impairment loss of $3.2 million in 20@Hd during 2007 we recognized
additional $0.8 million of impairment with respeotthis land, as indicators of reduced value fis thnd arose during 2007. This land bec
classified as held for sale in the fourth quarfe2@)7, and an additional impairment of $0.7 milliwas recorded with respect to this parcel
included in gains and impairments on dispositionpodperties. We recorded impairments on other lpactels included in gains &
impairments on disposition of properties aggrega#i. 1 million during 2005.

During 2006 and 2005, we recorded impairments araing properties then classified as held forarmeunting to $2.6 million and $:
million, respectively. These properties were latmlassified to discontinued operations under SIS 144 and were sold. In addition,
recorded impairments with respect to certain pridgeisold or held for sale aggregating $0.4 millaord $8.4 million during the years en
December 31, 2007 and 2005, respectively. Thesaiimpnts are included in discontinued operatioasnare fully described in Note 12.

5. MORTGAGES, NOTES PAYABLE AND FINANCING OBLIGATIONS

Our consolidated mortgages and notes payable tedsi§the following at December 31, 2007 and 2006:

December 31,

2007 2006
Secured indebtedness(1)

8.17% mortgage loan due 20 $ — 8 61,42¢
7.77% mortgage loan due 20 80,40¢ 82,62:
7.87% mortgage loan due 20 41,32: 52,12¢
7.05% mortgage loan due 20 190,00( 190,00(
6.03% mortgage loan due 20 135,59: 137,81(
5.68% mortgage loan due 20 120,97( 123,27:
5.74% to 9.00% mortgage loans due between 2002@hd(2), (3) 77,20¢ 83,471
Variable rate construction loans due 2( — 10,891
Variable rate construction loans due 2010 19,81 _
665,31: 741,62¢

Unsecured indebtednessa)
7.13% notes due 20((5) 100,00 100,00
8.13% notes due 20( 50,00( 50,00(
5.85% bonds due 20:(s) 398,87t —
7.50% notes due 20! 200,00( 200,00(
Revolving credit facility due 2009 227,80( 373,50(
976,67¢ 723,50(
Total $ 164198 $ 1,465,12

(1) The mortgage loans payable are secured by redéestaets with an aggregate undepreciated book wdlapproximately $1.02 billion
December 31, 2007. Our fixed rate mortgage loamemgdly are either locked out to prepayment foroalla portion of their term or ¢
prepayable subject to certain conditions inclugngpayment penaltie

(2) Amounts at December 31, 2007 and 2006 include $&gllfon and $22.8 million, respectively, of morgm debt related to SHIW
Harborview Plaza, LP. See Note

(3) Includes mortgage debt related to Markel, a codatdd 50.0% owned joint venture of $37.4 millionda38.1 million &
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. See Noaesl 2
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5. MORTGAGES, NOTES PAYABLE AND FINANCING OBLIGATIONS - Continued

(4) The unsecured notes bear interest at rates raf@ing5.85% to 8.125% with interest payable samiually in arrears. Any premium ¢
discount related to the issuance of the unsecustEbntogether with other issuance costs, is baingrtized to interest expense over the
of the respective notes as an adjustment to irntesgeense. All of the unsecured notes are redeenadny time prior to maturity at ¢
option, subject to certain conditions including gayment of makevhole amounts. Under the indenture, the notes meagcbelerated if tl
trustee or 25% of the holders provide written reti€ a default and such default remains uncurest & days. The Operating Partner
is in compliance with all covenants under the indesand is current on all payments required thedeu

(5) These notes were paid off at maturity on FebruaB008 with borrowings under our revolving creditifity.

(6) This amount is net of a discount of $1.1 milli

The following table sets forth the principal payrtsenincluding amortization, due on our mortgages awotes payable as
December 31, 2007:

Principal

Years Ended December 31, Amount
2008 $ 109,93
2009 409,72:
2010 28,74,
2011 9,507
2012 212,16¢
Thereafter 871,90°
$ 1,641,98

Our $450 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis initially scheduled to mature on May 1, 2088suming no default exists, we h
an option to extend the maturity date by one aolditi year and, at any time prior to May 1, 2008y mequest increases in the borrow
availability under the credit facility by up to awditional $50 million. The interest rate is LIBQfus 80 basis points and the annual
facility fee is 20 basis points. The revolving dtefécility had $220 million of availability at Dexnber 31, 2007 and had $218 millior
availability as of February 27, 2008.

On March 22, 2007, the Operating Partnership is$§4€® million aggregate principal amount of 5.85%té¢ due March 15, 2017, ne
original issue discount of $1.2 million. We usee thet proceeds from the issuance of the notesp@yrborrowings outstanding under
unsecured norevolving credit facility that was obtained on Janu31, 2007 (which was subsequently terminated) wmder the revolvir
credit facility.

On June 5, 2007, two thrgear secured construction loans totaling $24.7ionilwith interest at 175 basis points over LIBORre
obtained by REES, a consolidated joint venture [$ee 1). Subsequently, on July 17, 2007, REESimbtican additional $13.7 million, three-
year secured construction loan with interest at béSis points over LIBOR. In October 2007, we paitl one of the original secur
construction loans, which had accounted for $4.4ianiof the original $24.7 million. At December 32007 and February 27, 2008, $!:
million and $23.7 million, respectively, was outsiing under these two remaining loans.

On December 20, 2007 we closed a $70 million secuesolving construction facility. The loan matures December 20, 2010. 1
interest rate is based on LIBOR plus 85 basis poist December 31, 2007 and February 27, 2008¢there no amounts outstanding on
revolving facility.

On February 1, 2008, we paid off at maturity $106llion of 7.125% unsecured notes using borrowingsler our revolving crec
facility. On February 26, 2008 we closed a $137ilfion threeyear term loan that bears interest at LIBOR plu3 H4sis points. Proceeds fr
this loan were used to reduce the outstanding tdmgs under our revolving credit facility and fdrast-term investments.
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5. MORTGAGES, NOTES PAYABLE AND FINANCING OBLIGATIONS - Continued

Other Information

Our revolving credit facility, our bank term loandathe indenture that governs the Operating Pafif@s outstanding notes require u
comply with customary operating covenants and warifinancial and operating ratios. We and the Qpeyaartnership are each currentl
compliance with all such requirements.

Total interest capitalized to development projeess $9.7 million, $5.0 million and $2.9 million ftne years ended December 31, 2
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Deferred Financing Costs

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, deferred financosts were $14.2 million and $11.7 million, regpeely, and related accumula
amortization was $5.4 million and $4.2 million, pestively. Deferred financing costs include loaesfeloan closing costs, premium
discounts on bonds and notes payable and debnisswasts. Amortization of bond premiums and dist®is included in contractual inter
expense. All other amortization is shown as amatitn of deferred financing costs. The scheduledréuamortization of these defer
financings costs will be as follows:

Contractual Deferred
Interest Financing Total
2008 $ 70 % 2,39C $ 2,46(
2009 37 1,46¢€ 1,50
2010 36 90t 941
2011 36 791 827
2012 36 70z 73¢€
Thereafter 191 2,10t 2,29¢
$ 40€ $ 8,35¢ $ 8,76t

Financing Obligations
Our financing obligations consisted of the follogiat December 31, 2007 and 2006:

December 31,

2007 2006
SF-HIW Harborview, LP financing obligatiam) $ 16,56¢ $ 16,15’
Tax increment financing obligatic2) 17,39t 18,30¢
Capitalized ground lease obligati@n 1,11¢ 1,06¢

Total $ 35,07 $ 35,53(

(1) See Note 3 for further discussion of this finanadtdjgation.

(2) In connection with tax increment financing for ctrastion of a public garage related to an officélding, we are obligated to pay fix
special assessments over ay2d+ period. The net present value of these assegsyaiscounted at 6.93% at the inception of thigation
which represents the interest rate on the underlpiond financing, is shown as a financing obligaiio the Consolidated Balance Sh
We also receive special tax revenues and propextyetoates recorded in interest and other incorhghnare intended, but not guarant
to provide funds to pay the special assessm
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5. MORTGAGES, NOTES PAYABLE AND FINANCING OBLIGATIONS - Continued

On December 3, 2007, we acquired for $20.9 milliba remaining outstanding bonds, at par value, Wexe issued by a munici
authority in connection with this tax incrementditing. These available for sale securities areechiat estimated fair value w
unrealized gains or losses reported in other cohgm&ve income, in accordance with SFAS No. 115¢cctnting for Certai
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities."

(3) Represents a capitalized lease obligation to tsoleof land on which we are constructing a newdimg. We are obligated to make fi»
payments to the lessor through October 2022 ante#se provides for fixed price purchase optionhéninth and tenth years of the le
We intend to exercise the purchase option in otdegsrevent an economic penalty related to convesfirgbuilding to the lessor at -
expiration of the lease. The net present valudefiked rental payments and purchase option thralig ninth year was calculated usit
discount rate of 7.1%. The assets and liabilitieden the capital lease are recorded at the lowehefpresent value of minimum le
payments or the fair value. The liability accret@sh month for the difference between the inteaston the financing obligation and
fixed payments. The accretion will continue urtiié fiability equals the purchase option of the lanthe ninth year of the leas

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Officer, Management and Director Compensation Progams

Our officers participate in an annual neguity incentive program whereby they are eligiioleincentive payments based on a percel
of their annual base salary. In addition to considethe pay practices of our peer group in deteing each offices incentive payme
percentage, the officer's ability to influence garformance is also considered. Each officer hsget annual noequity incentive payme
percentage that ranges from 25% to 130% of baseysaepending on the officer’s position. The offlseactual incentive payment for the y
is the product of the target annual incentive paymeercentage times a performance ‘factatiich can range from zero to 200%. 1
performance factor depends upon the relationshiywd®n how various performance criteria compare wittdetermined goals. For an offi
who has division responsibilities, goals for certperformance criteria are based partly on thesdinis actual performance relative to
division’s established goals for each criteria and parthacinal total performance relative to the samegat Incentive payments are accr
and expensed in the year earned and are geneaadlymthe first quarter of the following year.

Certain other members of management participatenirannual norquity incentive program whereby a target annuahdacentiv:
payment is established based upon the job resplitiesibof their position. Incentive payment eligity ranges from 10% to 40% of annual b
salary. The actual incentive payment is determibgdour overall performance and the individgsaperformance during each year. Tt
incentive payments are also accrued and expengbd year earned and are generally paid in thedirarter of the following year.

Our officers generally receive annual grants oflstoptions and restricted stock on or about Mardf dach year under the Amended
Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan (the “Stock Opfitan”). Stock options had also been granted to our direchart currently directors do t
receive annual stock option grants. Restrictedksfgrants are also made annually to directors amthioenonefficer employees. As
December 31, 2007, 9.0 million shares of CommormriSteere authorized for issuance under the Stocko®Rlan. Stock options issued p
to 2005 vest ratably over four years and remaistaating for 10 years. Stock options issued begiini 2005 vest ratably over a foyeal
period and remain outstanding for seven years. vithee of all options as of the date of grant iscokited using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model.
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6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

We generally make annual grants of titmesed restricted stock under our Stock Option Rlavur directors, officers and other employ
Shares of timdsased restricted stock issued prior to 2005 gelgerast 50% three years from the date of granttaedemaining 50% five yee
from date of grant. Shares of time-based restric®tk that were issued to officers and employ@e2005 vest onéiird on the thin
anniversary, one-third on the fourth anniversarg ane-third on the fifth anniversary of the dategrdnt. Shares of timeased restricted sto
that were issued to officers and employees in 2806 2007 generally vest 25% on the first, secohud tand fourth anniversary dat
respectively; Certain shares granted in 2007 vesttbird on the first, second and third annivergdates. Shares of timeased restricted sto
issued to directors generally vest 25% on Januao§ dach successive year after the grant date.vBhee of grants of timéased restricte
stock is based on the market value of Common Sasclif the date of grant and is amortized to expemse the respective vesting or ser
periods.

During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we also issued shdresstricted stock to officers under our Stock @ptPlan that will vest if our tot
shareholder return exceeds the average total setifra selected group of peer companies over a4taar period. If our total shareholder ret
does not equal or exceed such average total retnome of the total returbased restricted stock will vest. The 2006 and 2@@nts als
contain a provision allowing for partial vestingtlife annual total return in any given year of theeéyear period exceeds 9% on an abst
basis. Our total return on Common Stock was leas 8% for 2007, and accordingly, no shares vesteal r@sult of this provision. Our tc
return on Common Stock exceeded 9% in 2006, anordicgly 2,373 previously issued shares of totalnebased restricted stock vested ¢
December 31, 2006, net of shares surrendered thhelting taxes. The grant date fair values of eaath share of total retutrased restricte
stock were determined by an outside consultanetagproximately 75%, 87% and 76% of the marketevalua share of Common Stock a
the grant dates for the 2007, 2006 and 2005 greegpgectively. The grant date fair value of thdsmres of totaleturn based restricted stoc
being amortized to expense on a straight-line ntethwer the three-year period.

During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we also issued shdnesriormancebased restricted stock to officers under our StOpkon Plan that wi
vest pursuant to performance-based criteria. Tinfoymeance-based criteria are based on whether towaaneet or exceed at the end of three-
year performance periods certain operating anddéisé goals established under our Strategic Planth€ extent actual performance equa
exceeds threshold performance goals, the portioshafes of performandmsed restricted stock that vest can range from &0%00%. |
actual performance does not meet such threshold,guane of the performance-based restricted stoltkvest. The fair value of performance-
based restricted share grants is based on the malke of Common Stock as of the date of granttaedestimated performance to be achi
at the end of the thregear period. Such fair value is being amortizedxpense during the period from grant date to tistivg dates, adjustil
for the expected level of vesting that will occutleose dates.

Up to 100% of additional total return-based restdcstock and up to 50% of additional performabased restricted stock may be iss
at the end of the thregear periods if actual performance exceeds celtaigls of performance. Such additional sharesnyf, avould be full
vested when issued. We will also accrue and reegpeinse for additional performance-based sharésgltive threerear period to the exte
issuance of the additional shares is expected basenlir current and projected actual performanteckcordance with SFAS No. 123(R),
expense is recorded for additional shares of tetairn-based restricted stock that may be issudkdea¢nd of the thregear period since th
possibility is already reflected in the grant diie value.

During the years ended December 31, 2007, 20062808, we recognized approximately $5.2 million, %illion and $2.9 millior
respectively, of stock-based compensation expefiseof December 31, 2007, there was $10.6 milliontathl unrecognized stodkase:
compensation costs, which will be recognized owsting periods that have a weighted average rengaterm of 1.9 years.

The compensation and governance committee of tmep@oy’s board of directors has retained the authtwigrant norequity incentiv
and equity incentive awards at its discretion.
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6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

Using the BlackScholes option valuation model, the weighted aweradr values of options granted during 2007, 2666 2005 wel
$6.30, $4.00 and $1.89, respectively, per optidre fir values of the options granted were deteethiat the grant dates using the follov
weighted average assumptions:

2007 2006 2005
Risk free interest rat@) 4.51% 4.62% 4.1%
Common stock dividend yiel(2) 4.07% 5.2(% 6.45%
Expected volatility3) 18.9% 18.9(% 16.3(%
Average expected option life (yea() 5.7t 4.7¢ 7.C
Options grante: 146,34° 243,61( 662,32!

(1) Represents interest rate on US treasury bonds dpévinsame life as the estimated life of the opgjamts.

(2) The dividend yield is calculated utilizing the dlends paid for the previous ogear period and the per share price of Common Sto
the date of gran

(3) Based on the historical volatility of Common Stamler a period relevant to the related stock opgiant.

(4) The average expected option life for the 2007 ab@b2grants is based on an analysis of historicalpamy data. The average expe
option life for the 2005 grants is a weighted ageraf their respective contractual ter

The following table summarizes information aboulisébck options outstanding at December 31, 2007:

Options Outstanding

Weighted

Average

Number of Exercise

Shares Price

Balances at December 31, 2006 2,975,07. $ 24.67
Options grante: 146,34 41.8:
Options forfeitec (30,000 35.0(
Options cancelle (85,229 28.4:
Options exercised (1,096,36) 23.2¢
Balances at December 31, 2007 1,909,82. $ 26.4¢

Cash received or receivable from options exercises $12.9 million, $43.3 million and $2.7 milliororf the years end
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively tdlaéintrinsic value of options exercised durthg years ended December 31, 2007,
and 2005 was $23.4 million, $30.5 million and $million, respectively. The total intrinsic value options outstanding at December 31, 2
2006 and 2005 was $8.0 million, $47.9 million ar&2 B million, respectively. We generally do notmpérthe net cash settlement of exerc
stock options, but do permit net share settlementértain qualified exercises. We have a policysetiing new shares to satisfy stock of.
exercises.
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The following table sets forth information at Ded®m31, 2007 about (a) the outstanding number sefedestock options and th
expected to vest and (b) the number of those optioett are exercisable.

Weighted Aggregate Weighted

Average Intrinsic Average

Number Exercise Value Remaining

of Shares Price (in 000s) Years
Outstanding 1,881,231 $ 232 % 8,00¢ 4.2¢
Exercisable 1,232,66. $ 23.97 $ 6,86( 3.7¢

The following table summarizes activity in the yeaded December 31, 2007 for all time-based résttistock grants:

Weighted
Average
Grant
Number of Date Fair
Shares Value
Nonvested shares outstanding at December 31, 255,12( $ 27.12
Awarded and issug(1) 205,28 40.7¢
Vested(2) (42,880 27.3¢
Forfeited (29,959 27.6:
Surrendered for payment of withholding taxes upesting(2) (31,067 27.3]
Nonvested shares outstanding at December 31, 356,49 $ 34.8¢

(1) The weighted average fair value at grant daternétiased restricted shares issued during the yeaeddddcember 31, 2007, 2006
2005 was $8.4 million, $2.4 million and $2.5 mitliarespectively

(2) The vesting date fair value of tintesed restricted shares that vested during the weated December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 wa
million, $2.2 million and $2.4 million, respectiyel

The following table summarizes activity in the yesmded December 31, 2007 for all performance-basédtotal returrbased restricte
stock grants:

Weighted
Average
Grant
Number of Date Fair
Shares Value
Nonvested shares outstanding at December 31, 106,64t $ 28.5¢
Awarded and issug(1) 41,48( 41.81
Vested(2) (2,174 26.8¢2
Forfeited (8,876 30.92
Surrendered for payment of withholding taxes upesting(2) (1,609 26.8:
Nonvested shares outstanding at December 31, 135,47. $ 32.52

(1) The weighted average fair value at grant date ofopmance and total retudmased restricted shares issued during the yearsc
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $1.7 mil#iarg million and $1.5 million, respectivel

(2) The vesting date fair value of retubased restricted shares that vested during botheofears ended December 31, 2007 and 200
$0.2 million. No performanc«based or retu-based restricted shares vested during 2
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1999 Shareholder Value Plan

Grants under the 1999 Shareholder Value Plan weended to reward our officers when the total dhalder returns measured
increases in the market value of Common Stock gluslends exceeded a comparable index of our peegs a thregrear period. Annu.
grants under this Plan up to 2004 would result ashcpayments based on our percentage change iehslder return compared to
composite index of our peer group. If our perforoeus not at least 100% of the peer group, no paigomade. To the extent performa
exceeds the peer group, the payout increases. W@rants were made under the 1999 Shareholder \Rihrein 2006 and 2005. There w
no cash payouts for grants under this plan forytb&r ended December 31, 2005. For the grants issuedrly 2004 and whose thrgeal
performance period ended on December 31, 2006, gatgrof approximately $0.9 million were made inlye&007. The 1999 Shareholi
Value Plan is accounted for as a liability award,aaccordingly, at each peri@hd, a liability equal to the current computed faitue unde
the plan for all outstanding plan units, adjusted the threerear vesting period, is recorded with correspondih@rges or credits
compensation expense. No compensation expenseegasead to be recognized during 2005 for grantseuritis plan; approximately $(
million was recognized as expense in 2006. Thexaargrants currently outstanding under this plan.

Retirement Plan

In 2006, we adopted a retirement plan applicablgltemployees, including officers, who, at thediof retirement, have at least 30 yi
of continuous qualified service or are at leasty®ars old and have at least 10 years of contingmadified service. Subject to adva
retirement notice and execution of a mmmpete agreement with us, eligible retirees atélexhto receive a pro rata amount of the an
incentive payment earned during the year of retin@mStock options and timeased restricted stock granted by us to such Higitirec
during his or her employment would be nfonfeitable and become exercisable according tadhms of their original grants. Eligible retir
would also be entitled to receive a pro rata amafiretny performance-based and total reto@ased restricted stock originally granted to :
eligible retiree during his or her employment teabsequently vests after the retirement date acgptd the terms of their original grants.
benefits of this retirement plan apply only to rieséd stock and stock option grants beginning @9& and will be phased in 25%
March 1, 2006 and 25% on each anniversary theFemfemployees who meet the age and service eltgibdquirements, 25% of their 20
grants and 50% of their 2007 grants were fully esgeel at the grant date, which increased compensatipense by approximately $0.3 mill
and $0.2 million in the years ended December 3Q7 20hd 2006, respectively. Grants made prior t®20@ unaffected.
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Deferred Compensation

We have a deferred compensation plan pursuant ichvdach officer and director can elect to defpodion of their base salary anc
annual norequity incentive payment (or director fees) which imvested on behalf of the officer or directowarious unrelated mutual fun
These investments are recorded at fair value whgdregated $6.2 million at December 31, 2007 aedirariuded in prepaid expenses
other assets, with an offsetting deferred compénséability recorded in other liabilities. Sucleférred compensation is expensed in the p
earned by the officers and directors. Deferred artsultimately payable to the officers and direstare based on the value of the rel
mutual fund investments (recorded in prepaid exgerend other assets). Accordingly, changes in #heevof the marketable mutual fu
investments are recorded in other income and thegmonding offsetting changes in the deferred @raation liability are recorded in gens
and administration expense. As a result, thereoigffect on our net income subsequent to the timeecompensation is deferred and f
funded. Prior to January 1, 2006, executive officand directors also could elect to defer cash emsgtion for investment in units of phan
stock, which are not recorded as assets in oundinhstatements. At the end of each calendar guaaty executive officer and director v
deferred compensation into phantom stock was @@ditith units of phantom stock at a 15.0% discobmtidends on the phantom units
assumed to be issued in additional units of pharstimek at a 15.0% discount. If an officer that defd compensation under this plan leave:
employ voluntarily or for cause within two yeargeafthe end of the year in which such officer defdrcompensation for units of phani
stock, at a minimum, the 15.0% discount and anymgéekdividends are forfeited. Over the tyear vesting period, we record additic
compensation expense equal to the 15.0% discdwngdcrued dividends and any changes in the meaket of Common Stock from the d
of the deferral. The net expense or (income) rezmid general and administrative expenses from ®haistock aggregated $(0.3) milli
$1.6 million and $0.4 million for the years endedd®mber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Gagments from the plan for the ye
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $0i8rmi50.4 million and $0.02 million, respectivelyransfers made from the phan
stock investment to other investments in the deteoompensation plan for the years ended Decenih@087 and 2006 were $1.5 million i
$1.1 million, respectively. There were no transferade for the year ended December 31, 2005. At Dkee31, 2007, the total liability
deferred compensation aggregated $7.9 million amddorded in accounts payable, accrued expendesilaer liabilities.

401(k) Savings Plan

We have a 401(k) savings plan covering substaptllemployees who meet certain age and employerietia. We contribute amoul
for each participant at a rate of 75% of the empddy contribution (up to 6% of each employesalary subject to statutory limits). During
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, migteded $1.2 million, $1.1 million and $1.1 mdh, respectively, to the 401(k) savi
plan. The assets of this plan are not includedwrCmnsolidated Balance Sheet. Administrative egpsrof the plan are paid by us.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan for alleaetnployees under which employees can elect miriboite up to 25.0% of the
base and annual non-equity incentive compensatiothe purchase of Common Stock. At the end of éacdemonth offering period, tt
contributions in each participant's account balamdgch includes accrued dividends, are applieddguire shares of Common Stock at a
that is calculated at 85.0% of the lower of therage closing price on the New York Stock Exchang¢he five consecutive days precedinc
first day of the quarter or the five days precedimglast day of the quarter. The Operating Pastriprissues one Common Unit to the Comj
in exchange for the price paid for each share ah@on Stock. SEC rules prohibited the Company fresuing shares of Common St
pursuant to the plan under its Forn83egistration statement during most of 2005 beeaighe delay in the filing of our SEC reports. &
result, no shares were issued during 2005 undepldre and the funds were held by a trustee. 6268 Company issued 60,471 share
Common Stock under the Employee Stock Purchase Rilaich included shares purchased using the fuedi$ iy such trustee. In the y
ended December 31, 2007, the Company issued 16/8@%s of Common Stock under the Employee StockhBse Plan. The discount
newly issued shares is expensed by us as addibongbensation and aggregated $0.2 million in eddheoyears ended December 31, 2
2006 and 2005, respectively.
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7. RENTAL AND OTHER REVENUES; RENTAL PROPERTY AND OTHER EXPENSES

Our real estate assets are leased to tenants apdeating leases. The minimum rental amounts utideteases are generally subjec
scheduled fixed increases or, much less frequeadjstments based on the Consumer Price Indexer@gn the leases also require that
tenants reimburse us for increases in certain e@gige the basgear costs. Rental and other revenues from continaperations consist of 1
following:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Contractual rents $ 374,07¢ $ 349,020 $ 331,49
Straigh-line rental income, ne 6,85¢ 8,10¢ 6,89¢
Lease incentive amortizatic (960) (791) (86¢)
Property operating cost recovery inco 44,42 39,64( 33,89:¢
Lease termination fee 2,617 2,792 4,87(
Fee income 6,49¢ 6,001 4,95(
Other miscellaneous operating income 3,55( 4,50( 6,69

$ 437,05¢ $ 409,270 $ 387,92

Rental property and other expenses from continapegations consist of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Maintenance, cleaning and general building $ 55536 $ 5256 $  49,17¢
Utilities, insurance and real estate ta 85,08’ 80,19¢ 72,30(
Division and allocated administrative expen 11,73¢ 11,98: 10,11%
Other miscellaneous operating expenses 4,907 5,732 6,937

$ 157,26 $ 150,47: $ 138,53

Expected future minimum base rents to be receiveer che next five years and thereafter from tendotsleases in effect
December 31, 2007 for the Wholly Owned Propertiesas follows:

2008 $ 375,30¢
2009 351,36:
2010 305,48
2011 258,54(
2012 201,79:
Thereafter 674,03(
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8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We had a contract to acquire development land é Bluegrass Valley office development project fr@API, Inc., a corporatic
controlled by Gene H. Anderson, an executive offemed director of the Company. Under the termshefdontract, the development land
purchased in phases, and the purchase price forprese or parcel was settled in cash and/or Connits. The price for the various parc
was based on an initial value for each parcel,sdéflifor an interest factor, applied up to theinlpsiate and also for changes in the value ¢
Common Units. On January 17, 2003, we acquireddditianal 23.5 acres of this land from GAPI, Inat 85,520 shares of Common Stock
$384,000 in cash for total consideration of $2.8iom. In May 2003, 4.0 acres of the remaining acnet yet acquired by us was taken by
Georgia Department of Transportation to developadway interchange for consideration of $1.8 milli@he Department of Transportat
took possession and title of the property in Jud@32 As part of the terms of the contract betwesand GAPI, Inc., we were entitled to .
received in 2003 the $1.8 million proceeds from doedemnation. In July 2003, we appealed the conddon and are currently seek
additional payment from the state; the recognitiérany gain has been deferred pending resolutioth@fappeal process. In April 2005,
acquired for cash an additional 12.1 acres of theed@@ass Valley land from GAPI, Inc. and also settior cash the final purchase price \
GAPI, Inc. on the 4.0 acres that were taken byGleergia Department of Transportation, which aggedjapproximately $2.7 million,
which $0.7 million was recorded as a payable to GAR. on our financial statements as of Decen#der2004. In August 2005, we acqui
12.7 acres, representing the last parcel of largetacquired, for cash of $3.2 million. We belighat the purchase price with respect to
land parcel was at or below market value based arkeh data and on the subsequent sale of the taadignificant gain, as discussed be
These transactions were unanimously approved byfutheBoard of Directors with Mr. Anderson abstaigi from the vote. The contr:
provided that the land parcels could be paid in @@m Units or in cash, at the option of the sellgris feature constituted an embed
derivative pursuant to SFAS No. 13¥he embedded derivative feature was accountedefuarately and adjusted based on changes in tt
value of the Common Units. This resulted in deasas other income of $0.4 million and $0.2 millizsn2004 and 2005, respectively. *
embedded derivative expired upon the closing offithed land transaction in August 2005. The majodt the Bluegrass land that we acqu
from GAPI, Inc. was sold in the fourth quarter 608 to a third party for a gain of approximatelyGhillion.

On February 28, 2005 and April 15, 2005, we soldugh a third party broker three non-core indubktoiaildings in WinstonSalem
North Carolina to John L. Turner and certain of &fiffliates for a gross sales price of approximat27.0 million, of which $20.3 million wi
paid in cash and the remainder from the surrenfd&56,508 Common Units. We recorded a gain of axiprately $4.8 million upon tt
closing of these sales. Mr. Turner, who was a threat the time of these transactions, retired friva Board of Directors effecti
December 31, 2005. We believe that the purchase paid for these assets by Mr. Turner and hiiséfs was equal to their fair market ve
based on extensive marketing of the propertiesr pocthis sale. The sales were unanimously apprdmethe full Board of Directors wi
Mr. Turner not being present to discuss or votéhenmatter.
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9. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock Dividends
Dividends declared and paid per share of CommookStggregated $1.70 for each of the years endedrbeer 31, 2007, 2006 and 20

The following table summarizes the estimated tditgho the stockholders of dividends for fedemratdme tax purposes:

2007 2006 2005

Per share
Ordinary income $ 0.7¢ $ 004 $ 0.6¢€
Capital gains 0.8: 0.6¢ 0.9¢
Return of capital 0.11 0.97 0.0t
Total $ 1.7C $ 1.7C $ 1.7¢

Our tax returns have not been examined by the HRiIStaerefore, the taxability of dividends is subj® change.

On January 31, 2008, the Board of Directors dedlareash dividend of $0.425 per share of CommonkStayable on March 3, 2008
stockholders of record on February 11, 2008.

Preferred Stock
Below is a tabular presentation of our PreferraxtiSas of December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Number Annual

of Shares Number Liquidation Optional Dividends
Issued of Shares Carrying Preference Redemption Payable
Preferred Stock Issuances Issue Date Originally Qutstanding Value Per Share Date Per Share

(in thousands) (in thousands)
December 31, 2007:
8 5/8% Series A Cumulative

Redeemabl 2/12/1997 12E 83 % 8293 % 1,000 02/12/2007 $ 86.2¢
8% Series B Cumulative
Redeemabl 9/25/1997 6,90( 2,10 $ 52,50( $ 25 09/25/200z $ 2.0C

December 31, 2006:
8 5/8% Series A Cumulative

Redeemabl 2/12/1997 12E 105 $ 104,94! $ 1,000 02/12/2027 $ 86.2¢
% Series B Cumulative
Redeemabl 9/25/1997 6,90( 3,700 $ 92,50( $ 25 09/25/200z $ 2.0C

The net proceeds raised from Preferred Stock issesawere contributed by the Company to the Operd®artnership in exchange
Preferred Units in the Operating Partnership. Bimms of each series of Preferred Units generaligligd the terms of the respective Prefe
Stock as to distributions, liquidation and redemptiights.

Of the $86.25 dividend paid per Series A Prefei®ddre in 2007, $41.27 was taxable as ordinary iecand $44.98 was taxable
capital gain. Of the $2.00 dividend paid per SeBeBreferred Share in 2007, $0.96 was taxable disany income and $1.04 was taxabl
capital gain.
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9. STOCKHOLDERS'EQUITY - Continued

During 2007 and 2006, we used some of the proc&eds our disposition activities described in Noteodredeem and repurchi
Preferred Stock.

On August 6, 2007, we repurchased and retired 82¢0®ur outstanding Series A Preferred Sharesafoaggregate purchase pric
$22.3 million. In connection with this repurchatfee $0.8 million excess of the purchase cost dvemiet carrying amount of the repurch
shares was recorded as a reduction to net incoailable for common shareholders in the third quasfe2007 in accordance with EITF To
D-42.

On May 29, 2007, we redeemed 1.6 million of ourstariding Series B Preferred Shares, aggregatind $ddlion plus accrued a
unpaid dividends. In connection with this redemmptithe $1.4 million excess of the redemption cograhe net carrying amount of -
redeemed shares was recorded as a reduction itecnate available for common shareholders in therséguarter of 2007.

On February 23, 2006, we redeemed 2.0 million of autstanding Series B Preferred Shares aggreg&s0g0 million plus accrue
dividends. On August 22, 2005, we redeemed 0.4amjlirepresenting all of our outstanding, SerieBrBferred Shares and 1.2 million of
outstanding Series B Preferred Shares, aggregfti8.0 million plus accrued dividends. In conneattisith these redemptions, the exces
the redemption cost over the net carrying amounthefredeemed shares was recorded as a reductioet tocome available for comm
shareholders in the amounts of $1.8 million an@® $dillion, respectively.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

We have a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock PurcRéa®e under which holders of Common Stock may dle@utomatically reinve
their dividends in additional shares of Common Btand may make optional cash payments for additishares of Common Stock. 1
administrator of the Dividend Reinvestment and KtBarchase Plan has been instructed by us to pgrdbammon Stock in the open ma
for purposes of satisfying our obligations thereemdHowever, we may in the future elect to sat&fgh obligations by issuing additional sh.
of Common Stock.

10. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During 2007, we entered into two floating-to-fixederest rate swaps for a ogear period with respect to an aggregate of $50amibf
borrowings outstanding under our revolving creddility. These swaps fix the underlying LIBOR rateder which interest on such borrowi
is based at 4.70%. These swaps were not designatbddges as of December 31, 2007 under SFAS o.Atgordingly, the swaps we
accounted for as nomedge derivatives as of December 31, 2007, andjgregate unrealized loss of $0.2 million was re@egphin 2007 fc
these two swaps.

In January 2008, we entered into two additionatileg-to-fixed interest rate swaps for a grear period with respect to an aggrega
$50 million of borrowings outstanding under ouraking credit facility or our bank term loan. Theseaps fix the underlying LIBOR r¢
under which interest on such borrowings is bas&126% for $30 million of borrowings and 3.24% &#0 million of borrowings. These swi
were designated as hedges under SFAS No. 133. dingby, the swaps are being accounted for as dashifedges.

During 2004 through June 1, 2005 we had an intestetswap designated as a cash flow hedge treatisffly fixed the LIBOR base r¢
on $20.0 million of floating rate debt at 1.59%.
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10. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued

The Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (“AOCh&8lance at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $0.9om#éind $1.5 millior
respectively, and consisted of deferred gains asskls from past cash flow hedging instruments whiehbeing recognized as interest exp
over the terms of the related debt (see Note 18.a8pect that the portion of the cumulative losoréed in AOCL at December 31, 2(
associated with these derivative instruments, whidh be recognized as an offset to interest expewithin the next 12 months, will
approximately $0.2 million.

As described in Note 8, the land purchase agreemi#imiGAPI, Inc. included an embedded derivativatéee due to the price for the I
parcels being determined by the fair value of Comrdaits, which was accounted for in accordance BRAS No. 133.

11. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE IMCOME

Other comprehensive income represents net income the changes in certain amounts deferred in adeded other comprehens
income/(loss) related to hedging activities noteed in the Consolidated Statements of Income démponents of other comprehen
income are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Net income $ 90,74t $ 53,74+ $  62,45¢
Other comprehensive incorr

Realized derivative gains/(losses) on «flow hedges — — (101
Amortization of hedging gains and losses includedther comprehensive

income 577 697 702

Total other comprehensive income 577 697 602

Total comprehensive income $ 91,32 $ 5444 $  63,06(
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As part of our business strategy, we will from titnetime selectively dispose of naare properties in order to use the net proceet
investments, for repayment of debt and/or retiremoéPreferred Stock, or other purposes. The thblew sets forth the net operating resul
those assets classified as discontinued operaitioasr Consolidated Financial Statements. Thesetaisdassified as discontinued operat
comprise 8.9 million square feet of office and igtfial properties and 202 rental residential usdtisl during 2005, 2006 and 2007. These long:
lived assets relate to disposal activities thatewiaitiated subsequent to the effective date of SBo. 144, or that met certain stipulati
prescribed by SFAS No. 144. The operations of tlassets have been reclassified from our ongoingatipas to discontinued operations,
we will not have any significant continuing involaent in the operations after the disposal transasti

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Rental and other revenues $ 7,082 $ 20,501 $ 62,75¢
Operating expenses:

Rental property and other expen 3,41¢ 8,374 26,20

Impairment of assets held and u: — 2,60( 4,41°F

Depreciation and amortizatic 1,692 5,43¢ 19,37(

General and administrative — 87 85¢

Total operating expenses 5,10¢ 16,49¢ 50,84¢

Interest expense — 56(C 1,664
Other income 29 82 231
Income before minority interest in the Operating Patnership and gains

on sales of discontinued operations 2,00t 3,524 10,48:

Minority interest in discontinued operations (140) (314 (1,00€)
Income from discontinued operations, net of minoriy interest in the

Operating Partnership 1,86t 3,21( 9,47:

Net gains on sales of discontinued operat 34,471 15,08: 25,75¢

Minority interest in discontinued operations (2,465 (1,222 (2,52€)
Net gains on sales of discontinued operations, neft minority interest

in the Operating Partnership 32,017 13,85¢ 23,22¢
Net income from discontinued operations before relese of FASB FIN 48

tax liability 33,877 17,06¢ 32,69¢

Release of FASB FIN 48 tax liability 1,47¢ _ _
Total discontinued operations $ 35,35( $ 17,06¢ $ 32,69¢
Carrying value of assets held for sale and assetsld during the year $ 73,770 $  27927. $ 576,62
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - Continued

The following table includes the major classesssfets and liabilities of the properties held fde s& of December 31, 2007 and 2006:

December 31,

2007 2006
Land $ — 8 3,46:
Land held for developme! 10,40« 24,32¢
Buildings and tenant improvemer — 21,94¢
Accumulated depreciation — (6,829)
Net real estate ass¢ 10,40 42,91
Deferred leasing costs, r — 43t
Accrued straight line rents receival — 727
Prepaid expenses and other 62 24¢
Total assets $ 10,46¢ $ 44,32:
Tenant security deposits, deferred rents and adarosty1) $ 10C $ 52E

(1) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensestand liabilities.
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Basic income per share
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 5539 $ 36,67¢ $ 29,75¢
Preferred Stock dividenc) (13,477 (17,069 (27,239
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption costs oveyiogrvalue(1) (2,285 (1,809 (4,277
Income/(loss) from continuing operations availdolecommon
stockholder: 39,63 17,81( (2,757
Income from discontinued operations 35,35( 17,06¢ 32,69¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 7498: $ 34,87¢ $  30,94¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share — weigatedage shares 56,44+ 54,48¢ 53,73
Basic earnings per shai
Income/(loss) from continuing operatic $ 0.7C $ 03z $ (0.03)
Income from discontinued operations 0.62 0.31 0.61
Net income $ 1.3 $ 064 $ 0.5¢
Diluted income per share:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 5539 $ 36,67¢ $ 29,75¢
Preferred Stock dividenc) (13,477 (17,069 (27,239
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption costs oveyiogrvalue(1) (2,285 (1,807%) (4,272)
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership 3,06¢ 1,64( —
Income/(loss) from continuing operations availdolecommon
stockholder: 42,69¢ 19,45( (1,757
Income from discontinued operatic 35,35( 17,06¢ 32,69¢
Minority interest in the Operating Partnership isodntinued operations 2,60¢ 1,53¢ —
Income from discontinued operations 37,95¢ 18,60¢ 32,69¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 80,65 $ 38,056 $ 30,94¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per st— adjusted weighted average she2) 56,44« 54,48¢ 53,73:
Add:
Employee and director stock options and warr 662 1,39¢ —@3)
Common Units 4,19( 5,19: —@3)
Unvested restricted stock 25(C 28€ —@3)
Denominator for diluted earnings per share — adflisteighted average
shares and assumed conversi 61,544 61,36%4) 53,73:
Diluted earnings per shai(3)
Income/(loss) from continuing operatic $ 0.6¢ $ 03z $ (0.03)
Income from discontinued operations 0.62 0.3C 0.61
Net income $ 131 $ 06z $ 0.5¢
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE - Continued

(1) For additional disclosures regarding outstandirefé?red Stock, see Note 9 included her
(2) Weighted average shares exclude shares of unvesstgitted stock pursuant to SFAS No. 1

(3) Pursuant to SFAS No. 128, income from continuingrapions, after preferred dividends and prefertedksredemption charge, is -
amount used to determine whether potential comnhamnes are dilutive or antidilutive. Because suctepiial common shares would
antidilutive to income from continuing operationkeable to common shareholders, diluted earnirggsshare is the same as basic ear
per share for the year ended December 31, 200Bn®aitcommon shares include stock options, wastasitares issuable upon conver

of Common Units and unvested restricted shares,vemad have amounted to approximately 6.6 millidrares for the year enc
December 31, 200!

(4) Options and warrants aggregating approximately @illion and 0.2 million shares were outstanding idgr the years end
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, but wetencluded in the computation of diluted earnimgs share because the exel
prices of the options and warrants were higher tharaverage market price of Common Stock duriegeiperiod.

The number of shares of Common Stock reservedufard issuance is as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006
Outstanding warrants 25,00( 35,00(
Outstanding stock optior 1,909,82 2,975,07.
Possible future issuance under Stock Option Plan 1,234,59; 1,481,86.
3,169,41! 4,491,93!

As of December 31, 2007, we had 142,832,807 remgisiares of Common Stock authorized to be issnddrwur charter.

14. WARRANTS

Warrants to acquire common stock were issued ity B9fl 1999 in connection with property acquisitidns2005, 35,000 warrants w
an exercise price of $21.00 per share were exereind 120,000 warrants with an exercise price 8 (K2 per share were exercised. In 2
30,000 warrants with an exercise price of $28.00sbare were exercised, 591,715 warrants with @ncese price of $32.50 per share v
exercised and 100,000 warrants with an exercise mfi $34.13 were exercised. In 2007, 10,000 wisnaith an exercise price of $34.13 w
exercised. At December 31, 2007, there are 25,G00ants outstanding with an exercise price of $323%ese warrants have no expiration ¢
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Concentration of Credit Risk

We maintain our cash and cash equivalent invessraamd our restricted cash at financial or otherimediary institutions. The combir
account balances at each institution typically e’cEDIC insurance coverage and, as a result, thexeconcentration of credit risk relatet
amounts on deposit in excess of FDIC insurancereges

Land Leases

Certain properties in our wholly owned portfoliceasubject to land leases expiring through 2082 t&grayments on these leases
adjusted annually based on either the consumee pritex (CPI) or on a pre-determined schedule. llaases subject to increases under a pre
determined schedule are accounted for under thggktline method. Total expense recorded for land leases$1.4 million, $1.3 million ai
$1.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2@006 and 2005, respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, our payment obligationsfiibure minimum payments on operating leases (whiclude scheduled fixi
increases, but exclude increases based on CPl)asdatlows:

2008 $ 1,07
2009 1,11¢
2010 1,13¢
2011 1,15¢
2012 1,17¢
Thereafter 44,36¢

$ 50,02

Environmental Matters

Substantially all of our irservice and development properties have been dabjéa Phase | environmental assessments (an@ytair
instances, Phase Il environmental assessmentsh &ssessments and/or updates have not revealeds nmoanagement aware of, i
environmental liability that management believesilddiave a material adverse effect on the acconmpgr§onsolidated Financial Statements.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

Guarantees and Other Obligations

The table below sets forth information about cergiarantees and other obligations as of Decenthe2d®7. The amounts reflectec

the table assume we would be required to pay theémuan potential exposure with no offsets or redutsi. With respect to a rent guarante
the space is leased, we assumed the existing telediatiited at December 31, 2007 and that the spdlteemain unleased through 1
remainder of the guaranty. If the space is vaocaatassumed the space will remain vacant throughehiainder of the guaranty. Since |
assumed that no new tenant will occupy the spaesel commissions, if applicable, are excluded.

Amount Date
Type of Recorded/ Guarantee

Entity or Transaction Guarantee or Other Obligation Deferred Expires
Des Moines Joint Venture),(4) Debt $ — 11/2015
RRHWoods, LLC(2),(5) Indirect Debt $ 324 8/2010
Plaza Colonnad(2),(6) Indirect Debt $ 8 12/2009
Industrial3),(7) Environmental costs $ 12& Until

Remediate

Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L(2),8) Rent $ 20¢ 6/2008
RRHWoods, LLC and Dallas County Partn(2),(9) Indirect Debt $ 68 6/2014
RRHWoods, LLC(1),(2),(11) Indirect Debt $ 30 11/2009
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC(3),(10) Rent $ 32¢ 4/2011
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC(3),(10) Leasing Cost $ 29¢€ Until Paid
Capitalized Lease Obligatiol(12) Debt $ 33:¢ Various
Brickstone(2),(13) Debt $ — 5/2017
(1) Recourse provisions exist that would enable ugtover some or all of any such payments from th jenture’ assets

(@)
3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Represents guarantees that fall under the ingi@gnition and measurement requirements of FAS&pnttation No. 45, “Guarantar’
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guaes)tincluding Indirect Guarantees of IndebtednéStioere” (“FIN 45").

Represents guarantees that are excluded from ithealae accounting and disclosure provisions dfl B6 because the existence of ¢
guarantees prevents sale treatment and/or thenigioogof profit from a sale transactic

We and our joint venture each guaranteed $8.6amiltif debt of the Des Moines joint ventures thas watstanding at December 31, 2(
The joint ventures currently generate sufficiersicdlow to cover the required debt service. Thiargatee was entered into prior to
January 1, 2003 effective date of FIN 45 for initecognition and measureme

To facilitate a financing by the RRHWoods, LLC jowenture, we and our joint venture partner eacdranteed $3.1 million relating tc
letter of credit and a corresponding master lehssugh August 2010. The guarantee requires usytaipder a contingent master leas
the cash flows from the building securing the lettiecredit do not cover dtast 50% of the minimum debt service. During 200& mad
master lease payments of $0.1 million. As of Decen®i, 2007, we recorded a $0.3 million deferredrgé included in other assets
liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheet wébpect to this guarantee. Our maximum potentipbsdre under this guarantee was
million at December 31, 200

To facilitate a financing by the Plaza ColonnadeClLjoint venture, we and our joint venture partségned a contingent master le
relating to 30,772 square feet through Decembe®2@ur maximum potential exposure under this maktase was $0.9 million
December 31, 2007. The current occupancy levedi@building has been sufficient to cover all desvge requirements and, accordin
no payments have been required under the mastay.
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

(7) As part of the sale of an industrial property incBeber 2003, we indemnified the buyer with respe@nvironmental concerns of uf
$0.1 million. As a result, $0.1 million of the gairas deferred at the time of sale and will remaifeded until the environmental conce
are remediatec

(8) To facilitate the restructuring of a tenanteases with us and the Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLIBBILP joint venture in September 2C
we agreed to compensate the joint venture for @oepa@mic losses incurred as a result of these leesifications through June 2008.
connection with this arrangement, we have approtéinab0.2 million in other liabilities and $0.2 idin as a deferred charge in ot
assets recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sh&s=camber 31, 2007. Our maximum potential exposunager this arrangement v
$0.3 million at December 31, 2007. During 2007 5$@illion was charged to expense in connection with arrangemen

(9) To facilitate a financing by the RRHWoods, LLC abdllas County Partners joint ventures, we and oint jventure partner agreed
master lease certain vacant space and each guwafh&million of debt through 2014. No master éepayments were necessary in 2
We currently have recorded $0.07 million in othebilities and $0.07 million as a deferred chargeluded in other assets on
Consolidated Balance Sheet with respect to theandsase payment guarantee. The maximum potentedseire under the master le
was $2.0 million at December 31, 2007. Becausgoihe ventures currently generate sufficient cdskwfto cover the required debt serv
no liability for the $0.8 million direct guarantees recorded at December 31, 2C

(10)We have guaranteed rent to the HIW KC Orlando, Ljbioit venture for 3,248 rentable square feet thioégril 2011. The maximu
potential exposure under this guarantee was $0l®mat December 31, 2007. Additionally, we agrdedguarantee the initial leas
costs, originally estimated at $4.1 million, forpapximately 11% of the total square feet of thepgmty owned by the joint venture.
paid approximately $0.06 million in 2007 under taisangemen

(11)To facilitate a financing by the RRHWoods, LLC joirenture, we and our joint venture partner eackedjto guarantee $3.3 million of
joint ventures debt through November 2009, but can be reneWwszligh November 2011 at the joint ventsreption. Because the jo
venture currently generates sufficient cash flowctiver the required debt service, no liability filmis guarantee was recordec
December 31, 2007. In addition, we agreed to aenésase for 50% of the debt service should th& jeénture not generate sufficient c
flow to cover the required debt service. As a restithis master lease, we have recorded $0.03omilh other liabilities and as a defer
charge in other assets on our Consolidated Bal8heet at December 31, 20!

(12)Represents capitalized lease obligations of $0lfBomirelated to office equipment, which is inclubliem accounts payable, accrued expe
and other liabilities on our Consolidated Balanbe& at December 31, 20(

(13)To facilitate a financing by RRHWoods, LLC, ourrjbiventure partner provided a $1.5 million lettéciedit. We agreed to reimburse
partner for 50% of the letter of credit in the eveha default by the joint venture of the undemntyidebt. Because the joint venture curre
generates sufficient cash flow to cover the requidebt service, no liability for this obligation sveecorded at December 31, 20

Litigation, Claims and Assessments

We are from time to time a party to a variety afdeproceedings, claims and assessments arisitigeinrdinary course of our busine
We regularly assess the liabilities and contingesmian connection with these matters based on thstlaformation available. For those mai
where it is probable that we have incurred or witlur a loss and the loss or range of loss carebsonably estimated, the estimated lo
accrued and charged to income in the ConsolidateanEial Statements. In other instances, becaugbeotincertainties related to both
probable outcome and amount or range of loss,sonable estimate of liability, if any, cannot bedmaBased on the current expected outc
of such matters, none of these proceedings, claimasssessments is expected to have a materialsadeffect on our business, finan
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In 2006 and March 2007, we received assessmentstdte excise taxes and related interest amoutdirgpproximately $5.5 millio
related to periods 2002 through 2005. In the fogrtarter of 2006, approximately $0.5 million wasraed and charged to operating expe
in anticipation of a probable settlement of thelsénmts. We received an executed settlement agreerakating to these claims in October 2(
which resulted in no change to the amount previoascrued and paid. Legal fees related to thisenatere nominal and were charge:
operating expenses as incurred in 2006 and 2007.
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16. DISCLOSURE ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT S

The following disclosures of estimated fair valuerer determined by management using available mank@atmation and approprie
valuation methodologies. Considerable judgmentsiduto interpret market data and develop estimfaiedalues. Accordingly, the estima
presented herein are not necessarily indicativih@famounts that we could realize upon dispositibthe financial instruments. The use
different market assumptions and/or estimation wadlogies may have a material effect on the eséith&dir values. The carrying amounts
estimated fair values of our financial instrumeatt®ecember 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Carrying

Amount Fair Value
December 31,2007
Cash and cash equivale $ 3,14C $ 3,14(
Accounts and notes receival $ 28,747 $ 28,747
Marketable securities (in other asst $ 6,192 $ 6,19<
Taxable bonds (in other asse $ 20,91t $ 20,91t
Mortgages and notes payal $ 1,641,98 $ 1,632,89
Financing obligation $ 35,07. $ 33,85
December 31, 2006
Cash and cash equivalel $ 16,69( $ 16,69(
Accounts and notes receival $ 31,21¢ $ 31,21¢
Marketable securities (in other asst $ 4,63: $ 4,63:
Mortgages and notes payal $ 1,465,12¢ $ 1,506,69:
Financing obligation $ 3553( $ 39,12:

The fair values of our fixed rate mortgages anegsgayable and financing obligations were estimasiuly discounted cash flow anal
based on our estimated incremental borrowing rafeeaember 31, 2007 and 2006 for similar typesasfdwing arrangements. The carry
amounts of our variable rate borrowings approxinfatevalue. The carrying amounts of our cash aashcequivalents, accounts and n
receivable equal or approximate their fair valuke Tarrying and fair values of marketable secwritiere determined by reference to qu
market prices. The taxable bonds are not tradatiffenfair value was based on projected redemptdure in early 2008.

Disclosures about the fair value of financial ingtents are based on relevant information availables at December 31, 2007. Altho

management is not aware of any factors that woale la material effect on the fair value amountsntegl herein, such amounts have not
revalued since that date and current estimateaiofdlue may significantly differ from the amoupiesented herein.
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17. INCOME TAXES

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include djmers of our taxable REIT subsidiary, which is mttitled to the dividends pe
deduction and is subject to corporate, state aodl lmcome taxes. As a REIT, we may also be sultgecertain federal excise taxes if
engage in certain types of transactions.

Other than the liability for an uncertain tax pmsitand related accrued interest under FIN 48 dised below, no provision has been n
pursuant to SFAS No. 109 for federal and staterimetaxes during the years ended December 31, 20086, and 2005 because the Comj
qualified as a REIT, distributed the necessary arhofitaxable income and, therefore, incurred ramime tax expense during the periods.
taxable REIT subsidiary has operated at a cum@dtixable loss through December 31, 2007 of apprabaly $12.6 million and has paid
income taxes since its formation. In addition te $%.9 million deferred tax asset for these cunudatax loss carryforwards, the taxable R
subsidiary also had net deferred tax liabilitiesapproximately $0.8 million comprised primarily @ix versus book basis differences in ce
investments and depreciable assets held by thélaREIT subsidiary. Because the future tax berséfthe cumulative losses is not asst
the approximate $4.1 million net deferred tax apseition of the taxable REIT subsidiary has bedly freserved as management does
believe that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will be realized. Accordingly, tax benefit has been recognized ir
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.t&héenefit of the cumulative losses could be geixed for financial reporting purpot
in future periods to the extent the taxable REIBssdiary generates sufficient taxable income. & @ompany decided to sell certain prope
acquired in prior years, the Company would incuogporate-level tax under Section 1374 of the mkRevenue Code on the built-gair
relating to such properties unless such propewE® sold in a tafree exchange under Section 1031 of the InternabRee Code or anott
tax-free or taxdeferred transaction. This situation only applesssets originally acquired through the mergeh Wi€C. Nichols Company
July 1998 or from subsequent likaxd exchanges of those assets. The tax underoBet3i74 will not apply to any of such assets stithed b
the Company after July 2008.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which clesifthe accounting for uncertainty in income tax@&gnized in an enterprise’
financial statements in accordance with SFAS N@.1BIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for réeognition, measureme
presentation and disclosure in our financial statets for uncertain tax positions taken or expettetde taken in an income tax return.
adopted FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007.

In connection with the adoption of FIN 48, on Jayug 2007, we recorded a $1.4 million liabilityhieh included $0.2 million of accru
interest, for an uncertain tax position, with tleéated expense reflected as a reduction to thenbiggj balance of distributions in excess ol
earnings. This liability was included in accounéyable, accrued expenses and other liabilitiesingithe third quarter of 2007, the liability
the uncertain tax position was released, and incognegnized, upon the expiration of the applicatibgtute of limitations. In addition, t
liability of $0.05 million of interest that was aced in 2007 relating to this liability was alsdeesed.

Unrecognized Tax Benefi—- Opening Balanc $ 1,42¢
Additions based on tax positions related to theesuryeal —
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 49
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei —
Settlement: —
Lapse of statute of limitations (1,479
Unrecognized Tax Benefits — Ending Balance $ —

We are subject to federal, state and local incarekaminations by tax authorities for 2004 throaga7.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Our principal business is the acquisition, develeptrand operation of rental real estate propertds.operate in four segments: off
industrial, retail and residential properties. Eaelgment has different customers and economic diegistics as to rental rates and terms,
per square foot of buildings, the purposes for Whiastomers use the space, the degree of maintersamt customer support required
customer dependency on different economic drivearsyng others. There are no material inter-segnansgactions.

The accounting policies of the segments are theesasrthose described in Note 1 included hereirthEyrall operations are within 1
United States and, at December 31, 2007, no texidhe Wholly Owned Properties comprised more th&n% of our consolidated revenues.

The following table summarizes the rental incomet operating income and assets for each reporsdgenent for the years ent
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Rental and other revenuesi)
Office segmen $ 360,16 $ 336,000 $ 322,54(
Industrial segmer 30,721 29,46 25,25(
Retail segmer 44,907 42,57¢ 39,03¢
Residential segment 1,26¢ 1,227 1,10¢
Total rental and other revenues $ 437,05¢ $ 409,27, $ 387,92¢
Net operating income:(1)
Office segmen $ 226,71 $ 208,29t $ 203,08:
Industrial segmer 23,42¢ 22,40¢ 19,22¢
Retail segmer 29,00¢ 27,75¢ 26,574
Residential segment 64¢ 33¢ 512
Total net operating income 279,79¢ 258,80: 249,39°
Reconciliation to income before disposition of proerty, insurance gain,
minority interest and equity in earnings of unconstidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortizatic (122,177 (112,88) (107,08)
Impairment of assets held for L (789) — (3,172)
General and administrative expel (41,570 (37,309 (33,069
Interest expens (100,33) (100,76¢) (106,63Y
Interest and other incon 6,41: 6,99: 7,04z
Settlement of tenant bankruptcy cla — 1,581 —
Loss on debt extinguishments — (494) (459
Income before disposition of property, insurancia gainority interest and
equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia $ 21,34C $ 15,920 § 6,02¢
December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Total Assets:(2)
Office segmen $ 2,287,86' $ 2,218,70! $ 2,245,59!
Industrial segmer 233,14! 230,10: 226,19¢
Retail segmer 242,71¢ 247,88 259,54
Residential segmel 27,01 21,93 21,12
Corporate and other 136,20¢ 126,22! 156,51¢
Total Assets $ 2,926,95 $ 2,844,85 $ 2,908,97

(1) Excludes discontinued operatiol
(2) Real estate and other assets held for sale aredeatlin this table according to the segment t
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
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19. OTHER EVENTS

Settlement of Tenant Bankruptcy Claims

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we received shafdRemback Networks, Inc., a public company, inlsgient of a bankruptcy claim by
related to leases with this former tenant that vwemminated in 2003. The shares were sold for ash proceeds of $1.6 million and recorde
Other Income.

Property Damage Insurance Claim

In the fourth quarter of 2005, one of our officeperties located in southeastern Florida sustaia@sage in a hurricane. The damage
fully insured except for a $341,000 deductible, atthivas expensed in the fourth quarter of 2005. Wendt incur any significant loss of rer
income as a result of the damages. In 2006, weavert&2.4 million from the insurance company asaaes on the final settlement; th
amounts were primarily for clean up costs and @ergpairs. During the first quarter of 2007, theurance company paid us an additional
million upon finalization of the claim. We recorded $4.1 million gain under FASB Interpretation N3, “Accounting for Involuntar
Conversion of Non-Monetary Assets to Monetary Asset the first quarter of 2007. We are in the processompleting final permane
repairs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
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20. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

The following tables set forth quarterly financiaformation for our fiscal years ended DecemberZ)7 and 2006 and have b
adjusted to reflect the reporting requirementsis¢a@htinued operations under SFAS No. 144:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total

Rental and other revenuas $ 106,69: $ 106,40 $ 108,85: $ 115,11 $ 437,05¢
Income from continuing operatioi(1) (2) 33,63: 8,61: 5,271 7,87¢ 55,39¢
Income from discontinued operatiopng 18,92¢ 67€ 8,16¢ 7,58( 35,35(
Net income 52,55¢ 9,28¢ 13,44( 15,45¢ 90,74t

Dividends on preferred stot (4,117 (3,84¢) (2,680 (2,83¢) (13,477

Excess of preferred stock redemption cost

over carrying valus — (1,449 (842) — (2,28%)

Net income available for common stockhold $ 48,44 $ 4,000 $ 9,91¢ $ 12,62( $ 74,98
Net income per share-basic:

Income from continuing operatiol $ 05z $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢ $ 0.7C

Discontinued operations 0.34 0.01 0.1F 0.1= 0.6=

Net income $ 08¢ $ 007 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2z $ 1.3¢
Net income per share-diluted:

Income from continuing operatiol $ 05z $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢ $ 0.6¢

Discontinued operations 0.3z 0.01 0.1 0.1= 0.62

Net income $ 0.8t $ 0.07 $ 017 $ 02z $ 1.31

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total

Rental and other revenuas $ 99,28¢ $ 101,01« $ 102,42° $ 106,54« $ 409,27:
Income from continuing operatiol(1) 10,48! 4,76¢ 7,38¢ 14,04: 36,67¢
Income from discontinued operatioags 3,66¢ 1,50¢ 1,52( 10,37 17,06¢
Net income 14,14¢ 6,27: 8,90¢ 24,41¢ 53,744

Dividends on preferred stot (4,729 (4,119 (4,119 (4,119 (17,069

Excess of preferred stock redemption cost

over carrying valus (1,809 — — — (1,809

Net income available for common stockhold $ 761¢ $ 2,16C $ 479% $ 20,30 $ 34,87¢
Net income per share-basic:

Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.07 $ 0.01 $ 0.0e $ 0.1t $ 0.3:

Discontinued operations 0.07 0.07 0.0z 0.1¢€ 0.31

Net income $ 0.14 $ 004 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.3¢ $ 0.64
Net income per share-diluted:

Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.07 $ 0.01 $ 0.0¢ $ 017 $ 0.3

Discontinued operations 0.07 0.0= 0.0z 0.1€ 0.3C

Net income $ 014 $ 0.04 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.3t $ 0.62
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20.QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited) - Continued

(1) The amounts presented for the first three quastehot equal to the same amounts previously regant Form 10Q for each period as
result of discontinued operations. Below is a refl@tion to the amounts previously reported infAdt(-Q:

For the Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30,
2007 2007 2007

Total rental and other revenues previously reported $ 106,69. $ 106,400 $ 110,16t
Discontinued operations — — (1,31

Revised total rental and other revenues $ 106,69. $ 106,40: $ 108,85«
Income from continuing operations previously repd $ 33,63: $ 8,61 $ 5,581
Discontinued operations — — (31€)

Revised income from continuing operations $ 33,63! $ 8,61 $ 5,271
Income from discontinued operations previously regit $ 18,92t $ 67¢€ $ 7,85:
Additional discontinued operations from properesd subsequent

to the respective reporting peri — — 31€

Revised income from discontinued operations $ 18,92 $ 67¢ $ 8,16¢

For the Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2006 2006 2006 2006

Total rental and other revenues previously reported $ 99,28t $ 101,01 $ 103,39 $ 108,50¢
Discontinued operations — — (96€) (1,962

Revised total rental and other revenues $ 90,28¢ $ 101,01 $ 102,427 % 106,54«
Income from continuing operations previously repd $ 10,48: $ 476 $ 7,61¢ $ 14,63(
Discontinued operations — — (229) (58¢€)

Revised income from continuing operations $ 10,48 $ 476¢ $ 7,38¢ $ 14,04:
Income from discontinued operations previously regit $ 3,66 $ 150¢ $ 1,291 $ 9,78¢
Additional discontinued operations from propersesd

subsequent to the respective reporting pe — — 22¢ 58€

Revised income from discontinued operations $ 3,665 $ 1,50¢ $ 152 $ 10,37

(2) Includes $1.7 million of adjustments to depreciat@xpense related to certain of our unconsolidatéiiates in the fourth quarter of 20!
Such adjustments were not material to any priortgug or annual perioc
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

Schedule Il
(in thousands)

As of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

A summary of activity for Valuation and Qualifyirgccounts and Reserves

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Straight Line Ren
Allowance for Doubtful Account- Accounts Receivabl

Allowance for Doubtful Account- Notes Receivabl
Disposition Reserve

Totals

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Straight Line Ren
Allowance for Doubtful Account- Accounts Receivabl
Allowance for Doubtful Account- Notes Receivabl
Disposition Reserve

Totals

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Straight Line Ren
Allowance for Doubtful Account- Accounts Receivabl
Allowance for Doubtful Account- Notes Receivabl
Disposition Reserve

Totals

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Straight Line Ren
Allowance for Doubtful Account- Accounts Receivabl
Allowance for Doubtful Account- Notes Receivabl
Disposition Reserve

Totals

Balance at Balance at
December 31, December 31,
2006 Additions Deduction 2007
301 747 (60€) 44C
1,25¢ 422 (740) 93t
78€ — (71€) 68
75 — (75) —
2,41°F 1,16¢ (2,147 1,44:
Balance at Balance at
December 31, December 31,
2005 Additions Deduction 2006
60¢ 91t (1,229 301
1,61¢ 27z (637) 1,25¢
87¢ 39 (129) 78€
10C — (25) 75
3,20 1,22¢ (2,019 2,41°F
Balance at Balance at
December 31, December 31,
2004 Additions Deduction 2005
1,42z 1,24 (2,059 60¢
1,171 712 (26E) 1,61¢
122 832 (78) 87¢€
18C 34¢ (429) 10C
2,89¢ 3,13: (2,825 3,20:
Balance at Balance at
December 31, December 31,
2003 Additions Deduction 2004
— 1,42: — 1,42:
1,23t 742 (80€) 1,171
— 122 — 122
75C 642 (1,212 18C
1,98¢ 2,92¢ (2,016 2,89t
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Note to Schedule I
(in thousands)
As of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

A summary of activity for real estate and accumadadepreciation is as follows:

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Real estate
Balance at beginning of ye 3,072,33! 3,201,721 3,529,201
Additions:
Acquisitions, development and improveme 247,15: 137,72 152,81(
Previously unconsolidated affilia — 46,24 —
Cost of real estate sold and retired (138,820 (313,359 (480,299)
Balance at close of year (a) 3,180,66. 3,072,33! 3,201,72
Accumulated depreciatiol
Balance at beginning of ye 595,13¢ 579,62! 583,44
Depreciation expens 107,79: 101,46: 108,21!
Previously unconsolidated affilia — 4,61( —
Real estate sold and retired (53,169 (90,567 (112,039
Balance at close of year (b) 649,76: 595,13¢ 579,62!
(a) Reconciliation of total cost to balance sheet capéit December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2(
2007 2006 2005
Total per Schedule Ill 3,180,66. 3,072,33! 3,201,721
Construction in progress exclusive of land include8chedule i 101,66: 101,89¢ 28,72%
Property held for sal (10,46¢) (51,150 (219,53)
Reclassification adjustment for discontinued openrast — 37 1,041
Total real estate assets at cost 3,271,85! 3,123,12. 3,011,95
(b) Reconciliation of total accumulated depreciatiobatance sheet caption at December 31, 2007, 2@&@05:
2007 2006 2005
Total per Schedule Il 649,76! 595,13¢ 579,62!
Property held for sale — (6,829) (42,296
Total accumulated depreciation 649,76" 588,30° 537,32¢
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Description

City

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
SCHEDULE Il - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIA TION
(in thousands)
December 31, 2007

Cost Capitalized

Initial Costs Subsequent to Acquisition Gross Value at Close of Period

Final Final

Accum

2007 Beginning
Encumbrance Land

Beginning
Building

Land

Building &
Improvements

Final
Land

Bldg
Final

Total
Assets

Depr-
Final

Date of
Construction

Life on
Which
Depr is
Calculated
On

Atlanta,
GA
1740-90
Century
Circle
1700
Century
Circle
1800
Century
Boulevard
1825
Century
Center
1875
Century
Boulevard
1900
Century
Boulevard
2200
Century
Parkway
2400
Century
Center
2500
Century
Center
2500/2635
Parking
Garage
2600
Century
Parkway
2635
Century
Parkway
2800
Century
Parkway
50 Glenlak
6348
Northeas
Expresswa
6438
Northeas
Expresswa
Bluegrass
Lakes |
Bluegrass
Place |
Bluegrass
Place Il
Bluegrass
Valley
Bluegrass
Valley
Land
Century
Plaza |
Century
Plaza Il
Chastain
Place |
Chastain
Place Il
Chastain
Place IlI

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta
Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

Atlanta

1,117

1,44:

864

@) 2,500

27¢

18C
81€

491

19,71
1,29C
1,38(

451

59¢

3,16¢

2,482

29,08:

8,924

4,74¢

14,43:

10,67¢

21,64

20,44¢
20,00¢

1,65¢

2,21¢

2,061

2,58t

8,561

7,73%

(1,113)

30z

40¢

32¢

©

33¢€

(14,869

341
194

1772

(3,169)

38C

9,82%

15,181

1,69¢

91€

3,07¢

15,78(

14,23:

6,242

3,612

2,48¢

78¢
1,33¢

2,447
1,48¢
3,11¢
1,51

1,107

2

1,44¢

1,167

40€

32¢

2,50C

278

4,84¢
1,29C
1,38(
792
792

712

(©)]

2,86:

38,90«

15,181

10,62:

5,66(

17,50¢

15,78(

14,23:

6,242

14,29:

24,13

21,23«
21,34(

1,84¢

2,60
3,081
2,13¢
2,602

3,707

11,01«
9,21t
3,11:
1,512

1,107

(©)]

2,86¢

40,34¢

16,35¢

10,62:

5,66(

17,50¢

16,18t

14,55¢

6,242

14,29:

24,13

21,23«
23,84(

2,11¢

2,78¢
4,23¢
2,62¢
3,014

5,61¢

4,84¢
12,30¢
10,59:
3,90¢
2,304

1,82(

12,24(

2,64¢

3,06(

1,56%

5,03¢

4,88¢

1,147

32t

3,571

6,791

5,85¢
5,30¢

68E
90C
59€
67€

1,23¢

2,27¢

2,04

1972

1983

1975

2002

1976

1971

1971

1998

2005

2005

1973

1980

1983
1997

1978

1981

1999

1995

1996

2000

N/A

1981

1984

1997

1998

1999

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.



Corporate
Lakes Atlanta 1,26 7,24: 0 54¢ 1,26 7,792 9,057 2,15: 1988 5-40 yrs.

Gwinnett
Distribution
Center Atlanta 1,11¢ 5,96( 0 1,452 1,11¢ 7,41% 8,531 1,97¢ 1991 5-40 yrs.

Highwoods
Center | at
Tradeport Atlanta 1 307 — 13¢ 3,15¢ 44€ 3,15¢ 3,60( 1,52¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.

Highwoods
Center Ill a
Tradepor Atlanta 1) 40¢ — 13C 2,16 53¢ 2,16: 2,70z 334 2001 5-40 yrs.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE Il - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIA TION (Continued)

(in thousands)

Cost Capitalized

Life on
Initial Costs Subsequent to Acquisition  Gross Value at Close of Perio Which
Final Final Accum Depr is
2007 Beginning  Beginning Building & Final Bldg Total Depr- Date of Calculated
Description City Encumbrance Land Building Land Improvements Land Final Assets Final Construction Oon
National
Archives and
Records
Administratior ~ Atlanta 1,48¢ — 0 17,76: 148¢ 17,76:  19,24¢ 1,57¢ 2004 5-40 yrs.
Newpoint
Place | Atlanta 81¢ (0) 35¢€ 3,261 1,17¢ 3,261 4,43¢ 85¢ 1998 5-40 yrs.
Newpoint
Place Il Atlanta 1,49¢ — 394 3,72( 1,89: 3,72( 5,612 1,00¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.
Newpoint
Place IlI Atlanta 66¢ — 252 2,15( 921 2,15( 3,071 552 1998 5-40 yrs.
Newpoint
Place IV Atlanta 98¢ — 40€ 4,54; 1,39t 4,54; 5,937 1,03¢ 2001 5-40 yrs.
Newpoint
Place V Atlanta 2,15( 81¢€ 8,84¢ 2,96¢ 8,84¢ 11,81¢( 162 2007 5-40 yrs.
Norcross | &
Il Atlanta 323 2,00( (0) 64E 323 2,64t 2,96¢ 60E 1970 5-40 yrs.
Nortel Atlanta 3,342 32,11 0 16 3,34. 32,127  35,46¢ 7,861 1998 5-40 yrs.
Oakbrook
Summit Atlanta 943 6,63¢€ (943) (6,636) — 0 0 — 1981 5-40 yrs.
South Park
Residential
Land Atlanta 50 — 7 — 57 — 57 — N/A N/A
South Park
Site Land Atlanta 1,204 — 754 — 1,95¢ — 1,95¢ — N/A N/A
Southside
Distribution
Center Atlanta 804 4,557 (0) 1,35( 804 5,907 6,707 1,52¢ 1988 5-40 yrs.
Tradeport | Atlanta 557 — 261 2,581 81¢ 2,581 3,40¢ 662 1999 5-40 yrs.
Tradeport Il Atlanta 557 — 261 2,61¢ 81¢ 2,61¢ 3,43¢ 1,09¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.
Tradeport Ill Atlanta 678 — 37C 2,35¢ 1,04: 2,35¢ 3,401 377 1999 5-40 yrs.
Tradeport IV Atlanta 667 — 36E 2,91¢ 1,03: 2,91¢ 3,94¢ 48€ 2001 5-40 yrs.
Tradeport
Land Atlanta 5,24:% — (639) — 4,60: — 4,60: — N/A N/A
Tradeport Vv Atlanta 462 — 18C 2,407 642 2,407 3,04¢ 445 2002 5-40 yrs.
Two Point
Royal Atlanta 1) 1,79% 14,96+ 0 1,09¢ 1,79¢ 16,06 17,85t 3,76t 1997 5-40 yrs.
DHS.ICE Atlanta 3,10¢ 1,74¢ 15,66¢ 4,84¢  15,66¢ 20,51« 164 2007 5-40 yrs.
HIW River
Point Atlanta 7,25C 57 — 7,301 — 7,307 — N/A N/A
Baltimore,
MD
Sportsman
Club Land Baltimore 24,93 — (14,857 — 10,07 — 10,07 — N/A N/A
Charlotte, NC
University
Center Charlotte 1,24t — (1,24%) — — — — — 2001 5-40 yrs.
University
Center-Land Charlotte 7,12z — (7,127) — 0 — 0 — N/A N/A
Columbia, SC
Fontaine | Columbia 1,22¢ 6,96( (1,22¢) (6,960 — 0 0 — 1985 5-40 yrs.
Fontaine I Columbia 94¢ 5,37¢ (94¢) (5,376 — — — — 1987 5-40 yrs.
Fontaine 11| Columbia 85¢ 4,86¢ (859) (4,869 — 0 0 — 1988 5-40 yrs.
Fontaine V Columbia 39¢ 2,257 (39¢) (2,257) — — — — 1990 5-40 yrs.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
SCHEDULE Il - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIA TION (Continued)

(in thousands)

Cost Capitalized

Life on
Initial Costs Subsequent to Acquisition Gross Value at Close of Perioc Which
Final Final Accum Depr is
2007 Beginning  Beginning Building & Final Bldg Total Depr- Date of Calculated
Description City Encumbrance Land Building Land Improvements Land Final Assets Final Construction Oon
Greenville,
SC
385
Buildingl  Greenville 1,41 — (1,413 0 — 0 0 — 1998 5-40 yrs.
385 Land Greenville 1,80( — (1,800 — — — — — N/A N/A
770 Pelhan
Road Greenville 70% 2,817 (705) (2,812 — — — — 1989 5-40 yrs.
Brookfield
Plaza Greenville ) 1,50( 8,51« (0) 523 1,50( 9,03¢ 10,53¢ 2,50z 1987 5-40 yrs.
Brookfield-
Jacobs-
Sirrine Greenville 3,05( 17,28( (23) 4,29¢ 3,027 21,57¢ 24,60¢ 5,56¢ 1990 5-40 yrs.
MetLife @
Brookfield  Greenville 1,03¢ — 352 10,43( 1,391 10,43( 11,82: 2,73 2001 5-40 yrs.
Patewood
Business
Center Greenville 1,322 7,50¢ (1,327 (7,50¢) — 0 0 — 1983 5-40 yrs.
Patewood  Greenville 94z 5,117 (0) 1,297 94z 6,41¢ 7,35t 1,87( 1985 5-40 yrs.
Patewood | Greenville 94z 5,17¢ (0) 1,31C 94z 6,48¢ 7,427 1,75¢ 1987 5-40 yrs.
Patewood
1 Greenville 841 4,77¢ 0 2,001 842 6,771 7,61¢ 1,86¢ 1989 5-40 yrs.
Patewood
\Y Greenville 1,21¢ 6,91¢ (0) 2,05( 1,21¢ 8,96¢ 10,18¢ 2,44¢ 1989 5-40 yrs.
Patewood \ Greenville ) 1,69( 9,58¢ 0 2,272 1,69( 11,86: 13,55 3,021 1990 5-40 yrs.
Patewood
VI Greenville 2,36( — 321 7,871 2,681 7,871 10,55¢ 1,78¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.
Kansas
City, MO
Country
Club Plaze Kansas City 3) 14,28t 146,87¢ (19¢) 110,86¢ 14,08¢  257,74¢ 271,83t 59,20(  192(-2002 5-40 yrs.
Colonial
Shops Kansas City 141 657 a4y (657) — — — — 1907 5-40 yrs.
Corinth
Executive
Building Kansas City 52€ 2,341 (0) 80C 52€ 3,141 3,661 82¢ 1973 5-40 yrs.
Corinth
Office
Building Kansas City 541 2,19¢ (0) 52¢ 541 2,72¢ 3,26¢ 671 1960 5-40 yrs.
Corinth
Shops
South Kansas City 1,04: 4,447 (0) 592 1,04: 5,03¢ 6,082 1,171 1953 5-40 yrs.
Corinth
Square
North
Shops Kansas City 2,75¢ 11,49( (0) 2,18¢ 2,75¢ 13,67¢ 16,43« 3,10z 1962 5-40 yrs.
Fairway
North Kansas City 771 3,28 0 56€ 771 3,84¢ 4,62( 1,05z 1985 5-40 yrs.
Fairway
Shops Kansas City 68¢ 3,21t 0 554 68¢ 3,76¢ 4,45¢ 88C 1940 5-40 yrs.
Fairway
West Kansas City 871 3,521 (0) 61C 871 4,137 5,007 1,02¢ 1983 5-40 yrs.
Land —
Hotel Land
—Valencia Kansas City 97¢ — 111 — 1,08¢ — 1,08¢ — N/A N/A
Land —
Lionsgate Kansas City 3,50¢€ — (3,50¢6) — — — — — N/A N/A
Neptune
Apartments Kansas City 3,68¢€ 1,09¢ 6,282 (0) 512 1,09¢ 6,79¢ 7,892 1,62¢ 1988 5-40 yrs.
Nichols
Building Kansas City 50z 2,03( (0) 50€ 501 2,53¢ 3,037 68C 1978 5-40 yrs.
One Ward
Parkway Kansas City 682 3,931 (0) 934 681 4,87(C 5,552 1,237 1980 5-40 yrs.
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Cost Capitalized

Life on
Initial Costs Subsequent to Acquisition  Gross Value at Close of Perio Which
Final Final Accum Depr is
2007 Beginning  Beginning Building & Final Bldg Total Depr- Date of Calculated
Description City Encumbrance Land Building Land Improvements Land Final Assets Final Construction Oon
Park Plaz: Kansas Cit 3) 1,38¢ 6,41( 0 1,58¢ 1,38¢ 7,99¢ 9,387 2,162 1983 5-40 yrs.
Parkway
Building Kansas Cit 404 2,04¢ (0) 41F 404 2,45¢ 2,86 53¢  190€-1910 5-40 yrs.
Prairie Village
Rest & Bank Kansas Cit' — — — 1,372 — 1,37z 1,372 36C 1948 5-40 yrs.
Prairie Village
Shops Kansas Cit 3,36¢ 14,68¢ 0 4,99¢ 3,361 19,68( 23,047 4,86¢ 1948 5-40 yrs.
Rental House Kansas Cit' — 764 112 (281) 11z 482 59€ 124 1960 5-40 yrs.
Residential —
Land Kansas Cit 484 — (484) — — — — — N/A N/A
Somerse Kansas Cit 31 12t 0 (0) 31 12E 15€ 3C 1998 5-40 yrs.
Two Brush
Creek Kansas Cit 984 4,402 0 711 984 5,11« 6,097 1,091 1983 5-40 yrs.
Valencia
Place Office Kansas Cit' 3) 1,57¢ — 97C 34,797 2,54¢ 34,797 37,34 9,35¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.
Memphis, TN
3400 Players
Club Parkway Memphis (2) 1,00¢ — 207 5,00« 1,212 5,00¢ 6,21¢ 1,24¢ 1997 5-40 yrs.
6000 Poplar
Ave Memphis 2,34( 11,38t — 2,56t 2,34( 13,95( 16,29( 3,03( 1985 5-40 yrs.
6060 Poplar
Ave Memphis 1,98( 8,671 — 1,742 1,98( 10,41¢ 12,39¢ 1,951 1987 5-40 yrs.
Atrium | & I Memphis 1,57C 6,252 0 1,81¢ 1,57C 8,06¢ 9,63¢ 2,34¢ 1984 5-40 yrs.
Centrum Memphis 1,01: 5,58( 0 1,79: 1,01: 7,372 8,38t 1,90¢ 1979 5-40 yrs.
International
Place Il Memphis 4) 4,88¢ 27,78 0 3,51¢ 4,88¢ 31,29¢ 36,18: 8,95: 1988 5-40 yrs.
Shadow Cree
| Memphis 924 — 46€ 6,84¢ 1,39( 6,84¢ 8,23¢ 1,24( 2000 5-40 yrs.
Shadow Cree
Il Memphis 734 — 467 7,49¢ 1,201 7,49¢ 8,691 1,21¢ 2001 5-40 yrs.
Southwind
Office Center
A Memphis 1,00¢ 5,69¢ (0) 741 1,00 6,43t 7,43¢ 1,992 1991 5-40 yrs.
Southwind
Office Center
B Memphis 1,36¢ 7,754 0 87:% 1,36¢ 8,627 9,99: 2,531 1990 5-40 yrs.
Southwind
Office Center
C Memphis (2) 1,07(C — 221 5,79( 1,291 5,79(C 7,081 2,131 1998 5-40 yrs.
Southwind
Office Center
D Memphis 744 — 19z 5,05¢ 937 5,05¢ 5,99: 1,221 1999 5-40 yrs.
The
Colonnade Memphis 1,30(¢ 6,481 267 497 1,567 6,974 8,54( 2,06: 1998 5-40 yrs.
ThyssenKrup  Memphis 1,04( 25 8,312 1,06¢ 8,31: 9,371 36¢€ 2007 5-40 yrs.
Nashville, TN
3322 West
End Nashville 2) 3,02t 27,490 (0) 2,85: 3,02t 30,34: 33,36 6,411 1986 5-40 yrs.
3401 West
End Nashville 5,86¢ 22,917 2 4,98¢ 5,86 27,90: 33,76¢ 8,17¢ 1982 5-40 yrs.
5310
Maryland
Way Nashville 1,86: 7,201 0 381 1,86: 7,58% 9,44¢ 2,43: 1994 5-40 yrs.
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Description City Encumbrance Land Building Land Improvements Land Final Assets Final Construction Oon
BNA
Corporate
Center Nashville — 18,50¢ — 7,55¢ — 26,06( 26,06( 7,73¢ 1985 5-40 yrs.
Century
City Plaza | Nashville 902 6,91¢ 0 (2,425 90z 4,494 5,397 1,35€ 1987 5-40 yrs.
Cool
Springs | Nashville 1,582 — 15 12,21t 159¢ 12,21t 13,81 2,91¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.
Cool
Springs Il Nashville 1,82¢ — 34€ 20,13: 2,17C  20,13: 22,30: 4,87: 1999 5-40 yrs.
Cool
Springs Il Nashville 1,631 804 18,15¢ 2,43¢ 18,15¢ 20,58¢ 89¢ 2006 5-40 yrs.
Cool
Springs
Land Nashville 7,63¢ — (7,63%) — (0) — (0) — N/A N/A
Eastpark I,
I, & 11 Nashville 2,84( 10,99: 1 2,03( 2,841 13,02 15,86¢ 4,14° 1978 5-40 yrs.
Harpeth on
the Green | Nashville 1) 1,41¢ 5,671 0 1,404 1,41¢ 7,081 8,501 2,177 1984 5-40 yrs.
Harpeth on
the Green
1 Nashville (1) 1,66( 6,64¢ (0) 1,16¢ 1,66( 7,81 9,47¢ 2,39: 1987 5-40 yrs.
Harpeth on
the Green
\Y Nashville 1) 1,71: 6,847 0 1,20z 1,71 8,04¢ 9,751 2,33( 1989 5-40 yrs.
Harpeth on
The Green
\% Nashville (1) 662 — 197 4,26( 85¢ 4,26( 5,11¢ 1,05¢ 1998 5-40 yrs.
Hickory
Trace Nashville 4) 1,164 — 164 4,85¢ 1,32¢ 4,85¢ 6,184 1,013 N/A N/A
Highwoods
Plaza | Nashville (1) 1,552 — 307 7,83¢ 1,85¢ 7,83¢ 9,69¢ 1,962 1996 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods
Plaza Il Nashville 1) 1,44¢ — 307 6,71¢€ 1,75t 6,71¢€ 8,47( 2,18¢ 1997 5-40 yrs.
Lakeview
Ridge | Nashville 2,06¢ 7,261 (2,069) (7,267) — — — — 1986 5-40 yrs.
Lakeview
Ridge Il Nashville 1) 605 — 187 4,23¢ 79z 4,23¢ 5,027 1,04C 1998 5-40 yrs.
Lakeview
Ridge I Nashville (1) 1,072 — 40C 10,537 1,47: 10,537 12,01( 3,06( 1999 5-40 yrs.
Seven
Springs -
Land Il Nashville 3,71t — (1,025 — 2,69( — 2,69( — N/A N/A
Seven
Springs -
Land | Nashville 3,12z — 1,39¢ — 4,521 — 4,521 — N/A N/A
Seven
Springs | Nashville 2,07¢ — 597 13,88¢ 2,66¢  13,88¢ 16,55¢ 3,10¢ 2002 5-40 yrs.
SouthPoint  Nashville 1,65% — 31C 6,43¢ 1,96¢ 6,43¢ 8,407 1,567 1998 5-40 yrs.
Southwind
Land Nashville 3,66: — (592) — 3,07(C — 3,07C — N/A N/A
Sparrow
Building Nashville 1,262 5,047 (0) 95C 1,262 5,997 7,25¢ 1,85¢€ 1982 5-40 yrs.
The
Ramparts &
Brentwood Nashville 2,394 12,80¢ — 1,91¢ 2,39¢  14,72¢ 17,11¢ 2,62¢ 1986 5-40 yrs.
Westwood
South Nashville (1) 2,10¢€ — 382 9,60: 2,48¢ 9,60: 12,09: 2,89¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.
Winners
Circle Nashville (1) 1,49 7,25¢ 0 89t 1,491 8,15 9,65( 2,10¢ 1987 5-40 yrs.
Cool
Springs 1 &
2 Deck Nashville — — 3,932 — 3,932 3,932 15 2007 5-40 yrs.
Cool
Springs 3
&4 Deck Nashville — — 4,39¢ — 4,39¢ 4,39¢ 83 2007 5-40 yrs.
Cool
Springs V. Nashville 3,68¢ (20 45,16( 3,66¢  45,16( 48,82¢ — 2007 5-40 yrs.
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Orlando,
FL
Capital
Plaza Il Orlando 2,99¢ — 18 — 3,01z — 3,01z — N/A N/A
In Charge
Institute Orlando 501 — 95 2,68: 59€ 2,68 3,27¢ 1,00¢ 2000 5-40 yrs.
MetroWest
1 Land Orlando 1,10C 51 — 1,151 — 1,151 — N/A N/A
Metrowest
Center Orlando 1,35¢ 7,681 26¢ 1,921 1,622 9,60¢ 11,23: 2,871 1988 5-40 yrs.
MetroWest
Land Orlando 2,03¢ — (14¢) — 1,88¢ — 1,88¢ — N/A N/A
Windsor at
Metro
Center Orlando — — 2,06( 9,07: 2,06(C 9,07: 11,13: 1,29( 2002 5-40 yrs.
Berkshire a
Metro
Center Orlando 1,26t 72t 11,33( 1,99(C 11,33( 13,32( 46 2007 5-40 yrs.
Eola Park
Land Orlando 2,027 (0) — 2,027 — 2,02 — 2007 N/A
Piedmont
Triad, NC
101 Piedmont
Stratford Triad 1,20¢ 6,91¢€ 1) 1,39¢ 1,20% 8,31: 9,51¢ 2,40t 1986 5-40 yrs.
150 Piedmont
Stratford Triad 2) 2,78¢ 11,51: 0 85¢ 2,78¢ 12,37( 15,15¢ 4,01t 1991 5-40 yrs.
160
Stratford —  Piedmont
Land Triad 96€ — 1 12C 967 12C 1,08 5 N/A N/A
6348 Burnt  Piedmont
Poplar Triad 724 2,90( (0) 52¢ 724 3,42¢ 4,14¢ 1,10¢ 1990 5-40 yrs.
6350 Burnt  Piedmont
Poplar Triad 34C 1,37¢ 0 34 341 1,40¢ 1,74¢ 457 1992 5-40 yrs.
7341 West
Friendly Piedmont
Avenue Triad 112 841 0 26€ 113 1,107 1,22( 35¢ 1988 5-40 yrs.
7343 West
Friendly Piedmont
Avenue Triad 72 55¢ 0 63 72 61¢ 691 194 1988 5-40 yrs.
7345 West
Friendly Piedmont
Avenue Triad 66 492 0 93 66 58¢ 652 18¢ 1988 5-40 yrs.
7347 West
Friendly Piedmont
Avenue Triad 97 71¢ (0) 151 97 87( 967 24¢ 1988 5-40 yrs.
7349 West
Friendly Piedmont
Avenue Triad 53 39: (0) 45 53 43¢ 491 14¢ 1988 5-40 yrs.
7351 West
Friendly Piedmont
Avenue Triad 10€ 78¢ 0 15C 10€ 93¢ 1,04¢ 33¢ 1988 5-40 yrs.
7353 West
Friendly Piedmont
Avenue Triad 122 912 (0) 3C 123 947 1,06t 291 1988 5-40 yrs.
7355 West
Friendly Piedmont
Avenue Triad 72 53¢ (0) 32 72 57C 641 174 1988 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East- Piedmont
Building 1 Triad 37¢ 1,51¢ 0 35€ 37¢ 1,872 2,251 58€ 1990 5-40 yrs.
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Airpark
East- Piedmont
Building 2 Triad 465 1,84¢ (0) 242 462 2,091 2,55¢ 76C 1986 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East- Piedmont
Building 3 Triad 322 1,29:¢ (0) 107 32z 1,40( 1,722 457 1986 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East- Piedmont
Building A Triad 50¢ 2,921 0 897 51C 3,81¢ 4,32¢ 1,331 1986 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East- Piedmont
Building B Triad 73¢ 3,231 (0) 787 73¢ 4,02t 4,762 1,32( 1988 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East- Piedmont
Building C Triad 4) 2,39: 9,57¢ (0) 2,66¢ 2,392 12,24: 14,63t 4,47C 1990 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East- Piedmont
Building D Triad (4) 85(C — 69¢ 4,38¢ 1,54¢ 4,38¢ 5,93t 1,451 1997 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
EastCopier Piedmont
Consultant: Triad 224 1,06¢ 0) 38¢ 224 1,451 1,674 45¢ 1990 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East-
Hewlett Piedmont
Packarc Triad 46E — 38C 962 84¢& 962 1,80¢ 314 1996 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East- Piedmont
Highland Triad 14€ 1,081 0) 6 14E 1,087 1,23z 344 1990 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East-
Inacom Piedmont
Building Triad 26& — 27C 707 53t 707 1,24z 197 1996 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East-
Service Piedmont
Center 1 Triad 237 1,10¢ 0) 82 237 1,18¢ 1,42z 394 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East-
Service Piedmont
Center 2 Triad 19z 94¢€ (0) 122 192 1,06¢ 1,26( 311 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East-
Service Piedmont
Center 2 Triad 30% 1,21¢ (0) 12¢ 30t 1,34¢ 1,65: 41€ 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East-
Service Piedmont
Center 4 Triad 22¢ 92¢ 0 9C 22F 1,01¢ 1,24¢ 34¢& 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East-
Service Piedmont
Court Triad 171 777 0) 43 171 82C 99C 277 1990 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East- Piedmont
Simplex Triad 271 — 23¢ 887 51C 887 1,397 202 1997 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East-
Warehouse Piedmont
1 Triad 35E 1,61z 0 28¢ 35€ 1,90z 2,25¢ 632 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East-
Warehouse Piedmont
2 Triad 37: 1,528 0 131 374 1,65¢ 2,02¢ 54E 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East-
Warehouse Piedmont
3 Triad 341 1,48¢ (0) 43¢ 341 1,92¢ 2,26€ 69¢ 1986 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
East-

Warehouse Piedmont



4 Triad 66( 2,67¢ 0 334 65¢ 3,01( 3,67( 99¢ 1988 5-40 yrs.

Airpark
North— Piedmont
DC2 Triad 1,30z 4,392 0) 91¢ 1,302 5,31(C 6,61z 1,73¢ 1987 5-40 yrs.
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Airpark Piedmont
North— DC3 Triad 44¢ 1,517 0 20C 45(C 1,717 2,167 562 1988 5-40 yrs.
Airpark Piedmont
North— DC4 Triad 451 1,51¢ 0 14¢ 452 1,65¢ 2,11C 553 1988 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
South Piedmont
Warehouse Triad 54¢€ — 0 2,567 54€ 2,567 S liLE 731 1998 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
South Piedmont
Warehouse Triad 74¢ — (0) 2,50¢ 74¢ 2,50¢ 3,25¢ 532 1999 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
South Piedmont
Warehouse Triad 602 — (0) 2,27: 602 2,27¢ 2,87¢ 442 1999 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
South Piedmont
Warehouse Triad 49¢ — 0 1,89: 49¢ 1,89¢ 2,392 357 1999 5-40 yrs.
Airpark
South Piedmont
Warehouse Triad 1,73% — 0 5,22 1,73¢ 5,222 6,95¢ 1,91¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.
Airpark Piedmont
West 1 Triad 944 3,831 0 512 944 4,343 5,287 1,36 1984 5-40 yrs.
Airpark Piedmont
West 2 Triad 887 3,55( (0) 437 887 3,98¢ 4,87¢ 1,301 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark Piedmont
West 4 Triad 227 907 (0) 32¢ 227 1,23¢ 1,462 382 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark Piedmont
West 5 Triad 242 971 (0) 31¢ 242 1,29C 1,532 48€ 1985 5-40 yrs.
Airpark Piedmont
West 6 Triad 327 1,30¢ 0 16€ 327 1,477 1,804 46€ 1985 5-40 yrs.
ALO Piedmont
Triad 177 — 77 — — — — — 1998 5-40 yrs.
Brigham Piedmont
Road- Land Triad 7,05¢ — (3,720 — 3,33¢ — 3,33¢ — N/A N/A
Chesapeake Piedmont
Triad 1,241 4,96: (0) 43 1,241 5,00¢ 6,247 1,62:¢ 1993 5-40 yrs.
Chimney Piedmont
Rock A/B Triad 1,61 4,04t 0 214 1,61: 4,25¢ 5,87 98¢ 1981 5-40 yrs.
Chimney Piedmont
Rock C Triad 23€ 592 0 67 23¢ 65¢ 89t 18¢ 1983 5-40 yrs.
Chimney Piedmont
Rock D Triad 60% 1,51« 0 3¢ 60% 1,55:% 2,15¢ 331 1983 5-40 yrs.
Chimney Piedmont
Rock E Triad 1,69¢ 4,26¢ (0) 24C 1,695 4,50€ 6,201 1,06¢ 1985 5-40 yrs.
Chimney Piedmont
Rock F Triad 1,43¢ 3,60¢ (0) 1 1,43: 3,60¢ 5,042 861 1987 5-40 yrs.
Chimney Piedmont
Rock G Triad 1,04t 2,622 0 37 1,04¢ 2,65¢ 3,704 632 1987 5-40 yrs.
Consolidate
Center/ Piedmont
Building | Triad 62¢ 2,18: — 1,39( 62¢ 3,57¢ 4,19¢ 65€ 1983 5-40 yrs.
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Consolidate
Center/ Piedmont
Building II Triad 62¢ 4,43t — 58¢ 62¢ 5,02¢ 5,64¢ 1,263 1983 5-40 yrs.
Consolidate
Center/ Piedmont
Building 111 Triad 68( 3,572 — 22¢ 68C 3,79¢ 4,47¢ 9432 1989 5-40 yrs.
Consolidate
Center/ Piedmont
Building IV Triad 37€ 1,65¢ 0 23t 37€ 1,89( 2,26¢€ 487 1989 5-40 yrs.
Deep River
Corporate Piedmont
Center Triad 1,041 5,89 0 341 1,041 6,23 7,27¢ 1,831 1989 5-40 yrs.
Enterprise Piedmont
Warehouse Triad 45: — 36( 2,967 81: 2,967 3,77¢ 531 2002 5-40 yrs.
Enterprise
Warehouse Piedmont
Il Triad 2,73% 881 12,22¢ 3,61« 12,22¢ 15,84« 381 2006 5-40 yrs.
Forsyth
Corporate Piedmont
Center Triad ) 32¢ 1,861 0 92¢ 32¢ 2,79¢ 3,12¢ 82¢ 1985 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods
Park Piedmont
Building | Triad 1,47¢ — 0 8,70¢ 1,47¢ 8,70¢  10,18: 1,71¢ 2001 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods  Piedmont
Square CV¢ Triad 1,41¢ 537 — 1,95: — 1,952 — 2005 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods  Piedmont
Square Lant Triad 1,811 — (1,817) — — — — — N/A N/A
Highwoods
Square Piedmont
Shops Triad 1,031 3C 1,45¢ 1,061 1,45€ 2,517 12€ 2005 5-40 yrs.
Jefferson Piedmont
Pilot Land Triad 11,75¢ — (4,25%) — 7,50z — 7,50z — N/A N/A
Madison
Park —
Building Piedmont
5620 Triad 947 2,22( 0 392 947 2,612 3,55¢ 53C 1983 5-40 yrs.
Madison
Park —
Building Piedmont
5630 Triad 1,48¢ 3,501 0 (0) 1,48¢ 3,507 4,99t 837 1983 5-40 yrs.
Madison
Park —
Building Piedmont
5635 Triad 894 2,10¢ (0) 25€ 894 2,36: 3,25¢ 541 1986 5-40 yrs.
Madison
Park —
Building Piedmont
5640 Triad 1,831 6,531 0 7 1,831 6,53¢ 8,37( 1,572 1985 5-40 yrs.
Madison
Park —
Building Piedmont
5650 Triad 1,08: 2,551 0 33¢ 1,08: 2,88¢ 3,972 634 1984 5-40 yrs.
Madison
Park —
Building Piedmont
5655 Triad 1,947 7,12 (0) 29: 1,947 7,415 9,36¢ 1,81« 1987 5-40 yrs.
Madison
Park —
Building Piedmont
5660 Triad 1,917 4,50¢ (0) 24¢€ 1,917 4,752 6,66¢ 1,107 1984 5-40 yrs.
Madison
Parking Piedmont
Deck Triad 5,75¢ 8,82 0 49¢€ 5,75¢ 9,31¢ 15,07: 2,19: 1987 5-40 yrs.
Regency
One-
Piedmont Piedmont
Center Triad 51¢ — 38¢ 2,46¢ 89¢ 2,46¢ 3,36t 621 1996 5-40 yrs.
Regency

Two-



Piedmont  pjedmont
Center Triad 43t — 28¢ 1,732 725 1,732 2,45¢€ 461 1996 5-40 yrs.
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Sears Cenfact Piedmont
Triad 1) 834 3,45¢ (0) 14¢ 834 3,607 4,441 1,147 1989 5-40 yrs.
The Knollwood -  Piedmont
380 Retail Triad (2) — 1 — 18C — 181 181 82 1995 5-40 yrs.
The Knollwood-  Piedmont
370 Triad ) 1,82¢ 7,498 0 72¢ 1,82¢ 8,22  10,05( 2,861 1994 5-40 yrs.
The Knollwood- Piedmont
380 Triad (2) 2,98¢ 12,02¢ 0 2,76¢ 2,98¢  14,79¢ 17,78 4,547 1990 5-40 yrs.
US Airways Piedmont
Triad 1,451 11,37t ) 1 1,45C 11,37¢ 12,82¢ 2,88(  197(-1987 5-40 yrs.
Westpoint
Business Park Piedmont
Land Triad 86¢ — (464) — 404 — 404 — N/A N/A
Westpoint
Business
Park- Piedmont
Luwabahnso  Triad 347 1,38¢ (0) 58 347 1,44: 1,79( 465 1990 5-40 yrs.
Enterprise Piedmont
Warehouse Il Triad 814 (102) 3,882 712 3,88: 4,59¢ 22 2007 5-40 yrs.
Research
Triangle, NC
3600 Glenwood Research
Avenue Triangle — 10,99« — 6C — 11,05« 11,05« 2,97( 1986 5-40 yrs.
3737 Glenwood Research
Avenue Triangle — — 31¢ 16,64 31¢  16,64: 16,96: 4,86€ 1999 5-40 yrs.
4101 Research Research
Commons Triangle 1,34¢ 8,34¢ 22C (1,537) 1,56¢ 6,81% 8,382 1,49¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.
4201 Research Research
Commons Triangle 1,204 11,85¢ 0 (2,007) 1,20¢ 9,851  11,05¢ 3,72¢ 1991 5-40 yrs.
4301 Research Research
Commons Triangle 90C 8,231 (0) 34 90C 8,271 9,17( 2,642 1989 5-40 yrs.
4401 Research Research
Commons Triangle 1,24¢ 9,381 0) 2,77: 1,24¢ 12,16(  13,40¢ 4,711 1987 5-40 yrs.
4501 Research Research
Commons Triangle 78E 5,85¢ 0 2,43¢ 78t 8,29¢ 9,07¢ 2,44¢ 1985 5-40 yrs.
4800 North Park  Research
Triangle 2,67¢ 17,63( 0 7,04: 2,67¢ 24,67: 27,35: 6,67¢ 1985 5-40 yrs.
4900 North Park  Research
Triangle 771 77C 1,98: 0 561 77C 2,54¢ 3,31t 91z 1984 5-40 yrs.
5000 North Park  Research
Triangle 2) 1,01( 4,61z (0) 2,04¢ 1,01( 6,661 7,67( 2,49¢ 1980 5-40 yrs.
801 Corporate Research
Center Triangle 82¢ — 272 10,45: 1,10(¢ 10,45: 11,55: 1,81¢ 2002 5-40 yrs.
Blue Ridge | Research
Triangle 1) 72z 4,60€ (0) 1,28¢ 722 5,89t 6,617 2,02t 1982 5-40 yrs.
Blue Ridge Il Research
Triangle 1) 462 1,41C 0 401 462 1,811 2,27¢ 927 1988 5-40 yrs.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
SCHEDULE Il - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIA TION (Continued)

(in thousands)

Cost Capitalized

Life on
Initial Costs Subsequent to Acquisition Gross Value at Close of Period Which
Final Final Accum Depr is
2007 Beginning  Beginning Building & Final Bldg Total Depr- Date of Calculated
Description City Encumbrance Land Building Land Improvements Land Final Assets Final Construction Oon
Cape Fear  Research
Triangle 131 1,63( 0 738 131 2,36 2,49t 1,781 1979 5-40 yrs.
Catawba Research
Triangle 12t 1,63¢ (0) 1,30( 12¢ 2,93t 3,06( 1,79¢ 1980 5-40 yrs.
CentreGree
Five Land - Research
Weston Triangle 3,062 — (3,062) — — — — — N/A N/A
CentreGree Research
Four Triangle (4) 1,77¢ — (394) 12,68¢ 1,38¢ 12,68¢ 14,06¢ 2,762 2002 5-40 yrs.
CentreGree
One - Research
Weston Triangle 4) 1,52¢ — (37¢) 9,15 1,151 9,152 10,30z 2,52 2000 5-40 yrs.
CentreGree
Three Land Research
Weston Triangle 1,87¢ — (384) — 1,49: — 1,492 — N/A N/A
CentreGree
Two - Research
Weston Triangle 4) 1,65: — (393) 10,00¢ 1,26( 10,00¢ 11,26¢ 2,27: 2001 5-40 yrs.
Cottonwood Research
Triangle 60¢ 3,24¢ (0) 1,237 60¢ 4,481 5,09(C 1,351 1983 5-40 yrs.
Dogwood Research
Triangle 76€ 2,76¢ 0) 46¢ 76€ 3,231 4,002 1,11¢ 1983 5-40 yrs.
EPA Research
Triangle 2,601 — (4) 1,661 2,591 1,661 4,25¢ 34E 2003 5-40 yrs.
GlenLake Research
Land Triangle 13,00: — (3,26¢€) — 9,731 — 9,731 — N/A N/A
GlenLake Research
Bldg | Triangle (4) 924 — 1,32¢ 22,26: 2,24¢ 22,26: 24,51( 4,28¢ 2002 5-40 yrs.
GlenLake Research
Four Triangle 1,65¢ 493 21,90¢ 2,15 21,90¢ 24,06! 1,011 2006 5-40 yrs.
Global Research
Software Triangle 465 — (465) (0) — (0) (0) — 1996 5-40 yrs.
Healthsourc Research
Triangle 1,30¢ — 54C 13,61t 1,84¢ 13,61t 15,46( 3,54¢ 1996 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods
Centre- Research
Weston Triangle (1) 531 — (267) 7,68¢ 264 7,68¢ 7,952 2,321 1998 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods
Office
Center
North Research
Land Triangle 35¢E 49 2 (0) 357 49 40€ 25 N/A N/A
Highwoods  Research
Tower One Triangle 2) 20z 16,74« 0 2,14¢ 205 18,88¢ 19,09: 7,74¢ 1991 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods  Research
Tower Two  Triangle 36E — 502 21,84« 86¢ 21,84+ 22,71 4,867 2001 5-40 yrs.
Holiday Inn
Reservation Research
Center Triangle 867 2,727 (0) 1,15(C 867 3,871 4,742 1,241 1984 5-40 yrs.
Inveresk
Land Parcel Research
2 Triangle 657 — 197 — 854 — 854 — N/A N/A
Inveresk
Land Parcel Research
3 Triangle 54¢ — 30¢€ — 854 — 854 — N/A N/A
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SCHEDULE Il - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIA TION (Continued)

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

(in thousands)

Cost Capitalized

Life on
Initial Costs Subsequent to Acquisition  Gross Value at Close of Perior Which
Final Final Accum Depris
2007 Beginning  Beginning Building & Final Bldg Total Depr- Date of Calculated
Description City Encumbrance Land Building Land Improvements Land Final Assets Final Construction Oon
Laurel Research
Triangle 884 2,51 (889 (2,517) — — — — 1982 5-40 yrs.
Magnolia Research
Triangle 132 3,57¢ (139) (3,576 — 0 0 — 1988 5-40 yrs.
Maplewooc Research
Triangle 1) 14¢ — 107 3,03¢ 25€ 3,03¢ 3,29 543 N/A 5-40 yrs.
Overlook Research
Triangle 39¢ — 29: 9,69( 691 9,69( 10,38: 2,451 1999 5-40 yrs.
Pamlico Research
Triangle 28¢ — (0) 11,95¢ 28¢ 11,95¢ 12,24¢ 7,161 1980 5-40 yrs.
ParkWest
One - Research
Weston Triangle 24z — (0) 3,55¢ 24z 3,55¢ 3,79¢ 74C 2001 5-40 yrs.
ParkWest
Three -
Land - Research
Weston Triangle 30¢€ — 0 — 30€ — 30¢€ — N/A N/A
ParkWest
Two - Research
Weston Triangle 35€ — 0 4,321 35€ 4,321 4,67¢ 887 2001 5-40 yrs.
Progress
Center Research
Renovatior ~ Triangle — — — 362 — 362 362 77 2003 5-40 yrs.
Raleigh
Corp Cente Research
Lot D Triangle 1,211 — 8 — 1,21¢ — 1,21¢ — N/A N/A
Red Oak Research
Triangle 38¢ — (389) 0 — 0 0 — 1999 5-40 yrs.
Rexwoods Research
Center | Triangle 87¢ 3,73( 0 81z 87¢ 4,54 5,42( 2,091 1990 5-40 yrs.
Rexwoods  Research
Center Il Triangle 362 1,81¢ (0) 612 362 2,431 2,79% 82¢ 1993 5-40 yrs.
Rexwoods  Research
Center 11| Triangle 91¢ 2,81¢ 0 1,01¢ 91¢ 3,83( 4,74¢ 1,72¢ 1992 5-40 yrs.
Rexwoods Research
Center IV Triangle 58€ — 0 3,35¢ 58€ 3,35¢ 3,941 1,091 1995 5-40 yrs.
Rexwoods Research
Center V Triangle 2) 1,301 — 184 4,971 1,48t 4,971 6,457 1,241 1998 5-40 yrs.
Riverbirch ~ Research
Triangle ) 46¢ 4,03¢ (0) 1,14¢€ 46¢ 5,18¢ 5,65% 2,66¢ 1987 5-40 yrs.
Situs | Research
Triangle 69z 4,64¢ 17¢ (1,115 87¢ 3,531 4,401 99t 1996 5-40 yrs.
Situs Il Research
Triangle 71¢ 6,25¢ 181 (1,422) 89¢ 4,83 5,731 1,16¢ 1998 5-40 yrs.
Situs 1l Research
Triangle 44( 4,07¢ 11¢ (1,04¢) 55¢ 3,03( 3,58¢ A77 2000 5-40 yrs.
Six Forks Research
Center | Triangle 66€ 2,66¢ (0) 1,157 66€ 3,822 4,487 1,25¢ 1982 5-40 yrs.
Six Forks Research
Center Il Triangle 1,08¢ 4,53¢ (0) 1,43¢ 1,08¢ 5,967 7,05% 1,84( 1983 5-40 yrs.
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SCHEDULE Il - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIA TION (Continued)

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

(in thousands)

Cost Capitalized

Life on
Initial Costs Subsequent to Acquisition  Gross Value at Close of Periot Which
Final Final Accum Depr is
2007 Beginning  Beginning Building & Final Bldg Total Depr- Date of Calculated
Description City Encumbrance Land Building Land Improvements Land Final Assets Final Construction Oon
Six Forks Research
Center Ill Triangle ) 862 4,411 0 1,83¢ 862 6,24% 7,107 1,881 1987 5-40 yrs.
Smoketree  Research
Tower Triangle 2,352 11,74 0 2,22¢ 2,352 13,97 16,32« 4,951 1984 5-40 yrs.
Sycamore Research
Triangle ) 25¢ — 217 4,76¢ 472 4,76¢ 5,241 1,34¢€ 1997 5-40 yrs.
W Building
- One
North
Comir
Research
Centel  Triangle 1,17: 6,86¢ (1,172) (6,865) — 0 0 — 1983 5-40 yrs.
Weston Research
Land Triangle 22,77 — (7,169) — 15,60: — 15,60: — N/A N/A
Willow Oak Research
Triangle 2) 45¢ — 26¢ 5,457 72¢ 5,457 6,182 1,847 1995 5-40 yrs.
Other Research
Property Triangle 47 9,49¢ 10z 3,82¢ 14¢ 13,32¢ 13,47: 7,41C N/A N/A
Richmond,
VA
4900 Cox
Road Richmond 1,32¢ 5,311 0 1,152 1,32¢ 6,46 7,78 1,77% 1991 5-40 yrs.
Colonade
Building Richmond 4) 1,364 6,10¢ 0 31z 1,364 6,417 7,782 943 2003 5-40 yrs.
Dominion
Place -Pitts
Parcel Richmond 1,101 — 112 — 1,21¢ — 1,21¢ — N/A N/A
Essex Plaz Richmond 11,46 1,581 13,29¢ ©) (497) 1,581 12,80: 14,38 3,34« 1999 5-40 yrs.
Grove Park
| Richmond 712 — 31¢ 5,127 1,032 5,12 6,15¢ 1,26: 1997 5-40 yrs.
Hamilton
Beach Richmond 1,08¢ 4,34F ) 1,292 1,08¢ 5,631 6,727 1,613 1986 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods
Commons  Richmond 521 — 44¢€ 3,29( 967 3,29( 4,257 81¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods
Five Richmond 78z — (0) 6,22t 78z 6,22¢ 7,007 1,89 1998 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods
One Richmond 2) 1,68¢ — (0) 10,06¢ 1,68¢ 10,06¢ 11,757 2,947 1996 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods
Plaza Richmond 90¢ — 17¢ 5,694 1,08t 5,694 6,77¢ 1,51¢ 2000 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods
Two Richmond 4) 78€ — 21: 6,10( 99¢ 6,10C 7,09¢ 1,761 1997 5-40 yrs.
Innsbrooke
Centre Richmond 5,42¢ 1,30( 6,95¢ — 274 1,30( 7,23: 8,53 80¢ 1987 5-40 yrs.
Innslake
Center Richmond 1) 84t — 19¢ 6,73¢ 1,04( 6,73¢ 7,77¢ 1,912 2001 5-40 yrs.
Liberty
Mutual Richmond 1,20t 4,82t ©) 56¢ 1,20t 5,39:¢ 6,59¢ 1,57C 1990 5-40 yrs.
Markel
American Richmond 9,04( 1,30( 13,25¢ (45¢) (4,940 84z 8,31¢ 9,161 88t 1998 5-40 yrs.
Markel
Plaza Richmond 11,46 1,70( 17,08: — (5,480) 1,70( 11,60: 13,30: 1,16€ 1989 5-40 yrs.
North Park  Richmond 2,162 8,65¢ (14) 1,637 2,14¢ 10,29¢ 12,44¢ 2,91( 1989 5-40 yrs.
North Short
Commons
A Richmond 4) 951 — ©) 11,567 951 11,567 12,51¢ 2,592 2002 5-40 yrs.
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SCHEDULE Il - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIA TION (Continued)

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

(in thousands)

Cost Capitalized

Lif
Initial Costs Subsequent to Acquisition  Gross Value at Close of Perio V{/ﬁigﬁ
Final Final Accum Depris

2007 Beginning  Beginning Building & Final Bldg Total Depr- Date of Calculated
Description City Encumbrance Land Building Land Improvements Land Final Assets Final Construction Oon
North Shor
Commons
B - Land Richmond 2,067 — (109) 10,01« 1,96¢ 10,01« 11,97° 38 N/A N/A
North Short
Commons
C- Land Richmond 1,491 — 0 — 1,49 — 1,491 — N/A N/A
North Shor
Commons
D - Land Richmond 1,261 — 0 — 1,261 — 1,261 — N/A N/A
One
Shockoe
Plaza Richmond — — 35€ 15,05 35€ 15,05 15,40¢ 4,66¢ 1996 5-40 yrs.
Pavillion
Land Richmond 181 46 20 (46) 201 — 201 — N/A N/A
Rhodia
Building Richmond 1,60( 8,86¢ — 2 1,60( 8,861 10,46° 63¢ 1996 5-40 yrs.
Saxon
Capital
Building Richmond (4) 1,91¢ 337 13,50¢ 2,25¢ 13,50¢ 15,76( 1,35¢ 2005 N/A
Stony Poini
F Land Richmond 1,841 — (0) — 1,841 — 1,841 — N/A N/A
Stony Point
| Richmond (4) 1,38¢ 11,63( 59 1,33: 1,44: 12,96: 14,40¢ 3,57¢ 1990 5-40 yrs.
Stony Point
Il Richmond 1,24( — 0 11,39¢ 1,24( 11,39 12,63t 2,607 1999 5-40 yrs.
Stony Point
1 Richmond (4) 99t — (0) 9,657 99t 9,657 10,65: 2,16( 2002 5-40 yrs.
Technology
Park 1 Richmond 541 2,16€ (0) 18t 541 2,35] 2,89 75€ 1991 5-40 yrs.
Technology
Park 2 Richmond 264 1,05¢ 0 10 264 1,161 1,42¢ 341 1991 5-40 yrs.
Vantage
Place A Richmond 4) 208 811 1) 172 208 982 1,18¢ 302 1987 5-40 yrs.
Vantage
Place B Richmond (4) 232 931 (0) 17C 232 1,101 1,33¢ 36C 1988 5-40 yrs.
Vantage
Place C Richmond 4) 23E 94C — 112 23E 1,052 1,281 32€ 1987 5-40 yrs.
Vantage
Place D Richmond (4) 21€ 8732 0 167 21¢ 1,04( 1,25¢ 331 1988 5-40 yrs.
Vantage
Pointe Richmond 4) 1,08¢ 4,50C 1) 83€ 1,08¢ 5,33¢ 6,42¢ 1,54¢ 1990 5-40 yrs.
Virginia
Mutual Richmond 1,301 6,03¢€ (0) 627 1,301 6,662 7,96% 1,432 1996 5-40 yrs.
Waterfront
Plaza Richmond 58t 2,347 0) 631 58¢ 2,97¢ 3,56% 861 1988 5-40 yrs.
West Shore
| Richmond (1) 33z 1,431 (0) 207 33z 1,63¢ 1,97( 452 1995 5-40 yrs.
West Shore
Il Richmond 1) 48¢ 2,181 0 29z 48¢ 2,47: 2,962 702 1995 5-40 yrs.
West Shore
1 Richmond (1) 961 — 141 3,89 1,10z 3,89: 4,99t 97¢ 1997 5-40 yrs.
Sadler &
Cox Land Richmond 1,53¢ 0 — 1,53¢ — 1,53¢ — N/A N/A
Stony Point
\Y Richmond 95¢ 0 11,64« 95¢ 11,64« 12,59¢ 597 2006 5-40 yrs.
South
Florida
The 1800
Eller Drive South
Building Florida — 9,851 — 1,23¢ — 11,087 11,087 3,09¢ 1983 5-40 yrs.
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Life on
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Description City Encumbrance Land Building Land Improvements Land Final Assets Final Construction Oon
Tampa, FL
380 Park Plac Tampa 1,50z — 23¢ 6,52( 1,742 6,52( 8,261 1,162 N/A N/A
Anchor Glas: Tampa 1,281 11,31¢ — 1,33¢ 1,281 12,657 13,93¢ 3,10:¢ 1988 5-40 yrs.
Bayshore Tampa 2,27¢ 11,817 — 671 2,27¢ 12,48t¢ 14,76¢ 3,19¢ 1990 5-40 yrs.
Cypress Center
IV - Land Tampa 3,087 301 (1,230 (301) 1,851 0 1,851 — N/A N/A
FBI Field Office ~ Tampa 4,054 41t 27,030 4,46¢ 27,030 31,50¢ 1,88¢ 2005 5-40 yrs.
Feathersound
Corporate Cente
Il Tampa 1,95¢ 80z 7,46 (0) 1,151 802 8,61« 9,41¢ 2,32z 1986 5-40 yrs.
Harborview Plaz Tampa 22,70¢ 3,531 29,94+ 96¢ (38%) 4,50¢ 29,56: 34,06 6,47C 2001 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods
Preserve Tampa 991 — 0 25,84¢ 991 25,84¢ 26,84. 7,32¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.
Highwoods
Preserve Lan Tampa 1,48% — 20C — 1,68E — 1,68¢ — N/A N/A
Highwoods
Preserve \ Tampa 881 — 0 27,32¢ 881 27,32¢ 28,20¢ 5,01¢ 2001 5-40 yrs.
HIW Bay Center
Il Tampa 3,48: (0) (10€) 3,48: (10€) 3,37¢ — N/A N/A
Horizon Tampa — 6,257 — 2,32¢ — 8,58¢ 8,58¢ 2,43: 1980 5-40 yrs.
LakePointe Tampa 2,10¢ 89 0) 33,76« 2,10¢ 33,85!¢ 35,95¢ 8,711 1986 5-40 yrs.
LakePointe Il Tampa 2,00( 15,84¢ 672 10,42: 2,672 26,27( 28,94: 7,47% 1999 5-40 yrs.
Lakeside Tampa — 7,36¢ — 1,53¢ — 8,90t 8,90¢ 2,10¢ 1978 5-40 yrs.
Lakeside/Parksic
Garage Tampa — — — 3,207 — 3,207 3,207 252 2004 5-40 yrs.
One Harbour
Place Tampa 2,01¢ 25,25: (0) 4,31( 2,01¢ 29,56: 31,57: 6,01¢ 1985 5-40 yrs.
Parkside Tampa — 9,407 — 3,32% — 12,73( 12,73( 3,46¢ 1979 5-40 yrs.
Pavilion Tampa — 16,39¢ — 2,31¢ — 18,71( 18,71( 5,801 1982 5-40 yrs.
Pavilion Parking
Garage Tampa — — — 5,60( — 5,60( 5,60( 1,14¢ 1999 5-40 yrs.
Spectrunr Tampa 1,45¢ 14,50: 0 3,06t 1,45¢ 17,567 19,02: 5,70t 1984 5-40 yrs.
Tower Place Tampa 3,21¢ 19,89¢ — 2,061 3,21¢ 21,95¢ 25,17 6,50¢ 1988 5-40 yrs.
Westshore Squa Tampa 1,12¢ 5,18¢ 0 32t 1,12¢ 5,511 6,637 1,467 1976 5-40 yrs.
HIW Bay Center
| Tampa 3,56¢ (0) 33,09: 3,56¢ 33,09: 36,65¢ 132 2007 5-40 yrs.
HIW Preserve VI Tampa 79C 15 12,41: 80¢ 12,41 13,21¢ 217 2007 5-40 yrs.
Avion Park Lanc Tampa 5,231 0 — 5,231 — 5,231 — N/A N/A
HIW Preserve VI
Garage Tampa — — 6,78¢ — 6,78¢ 6,78¢ 58 2007 5-40 yrs.
533,95¢  1,481,95! (60,32 1,225,071 473,63! 2,707,021 3,180,66. 649,76!
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(1)These assets are pledged as collateral for a $839®0 first mortgage loe
(2)These assets are pledged as collateral for a $12,000 first mortgage loe
(3)These assets are pledged as collateral for a $1®0@0 first mortgage loe

(4)These assets are pledged as collateral for a 30®0 first mortgage loz
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized, in the City of Raleigh, State afrtth Carolina, on March 2, 2008.

HIGHWOODSPROPERTIESINC.

By: /sl EDWARD J.FRITSCH
Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpihe following persons on bel
of the Registrant and in the capacity and on thedliadicated.

Signature Title Date
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/s Terry L. Stevens Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi March 2, 200¢

Terry L. Stevens

/s/ Daniel L. Clemmens Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer March 2, 2008

Daniel L. Clemmens
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Highwoods Properties Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, ntgagisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operet and cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfie periods presented in this rep

4. The Registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsilae éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢t)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange Act RL
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and ha\

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoggporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princjj

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regis’'s disclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contot$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetis report based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the Regissainternal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the Reggls fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the Registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The Registrar's other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobmiver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the iAR@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controémofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regd’s ability to record, process, summarize and refioaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significdétin the Registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 2, 2008

/sl EDWARD J.FRITSCH
Edward J. Fritscl
President and Chief Executive Offic







Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Highwoods Properties Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, ntgagisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operet and cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfie periods presented in this rep

4. The Registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsilae éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢t)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange Act RL
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and ha\

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoggporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princjj

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regis’'s disclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contot$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetis report based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the Regissainternal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the Reggls fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the Registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The Registrar's other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobmiver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the iAR@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controémofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regd’s ability to record, process, summarize and refioaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significdétin the Registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 2, 2008

/IsITERRY L. STEVENS
Terry L. Steven:
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi







Exhibit 31.%

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Daniel L. Clemmens, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Highwoods Properties Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, ntgagisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operet and cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfie periods presented in this rep

4. The Registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsilae éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and ha\

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoggporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataoece with generally accepted accounting princjj

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registedisclosure controls and procedures and presentdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contot$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetis report based on st
evaluation; ant

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the Regissainternal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Reggls fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the Registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The Registrar's other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobmtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the iAR@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controémofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regd’s ability to record, process, summarize and refioaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significdétin the Registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 2, 2008

/s/IDANIEL L. CLEMMENS
Daniel L. Clemmen
Vice President and Chief Accounting Offic







Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Annual Report of Highwoodsogrties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form KO-for the period ende
December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities Bxchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R&partEdward J. Fritsch, President :

Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursugh®@b of the Sarbane3xley Act of 200z
that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company.

/sl EDWARD J.FRITSCH

Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive Offic
March 2, 200¢







Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Annual Report of Highwoodsogrties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form KO-for the period ende
December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities Brchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pdrtTerry L. Stevens, Senior Vi
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Comparertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adbptgrsuant to § 906 of the Sarbai@@dey
Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company.

/sI TERRY L. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
March 2, 200¢







Exhibit 32.¢

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Annual Report of Highwoodsogrties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form KO-for the period ende
December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities BRdhange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pdrtDaniel L. Clemmens, Vit
President and Chief Accounting Officer of the Compacertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as aeldgtursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/DANIEL L. CLEMMENS

Daniel L. Clemmens

Vice President and Chief Accounting Offic
March 2, 200¢




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statements No. 333-38878, 333-12117, 3859 and 33%5901 on Fort
S8 of our report relating to the consolidated finahstatements and financial statement scheduleslighwoods Properties, Inc. (1
“Company”), dated March 2, 2008 (which report expresses an alifigal opinion and includes an explanatory parpbraelating to th
Company’s change in its method of accounting farsbased payments, effective January 1, 2006, to confo Statement of Financ
Accounting Standards No. 123(F8hare-Based Payment, and the Companyg’change in its method of accounting for joint wees, effectiv
January 1, 2006, to conform to Emerging Issues Faske Issue No. 04-Retermining Whether a General Partner or the General Partners as
a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Smilar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights ) and our report relating to t
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control rofinancial reporting, appearing in this Annual Regpon Form 10K of Highwood:
Properties, Inc. for the year ended December 31720

/s/ Deloitte and Touche, LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
March 2, 2008



